N REOEEEERAT

- COMSLIMN ) CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED
% @ E-til- Ll.u (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(MEEHEIMBRILNERAE)
Stock Code BRA X5 : 1681

. _AnnualReport’

FEHRE




—CONSUN
RESU

RESFEEEBBRLT

CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED

Contents B %

2-4 Corporate Information NAEIER

5-14 Chairman’s Statement FERwE

15 Financial Highlights %EmE

16-23 Management Discussion and Analysis BIEE T T

24-34  Directors and Senior Management Profile EERRREREABRE
35-52  Corporate Governance Report PEEBME

53-72  Report of Directors BEEgmE

73-85  Independent Auditor’s Report BN AZ BRI

86 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss FalEmi

87 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and HABEEREMEERER

Other Comprehensive Income

88-89 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position A B R K
90-91 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity REER YR
92 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement HAERERER

93-207 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A BHRRM T

208 Five-Year Financial Summary hFEMBRHE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#RE 1



Corporate Information

AEER

DIRECTORS E=E

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) LTHESE (F/E)
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) Rt (4a)
Professor ZHU Quan REH
Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Mr. LIN Sheng MRER A

Mr. WANG Shunlong (Retired, effective from 31 May 2017) TR A (BRE - R2017F5H31H4EXL)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BRI A

Mr. FENG Zhongshi B E L

Ms. CHENG Xinxin FARIR 22+
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWmE

Mr. YAU Chi Ming EEREE
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Chairlady) BARIRZ £ (/)
Mr. SU Yuanfu BRTiRT A

Mr. FENG Zhongshi M E L
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®

Mr. SU Yuanfu (Chairman) BTEEE (FFE)
Mr. AN Yubao ZHE A

Ms. CHENG Xinxin FARIR 22+
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEEE

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (Chairman) BRELEE (FE)
Ms. LI Qian RE+

Mr. SU Yuanfu BRITAR LA

2 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEXZELEEEFRAF]



AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES FOR THE
PURPOSE OF THE LISTING RULES

Mr. AN Yubao
Mr. YAU Chi Ming

AUDITOR

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER (AS TO HONG KONG LAW)

Li & Partners

22nd Floor

World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED ADDRESS

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY 1-1108
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

71, Dongpeng Avenue

Eastern section, Guangzhou Economic and
Technological Development District
Guangzhou, PRC

Corporate Information
RAEREHE

mEMRAUMSHRELR

ZHELE
EERARE

AR

E BTN ERAT
HEEFTAD
FEPRET B0
KFRESHE

EEER (F8EE)
(EE AT

BB

=B 195
RERKE

2218

11 b 1k

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY 1-1108
Cayman Islands

45

B E M

BN Bl 5E 3% R R
REERBT15%

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#|RE

3



Corporate Information
REEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

22nd Floor

World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chinaconsun.com

STOCK CODE
1681

4 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEXZELEEEFRAF]

EBTELEXME
BB

EEE R 195
RERKE

2218

FEERRIT

FEIERTT (BE) BRAE
SEBIERIRTT

PR RIRTT

BRERTT

B T RERTT

BITIRT () GRAA

TRRODBFERTE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

ERREBRRLE
BAEPREFAELARAA
BT

ERANEHR1835

SR T7HA1712-17165848

NG

www.chinaconsun.com

B 40 18R
1681



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group” or “Consun
Pharmaceutical”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

1. The Group’s Overall Business Scale Reached a New
Level of RMB1.66 Billion

During 2017, all staff of Consun adhered to our mission
and continued to advance with committed efforts.
Continuously pushing forward the transformation of
“‘Brand & Terminal” marketing mode and focusing
on consumers, we are determined to strive for the
“growth with higher quality”. In 2017, the Group’s
overall business scale amounted to RMB1.66 billion,
representing a year-to-year growth of approximately
35.7%, among which, the scale of our core business
(excluding the Yulin Pharmaceutical segment) exceeded
RMB1 billion, with the growth rate continuously ranking
among the top in the PRC pharmaceutical industry.
The Company recorded profit attributable to its equity
shareholders of RMB396,242,000, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 28.8%, thereby
rewarding our shareholders with remarkable results for
their dedicated trust and support to the Company.

The sales of kidney medicines of Consun
Pharmaceutical amounted to RMB814,926,000 in 2017,
representing a year-to-year growth of approximately
11.0% as compared to last year. Uremic Clearance
Granules (“UCG”), a flagship product of Consun
Pharmaceutical, maintained its strong leading position
in the market of oral modern Chinese medicines for
kidney diseases.
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The sales of Gadopentetic Acid Dimeglumine Salt
Injection, Consun Pharmaceutical’s leading product
in the medical contrast medium market, amounted to
RMB119,831,000 for the year, representing a year-to-
year decrease of approximately 4.2% as compared to
last year, but still maintaining Consun Pharmaceutical’s
solid market position in medical contrast medium for
magnetic resonance imaging.

2017 was the first year that sales revenue of Consun
Pharmaceutical’s women and children medicines
exceeded RMB100 million. In view of the large market
for iron supplement products among women and
children medicines, the Company has set up a newly
designated business team for Iron Dextran Oral Solution
which is expected to become an emerging force to
contribute to our business results.

Business Development of Yulin Pharmaceutical

1) In 2017, Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
recorded revenue of approximately RMBO0.6
billion, representing a year-to-year growth of
approximately 23.0% (as compared to the whole
year of 2016, including revenue during the period
from January to July 2016 before it became a
subsidiary of Consun Pharmaceutical). Its profits
after tax amounted to approximately RMB123
million (including those attributable to non-
controlling interest shareholders and excluding
amortisation expenses of approximately RMB29
million on consolidation of Consun), representing
a year-to-year growth of approximately 52.0%.

Among the revenue of RMBO0.6 billion of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group, sales revenue of its
key product, Shiduging Series, amounted to
approximately RMB221 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 13.3%;
sales revenue of Zheng Gu Shui amounted to
approximately RMB178 million, representing a
year-to-year growth of approximately 37.2%; for
Jigucao Series, 2017 was the first year that its
sales revenue exceeded RMB100 million, where
it recorded sales revenue of approximately
RMB103 million, representing a year-to-year
growth of approximately 24.4%.
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On 16 September 2017, the inauguration
ceremony of Yulin Pharmaceutical’s “General
Relocation to Industrial Park Project” was held
in Yulin Traditional Chinese Medicine Health
Industrial Park. Currently, the topping-off of a
warehouse sized 20,000 square meters located at
the southern area of the industrial park has been
completed. This marks a new phase of leap-
forward development for Yulin Pharmaceutical,
a “Chinese Well-established Brand (F#EEF5k)”
that has over 60 years of history.

The new business location of Yulin
Pharmaceutical has over 600 acres of planned
land with a planned total investment of more than
RMB1 billion, which is intended to be divided into
three construction phases based on the principle
of “overall planning and implementation by
stages”. Upon completion of construction of the
new business location, Yulin Pharmaceutical will
become an intelligent and modernized medicine
manufacturing enterprise integrating research
and development (“R&D”), production and sales
functions, with its production capacity growing
six-fold from the current level.

In October 2017, Yulin Pharmaceutical
commenced the feasibility study and preparation
work for listing of its shares in the domestic A
shares market. It has officially engaged financial
advisors to carry out preliminary work including
due diligence exercise. In the future, supported
by the rapid development of Yulin Pharmaceutical
in recent years, the Group will endeavor to
enter the domestic capital market as soon as
possible. With the improvement of the ability in
expanding its presence in the Chinese medicine
health industry, resource exchange function and
location value, the Group is confident that Yulin
Pharmaceutical will create a new landscape for
the development.

2)
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R&D and Innovation

Making steady progress on the R&D of new medicines,
the Group obtained subsidy under national technology
research projects for the first time. In 2017, the
“Postdoctoral Scientific Research Workstation” of
Guangzhou Consun recruited two doctors to commence
researches. The project for the new medicine of
diabetic kidney disease, “Astragali power pellet” (EE
B ), was granted subsidy of RMB1.8 million from
the national “major innovative drug” project, which is
the first time the Company obtained subsidy under
national technology research projects and the project
obtained clinical trial approval from the Centre for Drug
Evaluation of the China Food and Drug Administration in
March 2018.

The Group’s other key research projects focused
on the “Ultrasound Micro-bubble Contrast Medium”
and “second-round R&D of Zheng Gu Shui”. For
the ultrasound micro-bubble project, we completed
certain tasks of prescription research, optimizing
the technological parameter and production line
constructions whereas clinical study will be carried out
in the near future. As for Zheng Gu Shui, the interim
trial of innovative hydrogel patch is due to commence.
It is expected that the Group will obtain the clinical
trial approval in 2019. Meanwhile, as for the project
regarding the “second-round R&D of Kidney Repair and
Edema Alleviation” launched in partnership with the
Hong Kong Baptist University, the sample preparation
of moderate trial was completed. Lanthanum carbonate
project has made a breakthrough in the key formulation
technology in accordance with the latest national
drug registration classification requirements, and is
currently in the process of preparing raw materials for
trial production. It is expected that trial production of
raw material medicines will be completed by mid-2018
and may apply for clinical trial approval by mid-2019.
As for Alfacalcidol Capsule, we preliminarily confirmed
the prescription through the consistency evaluation,
and completed tasks including the prescription analysis
of the original products, content determination of
raw materials and methodology validation. The whole
consistency evaluation is expected to be completed in
2019.
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lopamidol injection for diagnostic imaging has passed
the on-site reviews on research and production as well
as on-site production inspections. It is currently on the
queue for review by the Centre for Drug Evaluation of
the PRC, and it is expected to obtain the approval for
production in the first half of 2018.

Recognition by the Government and the Industry
with Multiple Awards

With its rapid growth and excellent performance in the
capital market, Consun Pharmaceutical Group ranked
31st in the “Forbes China Up-and-Comers List: Best
Listed Companies Category” (18 HrH & LA &E i
%7#%), was included in the “Top 50 Growing Capability
among Chinese PharmCo” (f° B %8 %517 % B K5058 &
%) of the “List of the Most Influential Enterprises in
the Chinese Pharmaceutical Industry” (F° B 28 %17 %
xEFZ HEE) by All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber,
and was honored the “Excellent Enterprises in the
Pharmaceutical Industry in Guangdong Province” (/&
RAEBHITEEF L) and the “Best Employer Award
Nomination” (# B & E1E F 2% 2) in 2017.

In 2017, Ms. Li Qian, the executive director and chief
executive officer of the Group was awarded the “Best
Business Leader Award” (fx £ {& % <8 #1 %) and the
“Excellent Entrepreneur in the Pharmaceutical Industry
in Guangdong Province” (EREBETHEEFLER).
With the strong innovation and R&D capability as well
as outstanding contribution, Inner Mongolia Consun
was elected for the “Dual Innovation” talent team in
Tongliao city, Inner Mongolia. Its “Chinese Medicine
Industrialization Project Team on Chronic Renal Failure”
(IeMBERIBRREEEZEMIBEB4) was granted the

honor of “Innovative Talent Team of Tongliao City” (iB#&

AT A A EFX).
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Inner Mongolia Consun was also awarded the “Wuyi
Labor Award” (fi—#&)4&4K) and the honorable title
of “Enterprise with Excellent Integrity in Tongliao City”
(B E ™ 15 & %) by the Municipal Government of
Tongliao City, Inner Mongolia. Yulin Pharmaceutical was
recognized as one of the “2017 National Intellectual
Property Advantage Enterprises’ (20174 & B R & £ 51
EREES ) by the State Intellectual Property Office,
and received the title of “China Top Ten Member
Exporters of TCM Formulations” (FFEIFFREITE RO+
#8) and “Yulin Mayor Quality Award” (E#MmHH & mE 58).

In 2017, UCG was again listed on the “List of Healthy
China’s Brands”; the invention patent of Zheng Gu
Shui won the 19th China Patent Excellence Award;
Gadopentetic Acid Dimeglumine Salt Injection, Kidney
Repair and Edema Alleviation Granules and Cetirizine
Hydrochloride Oral Solution were recognized as
Guangdong Province Advanced and New Technology
Products. At the 24th China International Advertising
Festival, Yulin Pharmaceutical’'s “Integrated
Communication Case for Brand Rejuvenation” for 2017
won the “China Advertising Great-wall Award — Classic
Case for the Year”.
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From September to November 2017, Consun
Pharmaceutical launched its “Quality Month” event
themed “Participation by all — Provide absolute
assurance on the product quality” (2828 - 100&
T F - 100f@ 5% &). The “Quality Month” was planned
based on the “2016 Quality Month” of Guangzhou
Consun and the QC skill competition, which had
been held for two consecutive years. It involved
activities including QC skill competition, contest in
quality knowledge, essay competition on quality,
quality benchmark election, quality-themed training
and quality internal test, with an aim to “enhancing
quality awareness and quality control skill”. On 28
July 2017, in the 38th Exchange Conference for
National Pharmaceutical QC Circle Achievements, the
two QC circles’ achievements selected by Consun
Pharmaceutical received an excellence award;
the QC circle of Guangzhou Consun was awarded
the title of “2017 National Pharmaceutical Industry
Quality Guaranteed Team”. This is the third time in
a row that Consun Pharmaceutical won the national
pharmaceutical QC circle achievements.

Obtaining the above awards demonstrates that
Consun’s development is ranking among the top in the
industry and bringing positive impact to the community.

Launch of online platform for the exercise of options
under Consun Pharmaceutical’s “Share Option
Scheme”

Since the listing on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 19 December 2013, Consun
Pharmaceutical granted two tranches of share options
to employees at the exercise price of HKD6.64
and HKD4.01, respectively. From 20 November
2017 onwards, participating employees under the
“Share Option Scheme” may exercise their options
to obtain benefits via the online platform offered by
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.
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The development in the past two decades marked
the mutual growth of Consun Pharmaceutical and
all its employees as evidenced by the successive
implementation of six innovative incentive mechanisms.
From profit sharing, housing reward, employee
stock ownership, excessive profit incentive to share
option scheme and share award scheme, the multi-
dimensional and comprehensive incentive mechanism
is our competitive edge by which all staff of Consun are
motivated to overcome any challenges.

To facilitate a stronger bond between the Company
and our core teams, or even all staff, as the “common
interested parties” and enable them to become the
“dream partners” of Consun Pharmaceutical for
achieving the strategic goal of next two decades
together, it is necessary for the Company to put more
efforts in innovating the staff motivation mechanism
with more focused highlights. In view of this innovation
for the coming five years, three principles will be
upheld: firstly, the benefits therefrom shall be visible
and solid; secondly, the goal thereof shall be attainable
and sustainable with attempts for improvement that
staff would make; and thirdly, it shall demonstrate the
concept of “prosperity of my family goes with Consun”
for staff.

Actively Gaining Capital
Enhancing Efforts in Roadshow Promotion, Moving
Steadily for the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect

Market Exposure,

In 2017, Consun Pharmaceutical seized the
opportunities to make its moves in the capital market.
Firstly, the Company repurchased 15% of its issued
share capital at a consideration of HKD3.837 per
share at the beginning of the year. Next, the Company
completed the placing of its shares, which accounted
for 5% of its total issued share capital after issuance,
to Far East Horizon Limited at HKD6.6 per share in
November. As a result of the Share Buy-Back and the
Placing, Consun Pharmaceutical has created substantial

returns for the shareholders.
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In the meantime, the Company continued to consolidate
the management of investor relations and organized
more than 50 non-deal roadshows or reverse
roadshows throughout the year. With the roadshows,
positive exchange was made with nearly 200 investors.
More than 20 investment institutions visited Consun
Pharmaceutical headquarters and Yulin Pharmaceutical
respectively. As many as 22 analyst research reports
have been made about Consun Pharmaceutical, many
of which raised the target price of its shares.

Along with a series of successful capital activities and
frequent roadshow recommendations, the stock price
of Consun Pharmaceutical soared considerably and the
total market capitalization has been maintaining at or
above HKD5 billion since June 2017. In March 2018,
Consun Pharmaceutical has finally made its access to
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect as a result of the
dedicated efforts by every member of the management.
Meanwhile, this has expanded room for further hike of
the market capitalization of the Company.

Future Development

Upholding the strategy of “based on specialties and
complemented by generics”, Consun Pharmaceutical
will continue to push forward the vertical development
of flagship products for kidney disease and diagnostic
imaging, as well as rapidly expand its existing series
of products of women and children, orthopedics,
dermatology, hepatobiliary and digestive system, so
as to develop its “1+6” product structure with utmost
effort, and a top class Chinese medicine enterprise with
multiple leading specialities and full range of treatment
capability in order to be able to provide comprehensive
and reliable health management solutions to customers.

Sk
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Regarding the products for kidney disease, the
Company will pursue the development mode of
“industrial chain operation” and develop the industry
chain of “kidney disease treatment + kidney nourishing”
adhering to the core basis of UCG. Monitor-Your-Kidney
(AT E] &), a professional APP committedly developed
by the Company for the management of chronic kidney
diseases, can provide a full-swing, continual and active
disease management for the chronic kidney disease
patients. As at the date hereof, Monitor-Your-Kidney
(ATET &) has collaborated with 17 hospitals throughout
China to provide a comprehensive and one-stop
solution for managing chronic kidney diseases.

Regarding imaging products, the Company will expand
the two segments, namely computer tomography (“CT”)
and ultrasonic imaging while maintaining the leading
position of Gadopentetic Dimeglumine Injection, a
medical imaging contrast agent, in the market of
magnetic resonance imaging (“MRI”).

Regarding OTC products, the Company intends to
develop one or two products with annual sales revenue
exceeding RMB100 million, expanding further into
various product groups comprising products each with
annual sales revenue over RMB100 million in the future.

EMERIH HRIEXBEFE] 3%
REGE  RABRFKAIKEE] /&L
TEIBRAR+BREE] EXgE - [H]
AIE] BRARIEBLITENEHESTRER
BEXAPP AIREMBRBERMEE -
HE ITPNERER - BB A (AT
A EEE2BE17TRBEBREYAE AR
HarA s —UABEBREETR -

FEREVNERTHE - REMERRAKEY
Lo B 6L 08 BR B RO R R B E L IR AR
(TMRL)) MHZAIZINESZT ARETE
T B R AR (TCT)) MEBE K& — @
Ay B

OTCEmLH  REEEEFTE—2IM
EHEERENER - KREEKBEZERE
EmERKERES

Chairman ZHE
AN Yubao E
Hong Kong, 21 March 2018 H7 - 201853H21H
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Financial Highlights

MBRHE

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31BLEEE

2017 2016 Change
20175 20164 #{t
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Results E ARMTR ARBTT (%)
Revenue WA 1,660,230 1,223,488 35.7%
Profit before taxation B4 Al 544,982 403,452 35.1%
Profit for the year attributable NA A= AR R
to equity shareholders FEAE 4F 5 A
of the Company 396,242 307,526 28.8%
Earnings per share Bhix&F
(expressed in RMB Yuan) (AAREITTIIR)
- Basic — ER 0.4602 0.3205 43.6%
— Diluted —#E 0.4570 0.3204 42.6%
As at 31 December
M12831H
2017 2016 Change
20175 20164 (e
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
Financial Position B AR AR®TRT ARETT (%)
Total assets BEE 3,572,017 2,759,055 29.5%
Total equity attributable to equity RAGIERIRR B = B
shareholders of the Company 1,746,688 1,760,494 (0.8%)
Net assets per share BRFEE
(expressed in RMB (ABRARB TR (K:2)
Yuan per share) (Note) 2.00 1.81 10.5%
Net debt (interest bearing liabilities HEHR (;TEEBERIEE & Net cash Net cash NA
less cash and cash equivalents) MEFEY) s = FEE FIRE TiE A

to equity ratio

Note:

Net assets per share is calculated based on the total equity

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company divided by the

number of ordinary shares.

SRB AR AR A RS 0R RS R 2 R A R
BEEH -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year of 2017, the Group’s
RMB1,660,230,000, representing an increase of approximately
35.7% as compared with RMB1,223,488,000 for 2016.
Categorized by product lines, sales of kidney medicines

revenue was

recorded an increase of approximately 11.0% as compared
with last year, among which, Uremic Clearance Granules
(“UCG”") remained the Group’s key product, maintained its
leading position in oral modern Chinese medicines for kidney
diseases; sales of medical contrast medium recorded a slight
decrease of approximately 4.2% as compared with last year,
but still maintained a leading position in the domestic medical
contrast medium market for magnetic resonance imaging;
sales of orthopaedics medicines recorded an increase of
approximately 122.6%; sales of dermatologic medicines
recorded an increase of approximately 99.4%; sales of
hepatobiliary medicines recorded an increase of approximately
195.2%; sales the Group’s women and children medicines
exceeded RMB100 million this year, recorded an increase
of approximately 37.8%; and sales of other pharmaceutical
products recorded an increase of approximately 79.3%. On
top of the Group’s efforts to develop the market segments
intensively, the significant increase in sales of the above
products was also attributable to the acquisition of Yulin
Pharmaceutical in July 2016 with its full year revenue reflected
in 2017.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year of 2017, the Group’s gross profit was
RMB1,228,395,000, representing an increase of approximately
34.8% as compared with RMB911,023,000 for 2016. The
increase in gross profit was mainly attributable to the increase
in sales. For the year of 2017, the Group’s average gross
profit margin was approximately 74.0%, representing a slight
decrease of 0.5% only as compared with the 74.5% for the last
year, which was mainly attributable to the management effort
in maintaining selling prices and controlling production costs
for the Group’s products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Income

For the year of 2017, the Group’s other income was
RMB35,102,000, which mainly included net exchange gains,
government grants and interest income. Compared with
the other income of RMB6,104,000 for 2016, the significant
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in government
grants recognised during the year and the net exchange gains
in connection with HKD loans results from the appreciation in
RMB.

Distribution Costs

For the year of 2017, the Group’s distribution costs was
RMB540,264,000, representing an increase of approximately
44.3% as compared with RMB374,365,000 for 2016. The
increase in distribution costs was mainly attributable to
the Group’s dedication in expanding the marketing and
distribution networks (including that of Yulin Pharmaceutical)
by recruiting additional marketing staff and increasing
marketing and academic promotion activities during the year.

Administrative Expenses

For the year of 2017, the Group’s administrative expenses
were RMB163,497,000, representing an increase of
approximately 15.4% as compared with RMB141,666,000 for
2016. The increase in administrative expenses was in line with
the Group’s expansion in operations.

Finance Costs

For the year of 2017, finance costs were RMB14,754,000.
Compared with the finance costs of RMB1,509,000 for 2016,
the increase was mainly attributable to the increase in loans
and borrowings during the year.

Income Tax

For the year of 2017, the Group’s income tax expense was
RMB123,162,000, representing an increase of approximately
47.0% as compared with RMB83,795,000 for 2016. The
effective tax rate (income tax expense divided by profit
before taxation) increased by approximately 1.8% from 20.8%
for 2016 to 22.6% for 2017, mainly due to the increase in
provision for withholding tax in connection with dividends
expected to be distributed from the Group’s PRC incorporated
subsidiaries to the Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future.

BEER R DT

Hitpr A

R2017F - AEEMEMBKARARE
35,102,0007T © * E & & E & W= F 8 - BT
RN B A o EI20164F B E b IR A A R
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R20176F - RE BB D EKRKE A AR
#540,264,0007C ©  H12016F M A R #
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Annual Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company and Earnings Per Share

For the year of 2017, the Group’s annual profit was
RMB396,242,000, representing an increase of approximately
28.8% as compared with RMB307,526,000 for 2016. The basic
earnings per share increased by approximately 43.6% from
RMB0.3205 for 2016 to RMB0.4602 for 2017, and the diluted
earnings per share increase by approximately 42.6% from
RMB0.3204 for 2016 to RMB0.4570.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Trade Debtors and Bills Receivable

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of trade debtors
and bills receivable was RMB970,294,000, representing
an increase of approximately 74.1% as compared with
the balance of RMB557,275,000 as at 31 December 2016.
Trade receivables turnover days for 2017 were 167.9 days,
increased by 30.5 days from 137.4 days for 2016. It was
mainly attributable to the consolidation of Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group’s operations and the Group granted longer credit period
to certain strategic customers with good credit standing based
on the market situation during the year.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of inventories was
RMB200,001,000, representing an increase of approximately
41.9% as compared with the balance of RMB140,974,000
as at 31 December 2016. Inventory turnover days for 2017
were 144.1 days, increased by 20.3 days from 123.8 days
for 2016. It was mainly due to the consolidation of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group’s operations which have comparatively
longer production cycle, and the increase in inventory level to
prepare for the expected increase in market demand.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of trade payables was
RMB68,739,000, representing a decrease of approximately
13.8% as compared with the balance of RMB79,733,000 as
of 31 December 2016. Trade payables turnover days for 2017
were 62.7 days, decreased by 7.1 days from 69.8 days for
2016, which was due to the speed up of settlement process to
maintain good relationship with suppliers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flows

For the year of 2017, the Group’s net cash generated from
operating activities was RMB252,123,000, representing a
decrease of approximately 43.9% as compared with the
RMB449,177,000 for 2016, which was mainly attributable
to longer credit period granted to strategic customers with
good credit standing based on the market situation and
the increase in inventory level to prepare for the expected
increase in market demand. For the year of 2017, the Group’s
net cash used in investing activities was RMB60,049,000, as
compared with the net cash generated from investing activities
of RMB91,888,000 for 2016, the change was mainly due to
net cash of RMB165,647,000 acquired through acquisition
of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group in 2016 which was not
recurrent in 2017. For the year of 2017, the Group’s net cash
generated from financing activities was RMB128,125,000, as
compared with the net cash used in financing activities of
RMB358,341,000 for 2016, the change was mainly attributable
to the proceeds from new bank loans and shares issuance,
which was partly off-set by payment for repurchase of shares
(the “Share Buy-Back”) during the year.

Cash and Bank Balances and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were RMB989,565,000, representing an increase of
approximately 47.1% as compared with RMB672,711,000 as
at 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
total loans and borrowings amounted to RMB568,104,000
which mainly represents the three-year term loan in connection
with the Share Buy-Back and the strategic short-term loans
obtained by Yulin Pharmaceutical Group. As at 31 December
2016, the Group did not have any interest bearing borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained
a healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2017. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
other commitments can meet its funding requirements from
time to time. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
mainly denominated in RMB and HKD.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, representing the total interest
bearing borrowings divided by total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2017
was 32.5% (31 December 2016: 0%). The increase in gearing
ratio was mainly due to the three-year term loan obtained by
the Company during the year for the purpose of the Share
Buy-back.

EXCHANGE RATE RISKS

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB
and HKD. The majority of assets and liabilities are also
denominated in RMB and HKD, and there are no significant
assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies. During
the year the Company obtained a three-year term loan of
HKD560,000,000 for the purpose of the Share Buy-back, and
an exchange gain is recorded as a result of appreciation of
RMB against HKD, and the Group will continue to face similar
exchange rate risk in future due to fluctuation of exchange
rates. During the year, the Group did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In April 2017, with the shareholders’ approval at an
extraordinary general meeting, the Company completed the
Share Buy-back of 146,140,200 ordinary shares from First Kind
(2016: buy back 23,489,000 ordinary shares from the market)
and cancelled those shares. In November 2017, the Company
completed the Placing of 43,585,680 ordinary shares, and
in December 2017, the Company issued a total of 1,895,700
ordinary shares pursuant to employees’ exercise of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme (adopted
on 2 December 2013). Save as disclosed above, there were
no significant changes in the Company’s capital structure.
The Company’s capital comprises ordinary shares and other
reserves.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately RMB386,072,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB25,671,000).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group hired a total of 2,332
employees (31 December 2016: 2,108 employees). The
total staff costs (including the directors’ remuneration) for
the year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB352,417,000
(2016: RMB199,551,000). The salaries of the employees were
determined with reference to individual performance, work
experience, qualification and current industry practices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as individual’'s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund and various retirement benefits schemes in
Hong Kong, including the provision of pension funds, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance for employees who are employed by our Group
pursuant to the PRC rules and regulations and the prevailing
regulatory requirements of the PRC. The salaries and benefits
of the Group’s employees are kept at a competitive level
and employees are rewarded on a performance-related
basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and
bonus system, which is reviewed annually. The Group also
operates a share option scheme adopted by the Company on
2 December 2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) and a share
award scheme adopted on 21 July 2014 (the “Share Award
Scheme”), where options to subscribe for shares and share
awards may be granted to the Directors and employees of the
Group.

The Group made considerable efforts in continuing education
and training programs for its staff, to continuously enhance
their knowledge, skills and cooperation spirit. The Group
regularly provided internal and external training courses for
relevant staff according to their needs.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in its subsidiaries, during the year
ended 31 December 2017,
significant investment in equity interest in any other company.

the Group did not hold any

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, as at the date of this
report, the Group did not have other future plans for material

investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not have any material acquisitions and

disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies during
2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 December 2016: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Management continues to manage the Group’s key risk
exposures, including operational risks (e.g. ensuring high
quality of medicines products, safety in the production
process and efficiency in the distribution processes), financial
risks (e.g. through budget control and cash flow management)
and compliance risks (ensuring the relevant rules and
regulations are complied with) on a daily basis. Management
also pays close attention to the recent development of national
policies in respect of pharmaceutical industry, which is a key
uncertainty facing the Group, and formulates and adjusts the
Group relevant policies accordingly on a timely basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving environmental
sustainability and incorporating it in the Group’s daily
operations. Other than complying with all relevant
environmental rules and regulations, management always
encourage water, energy and materials saving and recycling
behaviours which are considered in the performance appraisal
process.

The environmental, social and governance report in
compliance with appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
issued in due course.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
During the year of 2017, there was no incidence of significant

non-compliance of laws and regulations that is relevant to the
Group’s operations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, as at the date of this report,
the Group has no significant events after the period required
to be disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENRSHREEANERBE

DIRECTORS

BE=

The Board is fully responsible for management and operations. EE& 2

The following table sets forth information regarding our

Directors as at the reporting date.

BEBREEER - TRIBES
R B ER

Name Appointment Date Age
" ZERH FiR
Executive Director

HITES

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) 24 January 2011

LHRE L% (£/E) 201161 A24R 75
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) 24 December 2012

RiEw+ (48#) 20129 12H24H 53
Professor ZHU Quan 24 December 2012

REHK 2012412 24H 78
Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. LIN Sheng 1 April 2016

MR 20165F4 A1H 43
Independent Non-executive Director

BYFHTES

Mr. SU Yuanfu 2 December 2013

T BEE 2013F12H2H 72
Mr. FENG Zhongshi 2 December 2013

IBIPERE 2013F12A2H 59
Ms. CHENG Xinxin 2 December 2013

B R IR 22 £ 2013%12H2H 65
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CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. AN Yubao (% #f =), aged 75, is our chairman and
an executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder. He
was appointed as our Director with effect from 24 January
2011. He is also the chairman of Guangzhou Consun
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“GZ Consun”), Consun
Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia
Consun”) and Yulin Pharmaceutical, and a director and the
legal representative of Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Research Company Limited (“Consun Research”). Mr. AN is
primarily responsible for the overall management, operations,
investment and the charting and reviewing of corporate
directions and strategies of our Group.

Mr. AN has nearly 20 years of experience in medical education
and over 20 years of experience in the business of the
pharmaceutical industry. He has served various key positions,
including executive director and chairman of GZ Consun since
its establishment. Mr. AN served as the vice chairman of ER
M EREEEEEH L (Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee
Commercial Information Centre) from November 1995 to
February 1999. From July 1996 to December 1998, Mr. AN
started his career in the pharmaceutical industry by serving as
the chairman and legal representative of BRmEH R E S
RERABMR AR (Guangdong Southern Lee KumKee Nutrition
Health Products Co., Ltd.) and representing FFE A RENEFH
—EE K (the First Military Medical University of the People’s
Liberation Army of the PRC) as one of its shareholders. Mr.
AN served as the minister and vice president respectively
of MABNMAKEBRFBEARMBMRESE —EFEE KZE) (Southern
Medical University) (formerly known as the First Military
Medical University of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC)) from November 1991 to August 2001 and served as the
vice president of FEIARBHNEEFEFREELER (Jinan Military
General Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC)
from 1987 to 1988. Between 1981 and 1987, Mr. AN worked
at various units of the PRC People’s Liberation Army and was
mainly responsible for hygiene and hospital management.

Mr. AN graduated from FEI A REMER £ (the Logistics
Engineering College of the People’s Liberation Army of the
PRC) in 1981 and majored in rear commanding. Mr. AN also
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University (Macau) (now known as City
University of Macau) in November 2007.

EENRGNEEANERBE

IERYTES

THEEE 755 REMHNERERATESZR
PERRARER - M E20116F1A24R B ER T AR A
AINES - BABBEMNREEEFRAA ([EM
EE])  RERZXx (REH) AREFAA ([A
BROEE ) REMRENERE - ARBENERE %
MARERAE ([BEHRER]) HESFHFEAR
R-ZEAFTEBEAEENREESE &8 -
& R E TR AT (5 7 8 R B o

THRETCBEYE HERBA20FMLR - NE
BITERAB0FLR - REHEZEAEER
i BEEEMNEEXRIARKEERITESF;
FJE o A B1995% 118 £19994F2 A Hi
HBEEREATHLEHBEEMNRONBERF - B
19964F7 A #£ £ 1998412 A HAR » & A mait
BRHTE SHEERREATHRLEERE
MERARMERREARKERRFEARRE
MEF—FRBARBETHF—FZRE - LhEB
19914 11 A 220018 A Hif (B 5 BRI K2
(RPEARBHREF —EEAZ) HBRMEIR
£ AR B1987F E=1988F I F B A RFE MK
EEMERMAERMEIR R - 1981F £19874F
A ZAESEBRATRARBRENZ@EE
il TEBEFTERBRER -

ZEETMBIFHETBRAARBRERYZRE
X FBERTEES - REETN2007F11A
HRGEM CRFI) B ARAE GREREPIE M A
2)NIHERRLEMN -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE&HE 25



Directors and Senior Management Profile

EENRSHREEANERBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. LI Qian (3215), aged 53, is our executive Director and
chief executive officer and one of the founders of the Group,
and is also an executive director and the general manager of
Yulin Pharmaceutical, primarily responsible for formulating and
implementing the corporate strategies, overseeing production
activities, business development, research and administrative
management of our Group.

Ms. LI has over 27 years of experience in the business of
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. LI
worked at Southern Medical University from October 1989
to April 1998. Ms. LI joined our Group in 1997 when Consun
Pharmaceutical was newly set-up, as the associate director of
general manager’s office, human resources manager, deputy
executive general manager and deputy sales general manager
of GZ Consun. Ms. LI has also served as a director and the
general manager (which was redesignated as president in
May 2008) of GZ Consun since November 1999.

Ms. LI obtained a master’s degree in business administration
at Asia International Open University (Macau) in November
2007. She has obtained 3 invention patents and published
research papers on the “Chinese journal of Clinical Medicine”
(P ARG R 22 2% 5)). Ms. LI was awarded as Excellent
Private Entrepreneur (2 & K & & %¥ K) by Tongliao City
People’s Government of the Inner Mongolia Autonomous
Region in July 2008, and a Model Worker (4 E1#£%i) by Inner
Mongolia People’s Government in April 2010. In December
2010, she obtained the Third Prize for Technological Progress
in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (RN5 & BJaEEHT#E
=% 4#%). In December 2011, she was recognised as Famous
Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong
Province (ER&EBHTEZR P EKR) by Guangdong Province
Pharmaceutical Industry Association (EERERETERHE). In
April 2014, she was elected as Chinese Pharmaceutical Brand
Woman (Bl (B& #77%) M8 L M), In February 2017, she
was accredited as Excellent Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province (ER A B HITEBR %
%) and in December 2017 was awarded the “Best Business
Leader Award” by “China Finance”.
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Ms. LI is a local registered pharmacist of Guangdong province
(B A B E Hf) recognised by Guangdong Food and Drug
Administration (ERE Rm#EmESEER). Since March 2012,
she has been appointed as a member of the First Expert
Committee for Kidney Disease and Blood Purify of China
Medical Women’s Association (5 — &/ B £ 26l % 2 B M im
M IBEF (L ERZEZE ). In October 2014, she was elected as
the deputy councillor of Expert Committee for Professional
Committee of Chinese Medicine Product Development and
Incubation of China Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (FEIF &ipe P EERRFEFTEEXZE D). In
August 2016, she was elected as the deputy councillor of the
First Expert Committee for Chinese Medicine Development
and Research for Kidney Disease of China Association of
Traditional Chinese Medicine (A B #5145 & 55 — | B i b 535
BRI HEZES), and a member of the Pharmacoeconomics
Expert Committee (LB ZHEZEZLZE®), and in July 2017
was elected as a member of the Standing Committee of the
Encephalopathy Medicine Research Professional Committee of
China Association of Traditional Chinese Medicine.

Professor ZHU Quan ()< £), aged 78, is our executive Director.
He was appointed as our Director with effect from 24 December
2012. Professor ZHU is also a director and the chief scientist
of GZ Consun and the general manager of Consun Research.
Professor ZHU joined our Group in August 2006 as the chief
scientist of GZ Consun. Professor ZHU is primarily responsible
for the product research and development of our Group.

Professor ZHU has over 30 years of experience in teaching
and research at medical school and over 10 years of
experience in the business of pharmaceutical industry.
Professor ZHU has served as professor and Ph.D. candidate
supervisor at 8B P9 E £ K 2 (Macau University of Science
and Technology) since September 2003. He served various
positions, such as a deputy director of medicine department, a
director of BIR#F &b P E 2P i = (National Standardization
Laboratory for Chinese Herbal Pharmacology), a Ph.D.
candidate supervisor at FRFEZKZE (Nanjing University
of Chinese Medicine) between October 1981 and November
2005. Professor ZHU also served as an expert for IR#E
RIE2#H1TZ 2 € (Science & Technology Commission of Ministry
of Education), an assessment expert for MR B ARISH S £
L2 EE (Department of Life Science of National Natural Science
Foundation) and a drug evaluation expert in Jiangsu Province
and in the PRC.

EENRGNEEANERBE
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EENRSHREEANERBE

Professor ZHU graduated from # E#IEfL (China Academy of
Traditional Chinese Medicine) (now known as A B Bl 2367
(China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences)) in November
1981 with a master’'s degree in pharmacology of traditional
Chinese medicine.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LIN Sheng (#2%), aged 43, is our non-executive Director
who joined our Group in April 2016. He was appointed as our
Director with effect from 1 April 2016.

Mr. LIN has over 17 years of experience in operations, product
marketing and enterprise management, and has extensive
expertise in information technology. Mr. LIN joined Hony
Capital in April 2003 and currently is one of its managing
directors, mainly responsible for the medicine, medical
services and telecom, media and technology industry research
and investment. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. LIN worked
with Lenovo Group Limited from April 2000 to April 2003,
where he was responsible for handheld device product line.
He was responsible for strategic planning, market positioning,
product design and business line operations. Mr. LIN acted
as a non-executive director of Chinasoft International Limited
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code:354) from July 2011 to April 2015. Mr. LIN graduated
from Tsinghua University in 1999 and obtained a dual bachelor
degree in engineering physics and business administration
from Tsinghua University, a master degree in economics
from Tsinghua University and an executive master degree in
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business respectively.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SU Yuanfu (%Jtf8), aged 72, is our independent non-
executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when he was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Mr. SU graduated from F R ARBHEFMNEE KNE (the
Fourth Military Medical University of the People’s Liberation
Army of the PRC) in December 1969 and obtained a
master's degree in radiopathology at the same university
in December 1982. Mr. SU served various positions at the
People’s Liberation Army of the PRC. From January 1970
to August 1979, he served as a doctor at PujE = [& 48 B fx
(General Hospital of Tibet Military Region). Between January
1984 and November 1995, Mr. SU served as the director of
science and research office, the dean of academic affairs, the
deputy superintendent and superintendent of the first affiliated
hospital respectively at the Fourth Military Medical University
of the People’s Liberation Army of the PRC. From November
1995 to June 1998, he served as the director general of #&
% B 20 B 4 BRI B (Technology Training Bureau of the
Department of Health of the General Logistics Department).
Between June 1998 and June 2004, Mr. SU served as the
director of the department of medical administration and
the deputy superintendent respectively at fFEME 4R (the
General Hospital of the People’s Liberation Army). Mr. SU has
been a standing director of FEIET#HE (Chinese Hospital
Association) since October 2004.

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (&), aged 59, is our independent
non-executive Director. He joined our Group on 2 December
2013 when he was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director.

EENRGNEEANERBE
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EENRSHREEANERBE

Mr. FENG is a lawyer qualified in the PRC. He is currently a
partner of LM =EAERELKFT (Beijing Gaodie Law Firm).
He graduated from FREIEEARE (China University of Political
Science and Law) in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in
law. From July 1986 to January 1993, Mr. FENG worked at A
S5 EARADEAEE (the Department of Justice of Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region). He served as a lawyer at A% & A& E 2R
FFT (Inner Mongolia Jingji Law Office) (now known as #&
EMEMFT (Jingshi Law Office)) from 1993 to 1995. Between
1996 and 2002, Mr. FENG served as a partner at K& 5 212
ZEMEFT (Inner Mongolia Huicong Law Office). From 1996
to 2003, he also served as the head of legal department of
It REBEHEEMNAFR QA (Beiing Hui Cong International
Information Co., Ltd.). Between 2002 and 2009, Mr. FENG
served as a lawyer of b R AR IR AERIEHFT (Beijing ZhongRui
Law Firm). Between June 2011 and January 2013, he served
as a partner of 3t R & EERISEHFT (Beijing Jin Li Law Firm).

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (FXfRfiX), aged 65, is our independent non-
executive Director. She joined our Group on 2 December 2013
when she was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director.

Ms. CHENG is a senior accountant recognised by ER&E AF
F2 (Department of Human Resource of Guangdong Province).
She has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 1994, a registered financial
planner since September 2002, a fellow of the Institute
of Public Accountants of Australia since December 2004
and a member of the Chartered Association of Business
Administrators of the United Kingdom since March 2005. Ms.
CHENG graduated form Zgg X2 (Jinan University) majoring in
trade economy in July 1985. Ms. CHENG obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Murdoch University
in March 2000 and obtained a doctor of philosophy degree
in management by distance learning from a joint degree
programme with European University of Ireland, University of
International Business and Economics and Institute of Cost
and Executive Accountants in March 2005.
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Ms. CHENG has been a director of RMREBRELEGRER A
(Chang Cheng Insurance Brokers Limited) since June 2003,
the chairman of E /MM MR K I XL B FIF L (Pearl
River Training Centre, Yuexiu district, Guangzhou City)
since October 2003, a director of EMNBEHEEEREA
[ 2 & (Guangzhou Saibao Lianrui Information Technology
Company Limited) since November 2003 and had been the
principal partner of EMEFEFTRIEHFT (Guangzhou Xingtai
Accounting Firm) from March 2005 to June 2014 and has been
a salaried consultant of InZEZFTEIEHFT (Ruihua Certified
Public Accountants) since July 2014. Ms. CHENG served as,
from November 2000 to July 2016, served as a director of
BErTEEEE AR QA (Kang Yuan International Consultant
Limited); from February 2002 to July 2016, a director and
president of BEINE 7 B EH B R 2 & (Allwell Company
Limited); from November 1994 to January 2001, successively
as a deputy general manager in the department of enterprise
management, financial department and department of
strategic development of & & &8 1 % & B 2 & (Yuehal
Enterprise Group Company); from April 1993 to November
1994, as a deputy general manager of BERERERELR
‘A7) (Flying Dragon International Investment Limited); from
July 1975 to April 1993, as deputy section chief, section chief
and deputy director of E&R & I EEE (Department of Finance of
Guangdong Province).

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors has not been
a director of any other publicly listed company during the past
three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. TANG Ning (FF%),
Consun. Mr. TANG joined our Group in July 1998 as a business
manager. Between July 1998 and June 2011, Mr. TANG served
various positions at GZ Consun, such as business manager,

aged 52, is a vice president of GZ

regional marketing manager, marketing director, and president
assistant. He has been the vice president of GZ Consun since
June 2011. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. TANG worked at Z& 7
A4 7] (Cili County Baifang General Company) between
October 1987 and June 1998. Mr. TANG graduated from $5 &
Z (Hunan University of Commerce) in June 1986 majoring in
marketing.
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EENRSHREEANERBE

Mr. ZHOU Shangwen (&% X), aged 48, is a vice president
of GZ Consun. Mr. ZHOU joined our Group in April 2004 as a
marketing manager for Guangdong province. Between April
2004 and June 2013, Mr. ZHOU served various positions at
GZ Consun, such as regional marketing manager, marketing
director for our kidney drugs and president assistant. He
has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July 2013.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. ZHOU worked at B/ mAEHE}
% Bt (Guangzhou Brain Hospital) between July 1995 and
March 1997. Between August 1997 and April 2004, Mr. ZHOU
successively worked at MEAETE (K3E) REFRNF (Servier
(Tianjin) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.). Mr. ZHOU graduated from
L RERI A2 (Beijing Medical University) (now known as 1t
KEEEEL (Peking University Health Science Centre)) in July
1995 with a bachelor’s degree in mental health.

Ms. FANG Lanfen (5 %), aged 55, is a vice president of
GZ Consun. Ms. FANG joined our Group in July 1999 as a
business manager. Between July 1999 to July 2013, Ms. FANG
served various positions at GZ Consun, such as business
manager, regional marketing manager and marketing director.
She has been the vice president of GZ Consun since July
2013. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. FANG worked at [E$E
&% B T (Guzhen County Hospital) between July 1985 and
September 1989, and at LZE&EKFIEERT (Water Resource
Department of Anhui Province Hospital) between September
1989 and July 1999. Ms. FANG graduated from FifE&EAEE
(Bengbu Medical College) with a bachelor’s degree in medical
in July 1985.

Mr. FANG Peicheng (7515%}), aged 39, is the chief financial
officer and president assistant of GZ Consun. Mr. FANG joined
our Group in August 2010 as an audit manager. He has been
the audit and legal director since January 2013, president
assistant of GZ Consun since January 2015, and the chief
financial officer since June 2016. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. FANG worked as audit supervisor at FaRe{t TR{DEREA
7] (Xilong Chemical Company Limited) between May 2008 and
July 2010.
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Mr. FANG graduated from FA#E T2 Ft(Nan Hua College of
Industry and Commerce) major in computer accounting in
July 2002, and graduated from FEAMAL (FEFR) @5E2H
% (China University of Petroleum (Eastern China) Accounting
Profession) with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July
2008. Mr. FANG has the Audit Professional Qualification
(Intermediate) granted by AZEARFEAME A B R AL (R
FZ#F (Ministry of Human Resources and Social Securities of
the People’s Republic of China). He is also a member of The
Institute of Internal Auditors.

Mr. GAO Haien (=8 2), aged 49, is our Board secretary and
the board secretary of GZ Consun. Mr. GAO joined our Group
in August 2007 as the board secretary of GZ Consun. Mr. GAO
has been the manager and legal representative of Guangzhou
Consun Pharmaceutical and Inner Mongolia Consun since
March 2013, and the manager and legal representative of
Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group and Guangzhou Consun
Pharmaceutical since August 2015. Mr. GAO also acted as a
joint company secretary of the Company from 15 April 2014 to
31 May 2017. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. GAO successively
served as a general manager of the accessories store and
the assistant to headquarters general manager of J&JITH a8
T HEE#EHEEBR AR (Shenzhen Sunyes Tools Co. Ltd.) from
January 2006 to August 2007. Between July 1995 and January
2006, Mr. GAO successively served as a senior engineer of
EEETXEM (IDT Data System Factory) and a technology
manager of ZRYITH R EBEEER AR A F)(Shenzhen Aomeidi
Digital Technology Co. Ltd.).

Mr. GAO graduated from FREIEEZ KE (China University of
Mining and Technology) in July 1992 with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering and subsequently obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics at the same university in January 1994.
He obtained a master’s degree in business administration at
R B &R BUA R E (Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law) in June 2012. Mr. GAO holds EHFEFZEKFEHBIEFE (=
#%) (Professional Certificate in Securities (Band 1)) granted
by REIES#WE (Securities Association of China) and =
EF2MWMEEWREE (Board Secretary Certificate) granted by
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
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EENRSHREEANERBE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming (f£75R7), aged 51, has been our company
secretary since he joined our Group in March 2013. Mr. YAU
is responsible for our company secretarial matters and he
has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. YAU is a certified public accountant and is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
acting as an independent non-executive director of Cosmo
Lady (China) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2298).
In the past, he also acted as an independent non-executive
director of other listed companies, including Common
Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited (stock
code: 286) (from February 2013 to June 2017), CircuTech
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8051) (from April
2015 to June 2016) and Chinese Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8009) (from August 2016 to January 2018). Prior
to joining our Group, he worked at an international audit firm
from August 1992 to November 1994 and from May 1995 to
October 2012, during which he was promoted to partner in
July 2007. Mr. YAU graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in December 1992 with a bachelor’'s degree in social
sciences.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one
of the top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that
good corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to
the success of the Company and in balancing the interests
of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” to the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that, having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises
7 Directors, of which three are executive Directors, one
is non-executive Directors and three are independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board during
2017 and up to the date of this report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Corporate Governance Report
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Sheng
Mr. WANG Shunlong (Retired, with effect from 31 May 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. SU Yuanfu
Mr. FENG Zhongshi
Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Biographical details of current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 24 to 34.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

During the year of 2017, there were three independent
non-executive Directors representing one third or more of the
Board, and one of them, Ms. CHENG Xinxin has accounting
professional qualifications. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and thus are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities
for the adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and
supervising senior management to ensure that the operation
of the Group is conducted in accordance with the objective
of the Group. The Board is also responsible for determining
the Company’s corporate governance policies which include:
(i) development and review of the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance; (ii) review and monitoring
of the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (iii) review and monitoring
of the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and Directors; and (iv) review of the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its
duties, certain responsibilities are delegated to various Board
committees which have been established by the Board to
deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless
otherwise specified in their respective written terms of
reference as approved by the Board, these Board committees
are governed by the Company’s articles of association
(“Articles of Association”) as well as the Board’s policies
and practices (in so far as the same are not in conflict with
the provisions contained in the Articles of Association). With
the new composition of members of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee, the independent
non-executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their
time to perform the duties required by the respective Board
committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of
implementing its strategies and the day-to-day operation to
the management of the Company under the leadership of
the executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as
to the matters that should be reserved to the Board for its
decision which include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance
and financial reporting, internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set
out on pages 86 to 207 were prepared on the basis set out in
note 1(b) to the financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 73 to 85.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year (does not include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions) at approximately quarterly
intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operational and financial performance of the Company. Other

Exges

ExemflAaRmRENER (TREESB
BEHZEERZIADSNESTSMRE)  WEF
IR BEANwRAR Tﬂﬁzaxﬁﬂi’%x&i‘“%ﬂ
MBERR - EEFTES SR HANBTER AR - &
FETCERHAZHESTRI LA iﬁ,ﬁ\ﬂﬂ%%

Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board Bl NFEHRRE o R20174F  NA R BT
meetings involve the active participation, either in person K& -

or through other electronic means of communication, of a

majority of Directors. During the year of 2017, the Board held

7 meetings.

GENERAL MEETINGS REKE

An extraordinary general meeting was held by the Company
on 11 April 2017 and an annual general meeting was held by

R2017F4A8118 » AR A RTTRERFHIAK
e MMR2017F5A318 » AR RIRTTRER

the Company on 31 May 2017. Details of Directors’ attendance

are as follows:

FAE ZTEFHFEZNFRBEOT :

No. of No. of
attendance/ attendance/
No. of board No. of general
meetings meetings
HERE HERE
Director 2= EEEERRY BERAEXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) THERE (£/F) 77 2/2
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) RIS L (4E5) 717 2/2
Professor ZHU Quan KEHE 717 1/2
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. LIN Sheng ER S A 717 2/2
Mr. WANG Shunlong (Retired, with effect TIEBEL & (R - 3/3 11
from 31 May 2017) R2017F5831H4EXL)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BTk E 717 1/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BHE LA 717 2/2
Ms. CHENG Xinxin FRIRIRZ £ 717 2/2
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At least 14 days’ notices are given to all Directors in advance
for attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting
agendas and other relevant information are provided to
the Directors at least 3 days before the date of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for Board meetings and have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

By providing all Directors with relevant guideline, updated
materials and training regarding the relevant laws and
applicable regulations, the duties and responsibilities of being
a Director, and relevant disclosure requirements, the Group
ensure that each Director understands and is familiar with the
relevant rules and the latest development. The Group has also
provided funding to each Director, to encourage Directors to
participate in various continuous professional development
courses, to ensure that each Director continue to possess the
necessary knowledge and skills to take part in and contribute
to the Board’s affairs.
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For the year of 2017, the Directors’ participation in continuous FA2017E[E + EELX HEMFEE LRI Q0

professional development training is as follows: I ¢
Training related to
corporate governance,
regulatory development
and other relevant
professional topics
BHLXER EERER
Director 2= Hih iR £ EERIZ
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman) LTHVE S E (F/E) v
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer) R+ (#4E) v
Professor ZHU Quan REHIE Vv
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. LIN Sheng MR kA& v
Mr. WANG Shunlong TlEgELE v
(Retired, with effect from 31 May 2017) (BRI - R201745H31H45%)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYUFHITES
Mr. SU Yuanfu BoTRE )
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BHRELE Vv
Ms. CHENG Xinxin PR IR 22+ v

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and FTEEFERHE L FIHIEREE - AR R0
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training — # & K& <F BIIE X EA 6.5 R E L HHEIN R,

in accordance with paragraph A.6.5 of the Code Provisions. HAEBIIRHES -
APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION ZERERE

All Directors have entered into letters of appointment with the JEFHEERARRFIZEESE  BZREE AR
Company for a specific term of three years from the date of <ZIEEFH/=F - AJEEEE -
appointment, subject to re-election.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the
name of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in
each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as for persons
who became or were last re-elected as Directors on the same
day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual
general meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of shareholders after their appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
regular basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members; assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-election of Directors. When identifying suitable candidates
for directorship, the Nomination Committee will carry out the
selection process by making reference to a series of criteria as
bases, including but not limited to skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of the proposed candidates, and taking
into consideration of the Company’s Board Diversity Policy. All
candidates must be able to meet the standards as set forth
in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who
is to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. SU Yuanfu (Chairman),
Ms. CHENG Xinxin and one Executive Director, namely Mr. AN

= = &

REZEEMNFZERBERTHRIESTSHE
B RDNENK  MEEEEHERKNAEZESE
EREHANE  STRBEIENTEERE LM A
kM EREELZE A ERETNHERETERNES
SREER TYEEENESHREAR  BE
ZEERKERSE —RINEAERELE - BIEE
TRAEZRFEEANRRE & HEER =
EE  AARENEAZER AREELAAT
WESFSLT(EERMETRERR - TERE
A WZERESm B T 48 Bl £5.3.08F013.09 6 FT 8 &E
IR o W EERB I IEANITESZTHREAT
A/ EMABEIASBRENBLIEZE - &
BREMIREABRBHES TESSUERLE -

RAFEHEMZE  REEZEEH=2KEHA

B ERMERBELIFNTES (DRIRETE
FE (TE) BRMMEL) AR -2 RATES

(RELEERL) - M2017F - RBEEGHETT

Yubao. In 2017, the Nomination Committee held one meeting —X &% @ SZEeREHESZHTBOT :
and details of the committee members’ attendance are as
follows:
No. of attendance/

No. of committee meeting
Committee member EEERE HERE ZEEERXH
Independent non-Executive Directors BIYFHTESE
Mr. SU Yuanfu (Committee Chairman) BriekE (ZE52LE) 1/1
Ms. CHENG Xinxin B AR IR 2 4 11
Executive Director HTES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHVE oA 11
The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and REZE SR TESTLHEE - HEMAERK -

composition of the Board, and assessed the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and concluded
that the Company’s Board Diversity Policy has been properly
implemented.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With
a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development, and has
adopted the Board Diversity Policy.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least 40% of the members of the Board shall be
non-executive directors or independent non-executive
directors;

(B) at least 1/3 of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(C) at least 1 of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or relevant financial management
professional qualifications;

(D)  at least 50% of the members of the Board shall have 7
years or more of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(E) at least 2 of the members of the Board shall have
China-related work experience.

Corporate Governance Report

EREBRE

ExgzniE®

ARRPARAYREEETERE S TLHRITER
AREEaRS - REFAIHENMGENEE
ARABEFEEEASZ T A FHHEDH
BB ERESARERROBRITE - LERD
EFEEZTLIEERR -

EXeMAEREHABURARST RRA > AHEE
BAEELEENENZIBEMNESEENESZ T
e - EAZRZ - RIZTBRERE
T BHEEBS BELR - W ABRRG
EHSN - MERETRRER - Fik - XEBER
Kk - REERABNRERAIRESTSRH
HYR BRI EHHIRE

HEREFEZTCERRME - U TAGHERR
EAERAR -

(A) EDI0%EZEREBR/IFNTEFTIE
MIFHITES

(C) EMREFEREBEEBEHHEHEN
MBEREXER

(D) ZEL0%REEEKEBNEZEMITERE
BTFSA LR &

(B) EL2REXeXBEABETEMAMIIE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#HE 43



Corporate Governance Report
EREBRME

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2
of the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and make recommendation to the Board. The Board will
have final authority to approve the recommendations made
by the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee also include making recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of the Group and to ensure none of the Directors determine
their own remuneration. The emoluments of executive
Directors are determined based on the skills, knowledge,
individual performance as well as contributions, the scope of
responsibility and accountability of such Directors, taking into
consideration of the Company’s performance and prevailing
market conditions. The remuneration policy of independent
non-executive Directors is to ensure that the independent
non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for
their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs
including their participation in respective Board committees.
The emoluments of independent non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends.
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As the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three members and two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. FENG Zhongshi
(Chairman), Mr. SU Yuanfu and one executive Director, namely
Ms. LI Qian. In 2017, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting and details of the committee members’ attendance
are as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
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No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

HERY ZEEFBRY

Independent non-Executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. FENG Zhongshi (Committee Chairman) BRESRE (ZEEE8FE) 1/1
Mr. SU Yuanfu &oTfE A 1/1
Executive Director HITES

Ms. LI Qian B E4+ 1/1

The Remuneration Committee assessed the performance,
reviewed the proposal made by management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Details of remuneration of Directors are set out
in note 6 to the Financial Statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 2 December 2013 with written terms of
reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code Provisions. Its terms of reference were amended on 16
December 2015 and came into effective from 1 January 2016,
which are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held regular
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal controls. The primary duties of the Audit Committee,
among other things, are to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditor, review the financial statements and oversee financial
reporting, risk management and internal control procedures of

the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee consists of
three members and all of them are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Chairlady), Mr. FENG
Zhongshi and Mr. SU Yuanfu. Mr. SU Yuanfu was appointed
as a member of the Audit Committee on 31 May 2017 upon
the retirement of the previous member, Mr. Wang Shunlong
who was a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management of the Company the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also met with the external auditors and reviewed
the Annual Results.

In 2017, the Audit Committee held two meetings and details of
the committee members’ attendance are as follows:
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BER(HTaE) Y/ EREMNER  EF
ZENBENESSREEEES  BHUBR
RRERAXEENMBRE - BREREMNAIDE
ERRF o

RARSEH  ERZBEEH=RKEAK 5
RBIIFNTESE (DRIRKMMAE L (£E)
BPELEERBFTREL) - HITEELER2017
FEABHEZAERERZE QKA BB RE
ZHIEKEFNTEETIRRESE - BXEES
EREARFAEEE RN ASERFAN SR
RER  UBNANERERMBREEE - FX
ZEgTEEZEMEE  YEEHEFE

=
4 o

R20175F - BERLZE SR
SR EHESZNFBOT

TTMRE% &%8

No. of attendance/
No. of committee meeting

Committee member ZEBRE HERY ZEEERRE™
Independent non-Executive Directors BUFHTES

Ms. CHENG Xinxin (Committee Chairlady) MR Zt* (ZE2£/F) 2/2
Mr. FENG Zhongshi TR E ST AE 2/2

(Appointed on 31 May 2017)

Mr. SU Yuanfu BTt A
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TIEEE LA

(Retired, with effect from 31 May 2017)
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and discussed risk management, internal
controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee
also met with the external auditors and reviewed this annual
report of the Company. The Board has not taken a different
view from the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
designation or dismissal of external auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year of 2017, the Company engaged KPMG as
the external auditors. Apart from providing audit services,
KPMG also provided interim financial statements review and
tax consulting services. The fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by KPMG for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately RMB2,100,000
and RMB770,000, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG are set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 73 to 85.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the
Group to maintain a sound and effective risk management and
internal control system, and making review on its effectiveness
at least once a year. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in fulfilling its governance role over finance, operations,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Group. The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control system on an
ongoing basis. The Board is regularly updated on significant
risks which may affect the performance of the Group.
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The Group’s internal control system is designed to safeguard
assets against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition,
to ensure compliance of relevant ordinances and rules, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for provision
of reliable financial information used within the business or for
publication and to manage operational risks. The controls built
into the risk management system are intended to manage,
not eliminate, significant risks in the Group’s business
environment. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to business objective, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Group has established on-going procedures for
identifying, assessing and managing the significant
risks involved with the Group. Meanwhile, it reviews the
effectiveness of the relevant internal control system. These
procedures include but not limited to: (1) the Group has
established and continued to improve the risk management
structure and internal control mechanism, and has regularly
conducted project audit and annual risk assessment
according to the risk management system code and annual
plan; (2) to identify the significant risks involved in the
business and assess the impact of such risks on the business
of the Group; (83) information gathering channels, to ensure
material or potential inside information being captured and
kept confidential until timely disclosure is made in accordance
with the Listing Rules; (4) to conduct gap analysis on the
internal control measures in response to the significant
risks, and make recommendations on the improvement of its
internal audit functions; and (5) to continuously follow up and
supervise the implementation of relevant measures against the
recommended improvements.

The Group’s Audit and Legal Centre assists in implementing
the risk management practices and prepares regular work
reports on whether the relevant internal control is adequate
and effective in the previous year. The Audit Committee
will report to the Board on the implementation of the risk
management and internal control policy, including the
identification of risk factors and assessment on which grades
of risks are acceptable by the Group and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control policy.
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Based on the report prepared by the Group’s Audit and Legal
Centre and Audit Committee, the Board believes that the
risk management and internal control system of the Group
is proper and effective, and the Group has complied with
the provisions of risk management and internal control as
contained in the corporate governance code. The Group will
continue to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system in coming years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Chi Ming, being our company secretary, is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of the Group. Mr.
YAU attended no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company may make requisition for
the convening of an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) of
the Company in accordance with the procedures set out in the
Articles of Association as follows:

(1) Any one or more shareholders, who at the date of
deposit of the requisition hold not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings, shall have the right, by
written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors of the Company for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition.

Corporate Governance Report

EREBRE

BEAEEEDEBROREZEES

i'%%@%ﬁ'$%l%ﬂﬂ &W%
ZEBEEREN  BASEEETEEERST
AIPTE 2 AR E IR R NEREIE IR - REEKTE

NRFERERTRREERANEZRGNE
R
REAME

EEREEARRRINARWME  EXEREFA
BEAREBNARMETIE - RELER2017FE
B2EN D5/ N ABEEET -

iR SRR

ARABRRARBATHESZARIAENE
FELBRARABRREN RS (TRR&FB KX

g):

(1) HEXFREAFKHEARARBEBRATD
Rtnz— MAERRKRRAE LEES
EA—BIALHRR - BRERAEER
HMBERARNRBEE & A KAEEERE
BRIBRBREFRIKRE °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#HE 49



Corporate Governance Report
EREBRME

50 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNESEEAFRAF]

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in the PRC

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Attention: Company Secretary

Registered Address of the Company

Address: Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY 1-1108,
Cayman Islands

Attention: Company Secretary

The Board will convene an EGM within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board does not
proceed duly to convene such EGM, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders
can contact the Company at the following:

Address: 71, Dongpeng Avenue, Eastern section,
Guangzhou Economic and Technological
Development District, Guangzhou, PRC

Email: ir@chinaconsun.com

Tel: (86) 20-82264529

Fax: (86) 20-82261886

Attention: Company Secretary

(3)

(4)
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To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his
or her proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, the address is: 22nd Floor, World-Wide House, 19
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to

include the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of ordinary resolution of the
Company.

(2) At least 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company in an EGM of the Company or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting
of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining
a high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor
relations. The Company is committed to a policy of open and
timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders
and public investors.
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The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including interim and annual reports and public
announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been
provided in this annual report. While the annual general
meeting provides a valuable forum for direct communication
between the Board and its shareholders, the Company also
maintains its website (http://www.chinaconsun.com) to provide
an alternative communication channel for the public and its
shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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The Board of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 15 to the Financial Statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Chairman’s statement and the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 5 to 14 and pages 16 to 23 of this
annual report, which form part of this director’s report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 and its state of affairs as at 31 December 2017 are set
out in the Financial Statements on pages 86 to 207.

The Company paid an interim dividend of HKDO0.096
(approximately RMBO0.082) per share in 2017, totally
approximately RMB66,059,000 (2016 interim dividend:
RMBO0.045 per share, totally approximately RMB42,942,000).
The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HKDO0.10
per share (2016: HKDO0.05 per share), totally approximately
RMB68,943,000 (2016: approximately RMB36,599,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The proposed final dividend
is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at
the annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 30 May
2018 and, if approved, is expected to be paid on or about
Friday, 15 June 2018 to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 June
2018. The final dividend is declared and will be paid in HKD.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2013 to 2017 is set out on page 208. This summary does not
form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company during
the year of 2017 are set out in note 25(c) to the Financial
Statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s distributable
reserves, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands, amounted to RMB397,537,000 (2016:
RMB814,463,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains good business relationships with its
suppliers and customers, which are beneficial for the Group’s
healthy long-term development.

For the year of 2017, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Company’s five largest customers, including sales to entities
which are known to the Group to be under common control
with these customers, accounted for approximately 46.2% of
the total revenue for the year; sales to the largest customer
accounted for approximately 15.3% thereof. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Company’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 52.8% of the total purchase for
the year; purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20.6% thereof.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders who owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.
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SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINTLY CONTROLLED COMPANIES

Details of the major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 15 to the Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group’s investment property, other
property, plant and equipment during the year of 2017 are set
out in notes 9 and 10 to the Financial Statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year of 2017, the Group’s total capital expenditure
amounted to RMB43,088,000 (2016: RMB19,116,000)
which was used for acquisition of other property, plant and
equipment. Details of movements the Group’s other property,
plant and equipment are set out in note 10 to the Financial
Statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

In connection with the Share Buy-Back, on 17 March 2017,
the Company signed a commitment letter (the “Commitment
Letter’) with BNP Paribas, acting through its Hong Kong Branch
(the “Lender”), pursuant to which the Lender conditionally
(conditions include but not limited to the signing of formal
facility documents) agreed to grant the Company a three year
term loan facility of up to HK$560,000,000. Pursuant to the
Commitment Letter, if (a) Mr. AN Yubao (“Mr. AN”, the current
Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors) and Central
Success Developments Limited (which is wholly owned by Mr.
AN) and Ms. LI Qian (“Ms. LI”, a current Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) and Double
Grace International Limited (which is wholly owned by Ms. LI)
cease collectively to (i) be the beneficial owners, either directly
or indirectly, of at least 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company or (ii) be the single largest shareholder, either
directly or indirectly, of the Company; or (b) Central Success
Developments Limited ceases to be wholly-owned by Mr. AN
and/or his family; or (c) Double Grace International Limited
ceases to be wholly-owned by Ms. LI and/or her family, which
each of them will constitute an event of default, all outstanding
amounts under the Loan Facility (including principal and interest)
shall become immediately due and payable (for details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 17 March 2017).

As at the date of this report, these commitments continued to
existed and were complied with.
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Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings as at 31
December 2017 are set out in note 21 to the Financial
Statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. AN Yubao (Chairman)
Ms. LI Qian (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor ZHU Quan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIN Sheng
Mr. WANG Shunlong (Retired, effective from 31 May 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. SU Yuanfu
Mr. FENG Zhongshi
Ms. CHENG Xinxin

Each of the Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of three years from the
date of appointment, automatically renewable for a further one
year subject to director’s rotation pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company and can be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other. None of the Directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of
them are considered to be independent.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
one third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at
each annual general meeting. Accordingly, Mr. SU Yuanfu,
Mr. FENG Zhongshi and Ms. CHENG Xinxin shall retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” on pages 24 to 34 of this
annual report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Mr. AN Yubao, the chairman of the Board of the
Company, Ms. LI Qian, the chief executive officer of the
Company, and Mr. YOUNG Wai Po, Peter (collectively,
the “Controlling Shareholders” or “Non-Competing
Covenantors”) entered into a deed of non-competition (“Deed
of Non-Competition”) on 2 December 2013, pursuant to
which the Non-Competing Covenantors have irrevocably
and severally (but not jointly and severally) undertaken
to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of
the members of the Group) that with effect from the date
of Listing and for as long as the shares of the Company
remain so listed on the Stock Exchange and the Controlling
Shareholders are individually or collectively with any of his/
its associates interested directly or indirectly in not less than
30.0% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
(the “Restricted Period”), the Non-Competing Covenantors or
their respective associates shall not, (i) directly or indirectly
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render
any services to or otherwise be involved in any business
(whether as owner, director, operator, licensor, licensee,
partner, shareholder, joint venturer, employee, consultant or
otherwise) in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business carried on by the Group (the
“Restricted Business”); and (ii) directly or indirectly take any
action which constitutes an interference with or a disruption
of the Restricted Business including, but not limited to, (a)
solicitation of any existing or then existing employees of the
Group for employment by them or their associates (excluding
the Group); (b) solicitation of any current or then current
customers and/or suppliers and/or former customers and/
or suppliers of the Group for the preceding 6 months at the
relevant time away from the Group; and (c) without the consent
from the Company, making use of any information pertaining
to the business of the Group which may have come to their
knowledge in their capacity as Substantial Shareholders for
the purpose of engaging, investing or participating in any
Restricted Business. Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors
severally (but not jointly and severally) undertakes to the
Company (for itself and for the benefit of each of the members
of the Group) that, in respect of any order or any part of it
undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by him/her or his/
her associates for the Restricted Business, it shall and shall
procure that his/her associates shall, unconditionally use
reasonable endeavours to procure that such customer(s) to
appoint or contract directly with any member of the Group for
the Restricted Business under the relevant order.
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Each of the Non-Competing Covenantors jointly and
severally undertakes to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Group against any damage, loss or liability suffered by the
Company or any other member of the Group arising out of
or in connection with any breach of its undertakings and/
or obligations under the Deed of Non-Competition, including
any costs and expenses incurred as a result of such breach
provided that such indemnity shall be without prejudice to
any other rights and remedies the Company is entitled to in
relation to any such breach, including specific performance,
and all such other things and remedies are hereby expressly
reserved by the Company.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to
the Company of his/its compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition provided to the Company until (i) the date on
which the Company’s shares cease to be listed on the Stock
Exchange; or (ii) the date on which the relevant Covenantor
and his/its associates cease to own 30% or more of the then
issued share capital of the Company directly or indirectly;
whichever occurs first.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company had
reviewed the status of compliance as well as confirmation by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company and, on the basis
of such confirmation, are of the view that such Controlling
Shareholders have complied with their non-competition
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition and these
non-competition undertakings have been enforced by the
Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 February 2017, the Company entered into a Share
Buyback Agreement (the “Share Buy-back Agreement”)
with First Kind International Limited (“First Kind”) pursuant to
which the Company agreed to acquire and First Kind agreed
to dispose of 146,140,200 Shares at the total consideration
of HKD560,739,947.40 (the “Share Buy-back”), equivalent to
HKD3.837 per buy-back share.
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The Share Buy-back contemplated under the Share Buy-back
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction (by virtue of
First Kind being a substantial shareholder of the Company) for
the Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore subject
to the approval by the disinterested shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting.

The Board believes that the Share Buy-back is entered into on
normal commercial terms which are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Completion had taken place on 24 April 2017 following the
shareholders’ approval at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 11 April 2017 and fulfillment of the conditions
precedent under the Share Buy-back Agreement. Further
details of the Share Buy-back have been disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 6 February 2017, 11
April 2017 and 24 April 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 20 March 2017.

Save as disclosed above, we had not entered into any
transactions which constitute non-exempt connected
transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules during the
year of 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption on 2 December 2013 for the purpose to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes
as the Board approve from time to time. Subject to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme, the board may, at their absolute
discretion, grant or invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes to take up options to subscribe for shares:
(a) any employee, supplier/service provider, customer,
partner or joint-venture partner of the Group (including any
director, whether executive and whether independent or not,
of the Group) who is in full-time or part-time employment with
the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any person who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total number
of share which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue on the date of Listing
unless the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the Share
Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating 10% limit.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.
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Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay
HKD1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant. The
acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be
made within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company. The exercise period of any option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not be longer than 10
years commencing on the date of grant and expiring on the
last day of such 10-year period subject to the provisions for
early termination as contained in the Share Option Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to issuance of a circular by the Company and
approved by its shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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Details of share options outstanding during the year are as FREBREGREELDT ¢
follows:
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Expired as at 31
1 January during during during during December
2017 theyear theyear theyear the year 2017
R20174F 20174
1A1A8 12A31H
HATE FRARE FRTE FRRK  FRER i RAT
'000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 '000 ‘000
& & & TR TR &
Share options with exercise 1T{{E%6.6478 T
price of HKD6.64 R
Directors E=x
Mr. AN Yubao THERE 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Ms. LI Qian RS+ 6,000 - - - - 6,000
Professor ZHU Quan REHF 1,200 - = = 1,200
Employees B8
In aggregate Mt 8,843 - (492) (821) - 7,530
22,043 = (492) (821) = 20,730
Share options with exercise {TEEE4.01;8TH
price of HKD4.01 R
Directors Bz
Mr. AN Yubao ZHELE 4,000 - - - - 4,000
Ms. LI Qian REL L 4,000 - - - - 4,000
Professor ZHU Quan REHR 2,000 - - - 2,000
Employees B8
In aggregate Mt 39,380 - (1,404) (4,144) - 33,832
49,380 - (1,404) (4,144) - 43,832
71,423 - (1,896) (4,965) - 64,562

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 had a #2017%F12A318 « & K77 8 B #E 0 hn & F
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.6 years. HFBEHNFH AT 65F o
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Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2017 was any of the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or
had exercised any such right.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board of the Company had adopted a Share Award
Scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) on 21 July 2014 as a means
to recognise the contributions by the selected employees and
provide them with incentives in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and attract
suitable personnel for the further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the selected employees
may be granted during the duration of the Share Award
Scheme an award in the form of awarded shares (“Awarded
Shares”). Awarded Shares will be purchased by the trustee
of the Company (“Trustee”) on the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and be held on trust for the
selected employees until such shares are vested on them in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme.
The Board shall not make any further award of Awarded
Shares which will result in the nominal value of the shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Share Award
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2017, 19,798,000 ordinary shares were
held by the Trustee under the Share Award Scheme, among
which 19,698,000 shares were held on behalf of the Company
while the remaining 100,000 shares were held on behalf of
certain employees.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had the following interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, its group members and/or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:
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Approximate

Number and Class Percentage of

Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity of Securities™" Shareholding
EEHE EEHERSH EHHERERO BORERD L
AN Yubao® Beneficial Owner 18,574,817 Shares (L) 2.13 (L)
ZHE? EmEEA 18,574,8178% (L) 2.13 (L)
AN Yubao® Interest of controlled corporation 196,674,000 Shares (L) 22.51 (L)
ZHE® RIEHEE 196,674,0000% (L) 22.51 (L)
Sub-total 215,248,817 Shares (L) 24.64 (L)

NEE 215,248,817/ (L) 24.64 (L)

LI Qian® Beneficial Owner 15,865,261 Shares (L) 1.81 (L)
RE EnEAA 15,865,26 1% (L) 1.81 (L)
LI Qian® Interest of controlled corporation 126,915,000 Shares (L) 14.53 (L)
RE® X A E e o 126,915,0008% (L) 14.53 (L)
Sub-total 142,780,261 Shares (L) 16.34 (L)

NEF 142,780,261% (L) 16.34 (L)

ZHU Quan® Beneficial Owner 3,200,000 Shares (L) 0.37 (L)
KEO EnEBA 3,200,000 (L) 0.37 (L)
CHENG Xinxin Beneficial Owner 2,993,000 Shares (L) 0.34 (L)
R AR EmEEA 2,993,0000% (L) 0.34 (L)
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant associated corporation.

2) Including shares in relation to 10,000,000 Share Options,
10,000,000 Share Options and 3,200,000 Share Options
granted during the year to Mr. AN Yubao, Ms. LI Qian and
Professor ZHU Quan respectively under the Share Option
Scheme adopted on 2 December 2013.

(3) The entire issued share capital of Central Success
Developments Limited (“Central Success”) is owned by Mr.
AN, therefore, Mr. AN is deemed to be interested in all the
shares held by Central Success under the provisions of SFO.
4) The entire issued share capital of Double Grace International
Limited (“Double Grace”) is owned by Ms. LI, therefore, Ms.
Ll is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Double

Grace under the provisions of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, any of its group
members or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the

Directors, the following persons/entities (other than the

Directors or chief executives of the Company) had, or were

deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company, its group members and/

or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

BRREW,#HH

Nature of
Interest and Capacity

EattER 50
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Approximate
Number and Class Percentage of
of Securities” Shareholding (%)

HEBEARERNO BARERD(%)

Guidoz Limited®
Guidoz Limited®
YOUNG Wai Po, Peter®
BER®

Central Success®
RO

Double Grace®

Double Grace®

Far East Horizon Limited®

BEREERRRRO
Grand Light Development
Limited®
RRERBRAFO
Greenwoods Asset
Management Limited®
EMEEBBEARARO®
Greenwoods Asset
Management Holdings
Limited®
EMEEBTEERERA
Unique Element Corp.®
Unique Element Corp.®
JIANG Jinzhi®
BiREo©

Beneficial owner
EnlEBA
Interest of controlled corporation

XEHEE S

Beneficial owner

Em%ﬁﬁ/\

Beneficial owner

EnlEBA

Interest of controlled corporation
EEHDEEER

Interest of controlled corporation

REHEEER

Investment manager

REKE
Interest of controlled corporation

R IR A E

Interest of controlled corporation

REEEER

Interest of controlled corporation

SRR

110,050,000 shares (L) 12.60 (L)
110,050,0000% (L) 12.60 (L)
110,050,000 shares (L) 12.60 (L)
110,050,000% (L) 12.60 (L)
196,674,000 shares (L) 22.51 (L)
196,674,0004% (L) 22.51 (L)
126,915,000 shares (L) 14.53 (L)
126,915,0000% (L) 14.53 (L)
80,585,680 shares (L) 9.22 (L)
80,585,680/% (L) 9.22 (L)
80,585,680 shares (L) 9.22 (L)
80,585,680/% (L) 9.22 (L)
58,154,000 shares (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,0008% (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,000 shares (L) 6.66 (L)

58,154,0000% (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,000 shares (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,000/% (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,000 shares (L) 6.66 (L)
58,154,0000% (L) 6.66 (L)
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(1)

2)

(3)

4)

(%)

(6)
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The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares
of the Company or the relevant group member. The letter
“S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant group member.

The entire issued share capital of Guidoz Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. YOUNG. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
YOUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Guidoz Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Central Success is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. AN. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. AN
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Central

Success.

The entire issued share capital of Double Grace is legally
and beneficially owned by Ms. LI. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. LI
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Double

Grace.

Grand Light Development Limited controls 9.22% of the
Company’s shares through its wholly owned subsidiaries
Energon HK Limited and United Vantage Corporation Limited.
Grand Light Development Limited is wholly owned by Far East
Horizon Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code:3360).

Greenwoods Asset Management Limited controls 6.66% of the
Company’s shares through Golden China Master Fund, Golden
China Plus Master Fund, Greenwoods China Alpha Master
Fund and Greenwoods China Healthcare Master Fund in the
capacity of Manager of the funds. The entire issued share
capital of Greenwoods Asset Management Limited is legally
and beneficially owned by Greenwoods Asset Management
Holdings Limited. Greenwoods Asset Management Holdings
Limited is ultimately owned as to 81% by Unique Element Corp
which is controlled by Mr. JIANG Jinzhi.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors were not aware of any other persons/entities (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company, its group members or associated
corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any
of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group
or has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
completed the Share Buy-back with details as follows:

Number of ordinary

Report of Directors
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B EXHBEEIN  R2017F128318 ' EE 1
TREEMEMAL BB (EERARAEE
THRABBIN REAAR - HREEKE R R]IKAE
BEAE 2 R SARBRD P - HEREES K
EIEBIEXVEE2R3D B2 G ARMA QB KR
ZREDZRAR  KERABREESRBEEE
33BIEARARBTFEMNELMARERIAR ©

HRERAZEHR
REZE2017F12A31HIEFE  IEE S K
NAZERBERFEMREES BB EAREEAK
& (B S TSR AR B 1] B AK 5 T A (R (R ZE A B B AR
SEAEMEMFIZEEZE -

BE - HERWEARQAFT LHES

REE2017F12831B IEEE » AR AIE T
R EEE - FHIBImT

shares of HKDO0.10 each Price per Aggregate
Month of repurchase of the Company share consideration paid
AABRBREE
e A5 0.10BTHEBRHE BRE® 2 ERE
HKD HKD’000 RMB’000
BT FHET AR®BTT
April 2017 146,140,200 3.837 560,740 495,246
201744 R

Further details of the Share Buy-back (including the reasons
for making the Share Buy-back) were disclosed in the
paragraph “Connected Transactions” above in this annual
report and in the Company’s announcements dated 6 February
2017, 11 April 2017 and 24 April 2017, and the Company’s
circular dated 20 March 2017.

EERNBLROOE - LB (BEETROHER
MERE) BE&RAAF A HAR2017F2H6H -
2017F4A11H %2017F4F24H 2 R ERAR
AIAHIA2017F3 208 2 BIHAHE -
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In November 2017, the Company placed 43,585,680 shares
(with aggregate nominal value of HK$4,358,568) to United
Vantage Corporation Limited (a subsidiary of Far East Horizon
Limited (HKEX stock code: 3360), at the placing price of
HK$6.60 per share (closing price per share as at 3 November
2017: HK$7.20) (the “Placing”). The net proceeds from the
Placing were approximately HK$284,439,000, which are
expected to be utilised for general working capital and future
investment of the Group as and when opportunities arise but
no specific investment targets have been identified yet as
at the date of this annual report. Far East Horizon Limited
is a leading innovative financial services organization with
investments in different industries, including medical and
healthcare. Currently it has invested in many hospitals in
the PRC, which are potential strategic partners/customers of
the Group. The Directors consider the Placing represents an
opportunity to raise capital for the Company while broadening
the shareholder base and capital base of the Company and
enhancing the strategic relationship between the Group and
Far East Horizon Limited. As at the date of this report, the net
proceeds from the Placing has been used as general working
capital of the Group. For details of the Placing (including the
reasons for the Placing), please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 3 November 2017 and 25 October 2017.

In December 2017, the Company issued a total of 1,895,700
ordinary shares pursuant to employees’ exercise of share
options granted under Share Option Scheme (adopted on 2
December 2013).

Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeem any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

JiE]
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporative activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in
force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance when the
Report of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on
pages 35 to 52 in this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Wednesday, 30
May 2018. Shareholders should refer to details regarding the
annual general meeting in the circular of the Company to be
issued in due course and the notice of the annual general
meeting and form of proxy accompanying thereto.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 30 May 2018, the Company’s register of members
will be closed from Thursday, 24 May 2018 to Wednesday,
30 May 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all completed
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 May
2018.

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the final
dividend, the Company’s register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 5 June 2018 to Friday, 8 June 2018 (both days
inclusive). In order to qualify for the entitlements to the final
dividend, all completed transfers documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 4 June 2018.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG, is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By order of the Board
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited

AN Yubao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Consun Pharmaceutical Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 86 to
207, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman
Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FAEFTFIHEEREBERFINEZHE @ RAEHK
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HIGAMEBRERNENZAEENETH EHE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These EREERMPIEFELEAMBEHRRLEES B
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EFTERIER - BT Y ELEEIEHEBFNS
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming &

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements
WATER - BHELH

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 120.
BRMGR A BIREN Z2RE 1208 A9 E7HBE °

The Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANES N AEEZSE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of pharmaceutical | Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
products to a large number of distributors | revenue from distributor arrangements included the

throughout Mainland China. following:
WATFZEERPEAERZMRZEEEMHEEER - | HAIMTAERRELCHBLENRANETEFBEAT

Each year, the Group enters into standardised

agreements with its distributors setting out
the key terms of the distribution arrangements
(“Distributor Agreements”), including the terms
of delivery and policies for sales rebates and
sales returns. Purchase orders are then placed
with the Group and products are delivered to the
location designated by the distributor, at which
point the risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods are considered to have been transferred to
the distributor and revenue is recognised.
EEEDFRAKHEEIVERELHE BT HT
R ((REHHE]) N 2GRF > BEIMMNKE
FARHERNRIHERENBEK - KIEFHES
M EEBTERBITE  MEMUIINEHETH
BoER EmEAENERKOREHERSCEE
THEBL R R D ERER o

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls which govern revenue
recognition;

AHEE IR E R E W AR BV RR R A SR EL MY RR T B
TREERMIL

inspecting Distributor Agreements, on a sample
basis, to understand the terms of the sales
transactions, including the terms of delivery,
applicable rebates and sales return arrangements
and to assess the Group’s revenue recognition
criteria with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
MERECHERE - UWEREEXINER (B
R ERRMNEHERETHERNIRR) - ARE2E
RITEFHERNRETE SRENHWRAMERIRE
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BREER (A7)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

WATER  EHEBHLH (E)

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 120.

BRI E BB A2RE 120 S5 HE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from
distributor arrangements as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.
BMRRERRELEB LN ABEARETF
B RARKAT EXBEHEHP - KBRIBESZ
U7 & I B 1 1 W R A B S LA IE B F B AR Bk
HASE ) [E A L

for a sample of revenue transactions recorded
just before and after the year end, inspecting the
related goods delivery notes, which had been
signed by the distributors as evidence of their
receipt of the goods, to assess if the related
revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms of sale
as set out in the Distributor Agreements and the
terms of the purchase orders;
HAFRFLEBAEARNBRARSERAMS » RE
HENERRXNERE (EHKHEZEE - (EAHIE
EmiER) U HEERAREERELHEHET
% P8 EH & 1 0 MR BB 5T B A IR0 8 2 10 B B
MR

for a sample of sales rebates recorded during the
year, comparing the details of the bases of the
rebate calculations and the rebate ratios with the
terms of the underlying Distributor Agreements
and comparing the rebate bases (e.g. the sales
amounts settled during the year) to sub-ledgers
and underlying bank remittances, cheques, bills
and other payment slips (where applicable);
HFAARNHERMNERT S - LLBURMEETEE
e MR R ) G AR S SR B AV IR - AR
HEOTNeRER (WFANEENHESRE) B8
REBENRTER  XT - FHERKEMRKE
(@A)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETER (&)

WATER  EHEFLH (E)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements (Continued)

BRI A EHERN A2 RE 120 S5 HE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 120.

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify significant credit notes issued
and sales returns and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for
in the appropriate financial period in accordance
with the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards; and
BEFHEBEEHEE D HARNABAIE % H e REIR
BERMHERE - URRERBE ST AT E SR AL
THHEERBRRGERBRITEAEANRENEE
BTSRRI A ARR © &

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BERBEAANHBAEHNERAFHE - MER
BEAELEERRNRE R B AR5 EAER
e
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Recoverability of trade receivables
B 5B IE /Y AT Bl

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 113.

FRHG S BEREN T 18RE11BANEETHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

As at 31 December 2017 the carrying value
of the Group’s net trade receivables totalled
RMB575,192,000, which included an allowance
for doubtful debts of RMB1,476,000.
R2017512A31H - BEEEEZEUENER
BErFEES £ R ARKS75192,0007T - HFBEXR
AR AR #1,476,0007T ©

The Group’s allowance for doubtful debts
is based on management’'s estimate of the
recoverability of individual trade receivables with
reference to the ageing of overdue balances,
repayment histories of individual debtors, existing
customer-specific and market conditions and the
fulfilment of repayment arrangements agreed with
specific debtors.
ESEENRERENIUERESZaERKRE « @
MEBANERESE - BEZPFM RIS KR
BIEFEBARENERLZHNBITIE R @R Z
5 WA VE R B A 5T REEE o

Management is required to apply judgement
in assessing the allowance for doubtful debts
for individual trade receivables. The ability of
the debtors to repay the Group depends on
customer-specific and market conditions which
involves inherent uncertainty.

IR BAN AHEE R E 5 R WK IR H) R BR A B A0 A
HE - EBHBAR BEEEEFRNENEARETFFE
RissihAmE  EPESERTHARE -

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability of
trade receivables included the following:
BT EE S EYRIARN AT B BT IR F A TR

obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and the calculation
of the allowance for doubtful debts;
TEREFEREEES  WERAERREEHETEN
RABR BRI RAT - BT REER UL

assessing the classification of individual
balances in the trade receivables ageing report
by comparing the details of individual items with
underlying invoices on a sample basis;
FEMELLRERIEENFERERER  FTHES
JE WK IE BR e 5 MBI R A SRV D JRIE R

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management's judgements about the
recoverability of individual overdue balances and
evaluating the allowance for doubtful debts made
by management for these individual balances
with reference to the industry in which the debtors
are operating, the ageing of overdue balances,
historical and post year-end payment records and
repayment arrangements agreed with specific
debtors. This included inspecting relevant
correspondence with individual debtors;

TRRE IR [E A A ME R 80 BR A% R BT A [0 14 A ) e EEE
NRBEEBAREMETR  BHEREEK EL
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETER (&)

Recoverability of trade receivables (Continued)
B ENSER AR EE (&)

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 113.

FRHGEE R BEREN T 18RE1IBHENEETHE -

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

We identified the recoverability of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because of
the inherent uncertainty in assessing if trade
receivables will be recovered in full and because
the assessment of the allowance for doubtful
debts requires the exercise of management
judgement.
BARAEZRKFIANATKRE BT FEE
REARFERFNES TAAEZE (8 5 BRI/
BENE) IRBREGNTETETEEITR AL -

° assessing the historical accuracy of the estimates
made by the management for the allowance for
doubtful debts by comparing the allowance made
by the management as at 31 December 2016
with the actual new provisions, write offs and
recoveries in respect of trade receivables as at
31 December 2016 during the current year; and

. FRLBREEER2016F12A31BEL KRR B
HEARFENBRINERS  MERER2016512H31
BB SRKFBEANKEIHRIE  FHEEEERR
BREHEPEMFTRELERE &

° comparing cash receipts from debtors
subsequent to the financial year end relating to
trade receivable balances at 31 December 2017
with bank statements and relevant underlying
documentation on a sample basis.

J BB FEFERERREBAKEDNR S (BR
201712 AB1 BN E SR INFIAE KA R) BIRTTH
R B AR S ETT IR EL B ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By 2R HRE

BREER (A7)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark

FFEEEREMENEE —BRNEERE

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 109.

RS EREN T 128134 R E 1098 IS5 °

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

As a result of the acquisition by the Group of
Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Yulin Pharmaceutical Group”) in 2016, the
Group recognised goodwill of RMB320,647,000
and other intangible assets — trademark of
RMB256,233,000, respectively, as at 31
December 2017.

B BEEER06FHEEAEMNHEESLH
EREEQRAREMBAR (MBI EMRES
®]) E£ER2017F12A31B 2RI EA
R #320,647,000t R Bt B EE—HIEARE
256,233,0007T °

Management identified other intangible assets
— trademark as intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives, and performed impairment testing on
goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark
annually whether or not there were any indications
of impairment.
ERECHHEMBEVEE—RRINREAERAIER
FHNEVEE TREFHFELAMELEE—
BETRENR UEAETEATRETERR
B °

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment
of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark
included the following:

Bt A EREMELEE— BN EERENEIE
FrBIEANERF

evaluating management’s impairment assessment
model, including the identification of and the
allocation of goodwill and other intangible assets
— trademark to the Relevant CGU with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

AHEERERRENGEER - BE2ERTEER
MRETHREREMETLEE—ARNHMN LD
B

evaluating the competence, experience, capability
and objectivity of the external valuer engaged
by management to perform the calculation of the
recoverable amounts of the goodwill and other
intangible assets — trademark;
FEEEEMZERYBERAMETLEE—BIZN
A e BETHENINBEEMNERE - K5 - 8
VARIIES SR
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BY 2R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

REFETER (&)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark (Continued)

AR ERAMENEE B EHERE (&)

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 109.

RS EREN T 128 13X R E 1098 IS5 R °

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

Management allocated goodwill and other
intangible assets - trademark to the cash
generating unit of Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
(“Relevant CGU”). Management engaged an
external valuer to assess the recoverable amount
of the Relevant CGU using the value in use
method by preparing a discounted cash flow
forecast derived from the most recent financial
forecast approved by the management covering a
five-year period.
EREEHRERAEMBETNEE—BESKEEME
ZEENReEASN ((HMEREELEM]) - B2
BEZE—RINEGEM - NERGRAEEELYAE
ReELBMNA KOS EETIE  HERKEE
BESENSCERAMGIERN ORERLFHHE) SHH
R\ RETEA -

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
Relevant CGU involves significant management
estimation and judgement, in particular in
determining the key assumptions adopted in the
cash flow forecast, which include future revenue,
future cost of sales, other operating expenses,
and the discount rate applied.

RN e ES EM A AL @ AT REXH
EIREEAMAG - FHIRETHESRERARRM
BERERER - HPBEARKRKA - RREEKS - B
A& X e A HTIR K o

challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast,
including future revenue, future cost of sales,
and other operating expenses, by comparing
relevant data with the financial budget which
was approved by the management, and by
comparison with historical performance of the
Relevant CGU and our knowledge of the business
of Group;

HIFRB e RERAPRANBRMAT RRE (B
BREAREBA - RREEXRRREME L) I2H

BRE - IR R L EAERE SR S IR AR B 5 TR
B ARLCERARMIR S E 4 B A A £ R IR E A

‘i
ZF

BB EIEORE -

comparing the data in discounted cash flow
forecast prepared in the prior year with the current
year's performance to assess how accurate the
prior year’'s discounted cash flow forecasts was
and making enquiries of management as to the
reasons for any significant variations identified;
LR EFHIERRER @R ETRB A EIREARFRE -
N AEFHRRENEBARE R WNEEE
BHREAPTEAIEANRERIRAR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
By 2R HRE

BREER (A7)

Assessing potential impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets — trademark (Continued)

AR ERAMEREE B EHERE (&)

Refer to note 12 and note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 109.

RS EREN T 128134 R E 1098 IS5 °

The Key Audit Matter
BREENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANETOMEEZEE

We identified the assessment of potential
impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets — trademark as a key audit matter because
determining the level of impairment, if any,
involves a significant degree of management
judgement, which can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BT EEEREMEYEE— RS BERED
REAREGTEE  REREEREKT (10E) » Kk
EXRREENEEEHE BT HFEEETHREMN - I
AREXIEEERAZRNTE -

of the prevailing accounting standards.

— TR TR BB AR -

engaging our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external valuer
in the preparation of the discounted cash flow
forecast with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards, and assessing
whether discount rate applied in the discounted
cash flow forecast was within the range adopted
by other companies in the same industry;
S2ERTEAENNRE  TEABEEZRBEIF
FIRHAE SN AR L E R P AR AT IR & IR B T8I R Y
HERE WEFEIRRSRERTEMBNITER
EEBRNEMFRIZERFRANEER

performing a sensitivity analysis of key
assumptions, including future revenue growth
rates, future gross margins and the discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecast
and considering the resulting impact on the
impairment testing and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of
these key assumptions; and

HARBR (BERRBRAEZRE - RREN KR
BReRETRATEBOITER) ETEREIN -
WERHLEBREIREENTERIEZSZERR
REEEFEEMAERBRENTR : &

considering the disclosures in the financial
respect of management’s
impairment assessments of goodwill and other
intangible assets — trademark allocated to the
Relevant CGU with reference to the requirements

statements in

SLERTRAENNRE - ZEYBHRRTEEEE
BT EERERSELEUNBEREMELEE
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

82 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNESEEFRAF]

REMBREREZBEREUINER

EEFHHMESAR - H0EEBENHRE
BANZHER  BTIEREEE B HRR LM
Mz RED IR & -

BPEGREMBREANELL TREREMESR -
BT EZEEMEERRREAMANERS

BERMBGEAMBHRERNES - RANEER
BIEEMER  HIBREY  ZEEMESES
B AP BHRRARMERHEBETRTENIE
MEFEERBEREUTFFEERHERBLNE
oo EREMERTHIE  REMBAEM
ERFHEERERRL  RMAFEREZEE -
HEAE  BFPLA TSRS -

EERGeMBHRRAKENER

EXARARBEREMAERTN(ELM
BamEER) kBB (CRBIERD) B E 2 k5t
EEMPENEEMBRE  XHERBRELR
B BHROBE T FE BN IEF R M S 2
MEASERRAFMFHOANMLENEE

ERESAMBHRERE EFRETM E5E
FEREMRE N YHEBABATREEIFEL
EEHNEE UREAKELERSER
BRIFEEERER BEEEBRIFILEE - K7l
BEEMBERNERIR -

EZZESMESRRTEE &
mi@%ﬂ’:miff °

EE 0P b



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHERE

BREBMBES M BRRAENES

BANBER  REGEVBHRABEBEL IR
MR AFF B RME R EAERRANEG A E
RiE - THABERHEMEROXEMEBE - &M
EEMEBRRRBE o BRI RAHRED
AREEMAR - RABMTIRARENAT - &
ERAEMATREIOREEREL -
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£ mREERHACMEBRERRERAETE
RAEMBRREMREXBYBHRERMAELOLE
RTE - BB BRI AT R RIEERX -

ERBC(EBEFTELD) ETEANBRESR - &
TEERTHEXHE - (REFTHEXEERREE - HM
DINE

—  BAIMFEARRFFRERMERERA R
BRRFEERFERBAWER - R K
WITRTEF AL ELAR - A RER
RRMBEENENERE  EREMEREDN
Hit - HRMGFAIRES NBR B &
BAER - ERRA - SO ERARRESZ
o R REHRRRARFMERMEAE
AR Rt B [ e 1 A 7 B 3% R R 8 R T S 3N
HIE K SRR PRy R o

- THRERTHBORNEES - ARFHEE
MESEF  BENYIEY BEEENE
ZHIHNBERMERRER -
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- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2017F12A31HILFE (RARK25)

2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBFIT

Revenue WA 2 1,660,230 1,223,488
Cost of sales SHEA (431,835) (312,465)
Gross profit ER 1,228,395 911,023
Other income E A 3 35,102 6,104
Distribution costs PaN =) DN (540,264) (374,365)
Administrative expenses TR (163,497) (141,666)
Profit from operations R A 559,736 401,096
Finance costs B TS BN 4(a) (14,754) (1,509)
Share of profit of an associate FE(EES & N B0 Al - 3,865
Profit before taxation Fi BT A 4 544,982 403,452
Income tax Fristi 5(a) (123,162) (83,795)
Profit for the year FREF 421,820 319,657
Attributable to: U AT HEAE -

— Equity shareholders of the Company — AR AR 396,242 307,526

- Non-controlling interests — RIS 25,578 12,131
Profit for the year FRREF 421,820 319,657
Earnings per share (RMB yuan) BREFN (AR%R) 8

- Basic —ER 0.4602 0.3205

— Diluted — s 0.4570 0.3204

The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 25(b).
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
REBRmREMZENER

for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BHZE2017F12A31BIEFE (UARKZS)

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETT

Profit for the year FRREF 421,820 319,657

Other comprehensive income for the year HE&WiEEHmosBEFTEEN

that may be reclassified subsequently FREMEEE :

to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of aEiarhiE A\ REFIE ([HE])

financial statements of operations RN TS B B 7S R R A9

outside the People’s Republic of China EHZER - NERHIE

(the “PRC”), net of tax (13) 150
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2HEEEXE 421,807 319,807
Attributable to: AR AL :

— Equity shareholders of the Company — RAB) AR 396,229 307,676

— Non-controlling interests — PR RS 25,578 12,131
Total comprehensive income for the year FREAWNEEEE 421,807 319,807

The notes on page 93 to 207 form part of these financial H$93E EF2078 2 Wit A% SHBMER AR
statements. BRip -
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Consolidated statement of financial position

mE PRI R

as at 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)

A2017FE12A318 (UAREZ73))

2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment property KEYE 9 17,876 18,552
Other property, plant and equipment EME - MENMEE 10 400,797 392,882
Lease prepayments HETERKRIE 11 132,777 86,006
Intangible assets mILEE 12 460,215 489,629
Goodwill RS 13 320,647 320,647
Other investments Hx & 14 2,600 2,600
Other prepayments HEMFEA R 16 17,740 40,400
Deferred tax assets BLEFIREE 24(c) 34,714 18,334
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 1,387,366 1,369,050

Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 17 200,001 140,974
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H Atb fE YR IR 18 995,085 576,320
Cash and cash equivalents BHekIBEE&EEIER 19 989,565 672,711
Total current assets MBEEHAE 2,184,651 1,390,005

Current liabilities nEBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAFEFIR 20 679,722 483,252
Loans and borrowings ERRER 21 193,621 -
Deferred income PRIz 22 1,554 1,346
Current taxation BVARF 3K 24(a) 95,336 62,133
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 970,233 546,731
Net current assets REBEEFEE 1,214,418 843,274
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRBARE 2,601,784 2,212,324

The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e MIARR R

as at 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)

MN2017FE12A318 (UAREZ73)

2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET T ARBFIT
Non-current liabilities FkREBEE
Loans and borrowings BERRAEK 21 374,483 =
Deferred income EEW 22 20,741 21,603
Deferred tax liabilities RLEHIBEE 24(c) 142,412 129,670
Total non-current liabilities FRBABEHRE 537,636 151,273
Net assets BEEFE 2,064,148 2,061,051
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A% A 25(c) 68,652 76,237
Reserves G 25(d) 1,678,036 1,684,257
Total equity attributable to equity AATEEBREGERALE
shareholders of the Company 1,746,688 1,760,494
Non-controlling interests RS 317,460 300,557
Total equity RS 2,064,148 2,061,051

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 21 March 2018.

AN Yubao
ZHE
Chairman
EF

The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.

R2018F 3 A21 B EEF oL M RIRHET) 3 -

LI Qian
BE

Executive Director

HITEE

207AEZMERZEMBRRMANK

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 “FE#HE 89



ty

in equi

SRS EHE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HE2017F12A31B ILFE (AARKBE75)
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Consolidated statement of changes
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Consolidated cash flow statement

IIV_\ é IH ﬁsﬁ % 13«%

for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE2017F12A31HILFE (RARK25)

2017 2016
20174 20164
Note RMB’000 RI\/I)B'OOO
k=3 ARMTF T ARBTIT
Operating activities KR
Cash generated from operations KEEBATRIRE 19(b) 345,720 511,318
PRC income tax paid B B TS AR 24(a) (93,597) (62,141)
Net cash generated from K& RS
operating activities REFE 252,123 449 177
Investing activities RETE
Interest received 2 UWF B 3,469 22,088
Net cash acquired through acquisition H&E%Mq‘%@?ﬁ SIS
of subsidiaries, net of cash paid MBS AHIRE - 165,647
Payment for interest in an associate TR — ML A R AR - (31,612)
Payment for purchase of other BB HMYIZE - HE R
property, plant and equipment HERRIE (54,969) (25,028)
Payment for leasehold land HE TR (9,477) (40,400)
Proceeds received from disposal Eﬂﬂlﬂjgﬁﬁ R 5 &
of property, plant and equipment R AEPT1S FUR 928 293
Net cash (used in)/generated from REETE (FrH),Fris
investing activities HEFE (60,049) 91,888
Financing activities AESEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FIGIRITE RS RIA 19(c) 653,707
Repayments of bank loans RITEFENE 19(c) (59,066) (90,000)
Proceeds from shares issued *ETEE%HXT}EH%J?’V‘{:I
under share option scheme AR 1 &) FT 45 503 4,620 =
Proceeds from shares issuance ﬂﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’( 239,751 -
Dividends paid to equity E1‘JL$ 7*&
shareholders of the Company [REL: 0L (173,231) (114,512)
Dividends paid to [RANE S Hﬂ%f}&
non-controlling interests holders BEANBKE (10,758) =
Finance costs paid [RANEUEL I 19(c) (24,020) (1,509)
Payment for repurchase of shares A I |
which were subsequently cancelled R 1D #9320 (505,716) (81,132)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y& JEF AR 25 - (147,367)
Proceeds of capital injection from JEIERERIFE A
non-controlling interests holders &SI 2,838 76,179
Net cash generated from/ BMEEBE,(FTA)
(used in) financing activities EHEeFE 128,125 (358,341)
Net increase in cash and ReNBESEEEEN
cash equivalents R R 320,199 182,724
Cash and cash equivalents MA1ENEER
at 1 January HEZEER 672,711 489,987
Effect of foreign exchange ExgEE
rate changes (3,345) -
Cash and cash equivalents M12A31HMNEER
at 31 December HEZEEE 989,565 672,711
The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these financial H93E EF2078 2 Wi A% S HHREROAK
statements. &1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial

Interpretations

statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in
associates.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi ("“RMB”),
the nearest thousand, which is the functional

rounded to

currency of the subsidiaries carrying out the
principal activities of the Group.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

1 BEAREFTEE
(a) BHREH
ZEPBRERBEFREERNE

AUBHREENRE - HES KK
BREBGIMAGRMONMAEE
AWEREEMBREER - &
AR EANRE  UARBBAR
SR RAIREE SR ARSI 8B
BHRE  REWBHRERNTTEEE
BAERSMBERARES EMRA
(TEWRAL) EREEGEX - &
SEFMERANBERNGTEERR TX
B -

BEGTMAGEEME TRARE
BIR1T AT EARE B R A R AT 4R
BRANFE] RBIER] BBV R
HEER o B EE1(c) B RN A& 5 H
Bl EeTMRERNEEEHL
B % F M % R A R BR ) 1] 2 FE
AZEFERMEBNEMEBR
HERFLER

MBRROEREE

HE2017F12A318 L FE ML
AU BRREEARAREMNBER
A (GBATEAEHE] UERAEHE
NN

(b)

REPBERRAARE [ARE])
25 YHEEFRFOLTT - AR
BREEAEEIZEBHMBER
AR R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

1

94 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNESEAFRAF]

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the available-for-sale equity
securities stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policy set out in note 1(g).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

1

EXREHEE (&)

(b)

MBHRNEREE (&)

WA BREAERANFEEER
B SRR AR - ] E AR AR
FAR R EIIRERSN (WA EE1(g)
PREl & st BRMA) -

“ﬁ

REBMBERE LR REM B
FREEEFEHLHE - AEFRR
CREFHE - B RBERER
ERRERARFA2BNEE
BfE - WERAXER - ZEFMHE
MEBARRDENBELRNIESR
ABEATHEREENSTEEMEA
= MATBERBKREH SRR

EABEBHEMKRESNHAREE
E@Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ?ﬁ% BRERE
BRIRNZEMAET -

%"S%ﬁ

N

ZEHET MEARRESEEN -
i @At BT ESERERT A
HREETE  NBMESEX
HE AR G FHARTHIERT
HEBLARRPRHEETE 8
SR ZAEET B MR SR B A

EHEERERBEAY B REE
AISATEM S B RREEATE
B H R Ko fh Rt N EEE M EAROR
29 MRt



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. None
of these impact on the accounting policies of
the Group. However, additional disclosure has
been included in note 19(c) to satisfy the new
disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative, which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

1 EXETEE (&)
(c) BFBEX2H

EEEMASERMZREEE
MBmEENNERT M FE
ARAKENASSHBMBEERLE
W o ZFEEHANEENSHBR
WELE - AT ARBERME
19C)BHABINEE  ATFAEER
SRTEUETRET A RERE
= WBERESI AT HRERTE
REEFTANERE B HEM R
REMEENTERERTDAEE
MEBEEFNREERN  BERE
MELNEB LIRS ES -

AR AR A FT AT RIS

LRf- NGV E S e £

MEBAREASEIZEHNER - K
SEFARBARESEEROER
DEHEEQMR - BHENTES
ERMEIMEZEXSTO®RE - A
KB ESH EREBESE -
AHAARSREE SR AT - 2
ZEAKEREMTHEN) B
HHER -

(d)

RH B AR RENMES RN E
BELILEARESHFARENH
HERA - RERNDBIROER X
ZRBERAREEARRHER
25 FITEE £ BN AR R R B8 3R I s 3
REMBHRRETEEE - WML E
HEBENS  SEARAXRBENR
PIEEMARBHEBRRBRE
B e R 7 UK o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

1
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(m)).

1

EXREHEE (&)

(d)

ML RIFERER (F)

FERERENNE AT LIE
EREERBARARNES  MA
SEYEMRZFESNFTEA
% EE M EBBIMER  BEAKH
EERTaemAETERNZFE
SAREANEME - AR EBEHM
5 AKERERZ QA BERILIE
AR RS G P B A R E) AT BRI B
FFER L BIET EE IR

FFEBRE RN AR B M FIR LR AV
BAZS - BARFERRREN
BRI - NREBEENIE
ERER - DRERBEERIES
B hEMEEKRERATIR I
1E R FEIR AR MM s B AN A B M R AX
REGFRNEGZEBRL2HKRELR
B —EDEREE -

AEBNMBRATNEZED i
NS BERAIESIRE - RIAERER
FARR - WIRIL B4R A s P R
RIFZERBENTRBERE - UK
RIBFAMEDRZE T SHAER
BRERWERERE

RARRNBMBIRRERS - DU B
REIMIR B LKARRE R RS
(2BEIMIEE1(m)) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
or Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see notes 1(f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

1 EREFEE (&)
(e) HEAT

BENREAEEXAREHER

2 ) - B B sl R
HEEBZH (PESENEREE
RE) HERS ©

REEE DRI E R VR HRE
FUAEREARR o« RIBEZRE - &
B REANRE - WA EEE
ERRERATKBEE AAIHRAIEE
SFER A B 1R E A AN ]
i (A) (ELFHE - L& - Z
BREREAEBEMERIRERRE
EFEOERKEBENEE REZ
2E (2 E1(HRmM) BEH
EREEEELAZE - WEE A
A EA D - NREBFRA
BRI E R RIRBEMH B EE
I RERBREBEREEGEBERA
BR - MASEEGFRERTIK
BN EEME2EREEB RER
ARBEREMEEKSERAER

ERNEEEMHE A AREBEBESE
PRAGHERR R - ZR SR (B B0 4 2 S ORk >
ﬁ%’ﬁﬂ%iﬁmﬁ—igﬁ'
HERHAEBEEEEZENHETEER
F - B RERWRE QAT HAR
Hho BRIt E - ANEE AT A
RRERETERENERERE &
AEE BB AEEREE R
AR EFREN RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

1
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(m)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale)).

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(Q)).

1

EXREHEE (&)

(e)

BERTE (&)

AEBEEEBENFETRIZME
ERRER GNRER - AURE
BRI E R A RS IS - MR
HECHEHBREERENAZERER
NEUR - HEURBERT @ RIRER
MENERERR ©

RARBMABAREKS - DB
REIMIR B IR ARUR BB 1RSI R
(2BM&E1(m)) » BRIEZIRE DT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the

consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the Group’s previously

held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
or groups of cash

generating units, that is expected to benefit from

cash-generating unit,

the synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit

or loss on disposal.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

1 BEXREBEE (&)
n mw=
BB T IIMENERE
(i) FEERRENAAE  RW
WEENTMIFERESS

R AEE RN EE
KENERAABENEN

EaS

(i) WHRBENAHNEERE

BERWEE BsrEm A EE
HEE o
B (i) RPA() R - Bl B H EhkE BB
RIERERAZEBREE R -

PR ERR AR 2R EE B R -
RAEBEHELENBESIRES
ETEEA O] 2R A HH5 R = /9 3R
CELBMSRSELBMNMER
YegFETRENR (2EWFE
1(m)) °

FRARERSELBEME  BAR
éﬁﬁ’]&ﬂﬁ(ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ‘éﬁ\ﬂj%lﬁ B
MEBEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are
as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in equity securities which do not
fall into investments in securities held for trading
or held-to-maturity securities are classified as
available-for-sale securities. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and
whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(m)).

When the investments are derecognised or
impaired (see note 1(m)), the cumulative gain
or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to
profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the group commits to
purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

1

EXREHEE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

()

Investment property

Investment properties are land and buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(I)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost. The cost of a purchased investment
property comprises its purchases price and
any direct attributable expenditures. Investment
properties are accounted for using the cost
model and stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(m)). The cost
of investment property, less its estimated residual
value and accumulated impairment losses, is
depreciated using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful lives as follows.

o Land use right 57 years

° Buildings 6 years

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(m)):

- Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as
held under operating leases (see note
1(1)); and

= Other items of plant and equipment.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

1 BEREFEE (&£)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0

Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion

- Machinery and equipment 5-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
= Office equipment 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(k)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. Because of the nature of the Group’s
research and development activities, the criteria
for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development
stage of the project when the remaining
development costs are immaterial. Hence both
research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(m)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use or date of acquisition, whichever is shorter
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Patents 8-13 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Lease assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Lease assets (Continued)

(ii)

(m)
()

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under
an operating lease is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and
other receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more

of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

AAREIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists,

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an

equity instrument below its cost.

any

impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

106 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEABRAA

For investments in associates
accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note
1(m)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

1(m)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not
reversed.

For trade and other current
receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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ARE SRR Y o
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(BB EHI -

1

108 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEABRAA

AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly,
except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)
(ii)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- investment property;

- other property, plant and equipment;

- lease prepayments;

- intangible assets;

= goodwill;

- interest in an associate; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and

(iD)).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 EXREHEE (&)

(B BEHI -

AAREIITR)

(m) ¥EREE)

(ii)

(iii)

At ZEBE (&)

e EVGRET SR

B AIN B E
5 AREE AT
Bl & H AT HRA
FEE - AIEERE
B8 - BREEEAR
BEEETTEE -

BEBEREERR
HAEBEFEIL RE
RAEEERKREE
EWMEEREME-
Rl (875 18 185 12 7 e R
RO EEA AR
%o

HRIRI & R R E

BIE LR - NEBER
MREEENEAREFE
&S g 5 2 B 345 + &
B T R A5 4R E /O P HR B 7 R
A ER B B 2 R T P FR B AR
EARER R - R REE
A1 (R RE(m)(i) R (i) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE&HE 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost
are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only
at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

()

(a)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 1(m)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value and are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost
of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the
binomial tree model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it
is included in the amount recognised in
share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly
to retained profits).
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(1)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax
liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to

realise the current tax assets and

settle the current tax liabilities on

a net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

(ii)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are
earned.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are initially recognised as deferred
income and subsequently recognised
as other income in profit or loss over the
useful life of the assets.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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AAREIITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacturing and sales of pharmaceutical
products.

The amount of each significant category of
revenue is as follows:
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2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Kidney medicines Bm 82 814,926 734,476
Contrast medium Ealsdcll 119,831 125,033
Orthopedics medicines &Rl ) 224,334 100,793
Dermatologic medicines N E R EEY) 220,995 110,854
Hepatobiliary medicines FFARZEY) 102,515 34,724
Women and children medicines 7 8 110,320 80,066
Others Hi 67,309 37,542
1,660,230 1,223,488
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2 WARDEHRE (&)

(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) WA (#E)

Revenue from major customers contributing over REBRMASERABIREI0%HE
10% of the revenue of the Group, is as follows, EREHWA (BERANEBESFE
including sales to entities which are known to the HZERPEIHRES 2 EEEL

Group to be under common control with these RHE) IR :

customers:

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Customer A X EH 384,087 338,430
Customer B BEZ 234,280 141,510
(b) Segment reporting (b) AEE|E

The Group manages its businesses by product AREREmBRERRARE - AR
lines. In a manner consistent with the way in BE 25T 5IRmER RS - K
which information is reported internally to the SR AR5 i E R K AHE R IR
Group’s most senior executive management BHmAARERSTRERAS
for the purposes of resource allocation and RERRE SR T A B2 -

performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments.

= Consun Pharmaceutical Segment: this
segment manufactures and sells modern
Chinese medicines and medical contrast
medium.

- Yulin Pharmaceutical Segment: this

segment manufactures and sells traditional
Chinese medicines.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following

bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from
the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However,
other than reporting inter-segment sales
of pharmaceutical products, assistance
provided by one segment to another,
including sharing of assets and technical
know-how, is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is gross profit. The Group’s senior
executive management is provided with
segment information concerning segment
revenue and gross profit. Segment assets
and liabilities are not reported to the
Group’s senior executive management
regularly.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEHI -

AAREIITR)

2  WARZBHEE (F)
(b) EE/E (&)

(i)

DERE BERAE

RS D BRI R D 5P HE
PERER  AEERRTH
EEABRBEATEEER
ER2MOBREEHELS -
BERBE:

WARRSX RS REZED
BREE £ A 3H B B X B S 3Rk
ENBRIGEET E NN

EENRX  PEZER2]
D EB o PR - BR 2D HBME
MZEREEIN - — (@D ERR

B—EAnSIRENTE (B
BHEEELBMEMNM
#) B R FUASEE o

E

REFHRD EBREFIOIEE R
EH o AEBEREEERE
RHEBBS BRARENE
o nHEERABRERL
ERAEEEREEETH
bE % -

N
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IIV_\é/E\ZI-i%ﬁ%%I}H-%I

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

2 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2

WARDB®RSE (&)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ABHE (&)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) 7E¥EE BEEREE ()
(Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s B 220174 K20165F12 A
reportable segments as provided to S1BLFE  AORERK
the Group’s most senior executive &1 i 0 2P 2R IR 1 [ AN 5 B &%
management for the purposes of resource SITHEIEASRHHARE
allocation and assessment of segment B R 23w H 02 E R E S 0
performance for the years ended 31 o
December 2017 and 2016 is set out below.
Consun Yulin
Pharmaceutical Pharmaceutical
Segment Segment Total
BERED B EMBEES I st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 20164 2017F 20164F 20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETTT ARSTR ARETT ARSTR ARETT
Note
BiEE
Reportable segment T 2H2H
revenue WA
Revenue from external 2K 5 5paf
customers EEHBA 1,060,505 946,140 599,725 277,348 1,660,230 1,223,488
Reportable segment T 27 5B
profit Al
Gross profit e 848,253 748,798 380,142 162,225 1,228,395 911,023
Note: Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group Mizk . EAEMEEEEGR

Co.,
its subsidiaries (collectively referred

Ltd (“Yulin Pharmaceutical”’) and

to as “Yulin Pharmaceutical Group”)
became subsidiaries of the Group on
19 July 2016 (“Acquisition Date”).
Therefore, segment result of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 represents
the financial performance from the 19
July 2016 to 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 2

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

BAR D EE®E (&)
(b) EE/E (&)
(i)  H 287 Ea R R R

profit
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
Reportable segment gross profit REAREBINBEF
derived from the Group’s 2 Al 235D EBEF
external customers 1,228,395 911,023
Other income H bl A 35,102 6,104
Distribution costs 7 SHRC AR (540,264) (374,365)
Administrative expenses TR (163,497) (141,666)
Finance costs (note 4(a)) WA (FizE4(a)) (14,754) (1,509)
Share of profit of an associate FE(R B R E]m Al - 3,865
Consolidated profit before taxation  4R& #t A& 7 544,982 403,452
Geographic information (iii)  HIEEH

Analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results as well as analysis of the Group’s

carrying amount of segment assets and

additions to property, plant and equipment

by geographical market has not been
presented as the Group’s operating
profit is entirely derived from activities of

manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical

products in the PRC.

HRAEENZEEMETE
AR ENEmREER
HETBRS - SAERIM
EHE2IAREEARE
BZON  ARAEBDF
BEREERIE BER
RERNE 2D -
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

3 OTHER INCOME 3 HAi WA
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTIT
Government grants (i) BT (i)
- Unconditional subsidies — FER AR AL 6,708 1,664
— Conditional subsidies (note 22) — BIEHHEEL (HsE22) 2,344 1,154
Rental income from investment REMFEHRSWA
properties 311 455
Interest income .2 g 2 3,419 3,299
Loss on disposal of property, REYWE BEX
plant and equipment RABEAENER (307) (762)
Loss on deemed disposal of an HEARERE AT
associate &8 - (827)
Net exchange gains 3 e 23,192 936
Others Efh (565) 185
35,102 6,104
() Government grants represent various forms of (i) B B fE B kb 5 BT R I T

incentives and subsidies granted to the Group by
the local government authorities in the PRC.

REB N EEE) K AHAS o
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Unconditional subsidies

The entitlements of certain government
grants amounting to RMB6,708,000 (2016:
RMB1,664,000) were unconditional. They
were funds to subsidise the operating
expenses of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group during the current or prior years.

Conditional subsidies

The remaining government grants were
conditional government grants and initially
recorded as deferred income. The amount
of conditional government grants charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2017
was RMB2,344,000 (2016: RMB1,154,000)
(see note 22).

- ERFER

AEEEGRFE IS
& % B A R #6,708,0007T
(20164 : AR ¥1,664,000
TL) e HAEMAEBEF
EEANE AT ANEEN B
FFEEMNEBEER -

- BRFmE

E BN E B &B G BUT
B REELAWREARL
WA o B BT E B FT
A8 E2017%128318 1t
FENGAEERRNEEA
A R #2344,0007C (2016
F: A R #1,154,0007T)
(RKIzE22) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 i A E A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BALREA MG (Gt AN) L& IEZ S
(crediting): i
(a) Finance costs (a) BIEERA
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Interest on bank loans (note 19(c)) RITERFE (HEE19(c)) 11,052 1,509
Finance charges on bank RITENRTEER
loans (note 19(c)) (K$3E19(c)) 3,702 =
14,754 1,509
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBIRAK
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREET T
Salaries, wages, bonuses and e ITE - B REF
benefits 322,579 169,533
Contributions to defined FE R TR IRET 83K
contribution retirement schemes 8,651 7,524
Equity settled share-based D/\Hﬁé,ﬁﬁﬁllfxﬂx@
payments: ABERE R
Share Option Scheme (note 23(a)) FERREL &l (FI5E23(a)) 21,187 21,590
Share Award Scheme (note 23(b)) i& (7 22 BT 2] (M sE23(b)) - 904
352,417 199,551

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the
local government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the Schemes based on certain percentages
of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local
government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the
retired employees. The Group has no other
obligations for payments of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

RIBEFBENERS B R LR
o B B B & B 2 B i 3 75 DR
38 A8 48 O SRE SR IR ET 8 (5
B Bt PENMEBARAR
RABEREBHF SN AN LA
SI1EH AR o 5 BUT # R A E )
BRREESNE2RERRENEE -
B DA RSN  AREY EEME
EXfMREMEARMEMERKERRE
e
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

4
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AAREIITR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(c)

BiA SR (42)

Other items (c) HfuER
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARMT T ARETTT
Depreciation e
— Investment properties — &Y 9 676 338
— Other property, — HAb¥z - 10
plant and equipment Wz & A 33,938 24,026
Amortisation B
— lease prepayments — HEBNRIA 11 3,106 1,378
— intangible assets -\ EE 12 29,414 14,707
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BB &
— audit services — BT hRT 2,100 2,100
— non-audit services — JEBATARTS 770 1,580
(Reversal of provision)/provision (BE),/ HERH 18
recognised for doubtful debts REREAE (2,089) 1,174
Operating lease charges KEHEE A 2,858 2,370
Research and development cost* Tt B Ak AN 45,070 38,154
Cost of inventories* FER A" 17 431,835 312,465

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
research and development cost include
RMB20,442,000 (2016: RMB8,522,000) relating
to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation
expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in the

note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
cost of inventories include RMB81,777,000
(2016: RMB63,918,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in the

note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.

HE2017F12A31BLLFE -
MBERABIERES THA - 7
EREHERINCEHEEH
8B o A R %20,442,0007T
(20164F : A K %38,522,000
TT) LA E @ BEIRET A £ Sk
AL BT A BB IR
RAEFE SR o

HE2017F12A31ALFE -
FERABFEEE THA T
ERBERIHBENARE
81,777,0007T (20165 : A R
#63,918,0007T) * A E& N
TA L XM E4b) BB X
ERIE L RBRNREESTENR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5 #HSAaEEZERANHAEHR
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HFEBBRFRAMVBIERE:
profit or loss represents:
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Current tax BREA% 18
Provision for PRC income tax FRFR BTSSR
for the year 127,354 94,010
(Over)/under-provision for PRC income BAEFERBAER
tax in respect of prior years (RBEERE), BETR (554) 510
126,800 94,520
Deferred tax IERET I8
Origination and reversal of B A T B B A
temporary differences =5E (3,638) (10,725)
123,162 83,795
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of (i) RIEH SRS R ABE LB

the Cayman lIslands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman

|slands and the BVI.

(i) No provision was made for Hong Kong (ii)

Profits Tax as the Group did not earn

income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax

for the years ended 31 December 2016

and 2017.

E(RBELEEB] MR
ARG - ANEBEB AR
ERFSH -

AR EEREZ20165F &
2017F12A31B Lt FE I
ERIUBERMB BT SR
WA - B\ EBFEH
YEH B -
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

5 INCOME TAX

AAREIITR)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iiif)

134 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEBRAA

Taxable income for the subsidiaries of the
Company in the PRC is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25%, unless otherwise
specified below.

Consun Pharmaceutical (Inner Mongolia)
Co., Ltd. (“Inner Mongolia Consun”)
and Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Consun”)
were qualified as an “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise”, Inner Mongolia
Consun and Guangzhou Consun were
entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 156% from 2015 to 2017 and 2017 to
2019, respectively.

Yulin Pharmaceutical and Guangxi Yulin
Pharmaceutical Capsule Co., Limited
(“Yulin Capsule”) were qualified as
encouraged industry that operates in
western China. Yulin Pharmaceutical
and Yulin Capsule were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 15% from
2011 to 2020.

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine Co.,
Limited (“Yuming Chinese Traditional
Medicine”), Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical
Group Hongsheng Trading Co., Limited
("“Hongsheng Trading”) and Guangxi
Yulin Yunxiang Real Estate Co., Limited
(“Yunxiang Real Estate”’) met the criteria
for preferential income tax rate granted to
small and low profit-making enterprises
in the PRC, and were entitled to the
preferential income tax rate of 10% in
2017.

5

REBBRAMNAEHR (F)

(a)

SERBmRANBERE (&)

(iii)

BRIETXABMRE  BAIR
N A BB A A R FERR
T U 8 ZR 4R 25 % BN 151 2R 40 4
REIFTISH ©

RE#ZX (NEH) BRE
FRAI([ARHEE]) &
BMNEEH#EBRAR ([E
MERE |) ERE A S
T AEHREREMNE
E A o Bl ##£201548 £2017
F R20174F £2019F = %
BEASHHE15% o

T ARRY B 7 JE 7 MR R AR
BERAG([EHBE])
BREANP RERELED
EEMEEEAR) 0 EMRRIE
REMBEHAIH2011FE
2020F =R EBHEMSHHE
15% o

BEESEEE LT EGR
BEARAA([Es#EHE] -
B EMBEEERTE
SERETRAR(EHE
1)) REAEMNEREXSR
RAR([EHBXE] FA
FERFER TP B/ NE R
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R2O7TEEXEBEMEHM
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5 INCOME TAX

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents: (Continued)

(iiif)

(Continued)

Guangxi Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine
Industry Co., Limited (“Yonglv Chinese
Traditional Medicine”) met the exemption
criteria on income generated through
planting of agricultural products and was
exempted from income tax in 2017.

According to the relevant tax law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable
by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits
earned since 1 January 2008. The Group
has adopted the withholding tax rate at
10% for PRC withholding tax purposes.

The Directors of the Group have
determined that in determining the
amounts of dividends to be distributed
from PRC subsidiaries to the Hong
Kong incorporated subsidiary in future,
the amounts of dividends declared or
to be declared by the Company, and
the repayment schedule of loans and
borrowings of the Company would be
considered. As at 31 December 2017,
deferred tax liabilities of RMB58,003,000
(31 December 2016: RMB40,850,000)
have been provided based on the
expected dividends to be distributed from
Guangzhou Consun to the Company in the
foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B BEHI -

AAREIITR)

5 HREBEBXRANMAES (&)

(a) HEBRBFRANBERE @ (B)

(iif)

(%)

JE 7 R SRR B ok A R BEE
BRAR ([KBPE]) F
AEEREERKRANIRRIZ
7+ 2017 FIER R AR
FT{SHt ©

BIEHR @R E R HE 4
Bl - B JE 5200841 H1H
B R ER A g ) JE R 75 1601 =k
THER ' GRIFFFEER
TELEERKPEERD
EHREBIZ10%EMIEN
o MPBEENRME - A
£ BB R B10%m 8 0 5

;230

NEBMEBEECOHET EET
FEBAR BERARES
MR ZEHTE AR DR
BRESEER  §EBEARQF
EERIBFEIRME S5
RARAEFRRAE RO EK
B 3R o R2017412 831
B« RIBAAITERRKRKE
N B = 78 BA & st B 20084 1
A1BREENRFRAR
AR S - HIRIELERIE
& & A R #58,003,00070
(2016F12A31H : AR
40,850,0007T) °
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

5 INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 5

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b)

REBBRAMNAEHR (F)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) BEMAZHEREABERTENEST
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: i F Y ETBR
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Profit before taxation for the year F AR A 544,982 403,452
Notional tax on profit before ZIEE R AR
taxation, calculated at the o M AR R A E R
rates applicable to profits in RBEDEAN M ZEFIE
the jurisdictions concerned 144,299 106,043
Effect of non-deductible expenses  Ra] 3% 5l & M o2 & 22,072 19,650
Effect of tax concessions MG R E (59,808) (42,408)
Tax effect of withholding tax TEMHN RS E 17,153 =
(Over)/Under-provision BAEFE (BERE),
in respect of prior years BEIR (554) 510
Actual tax expenses ERFIER 123,162 83,795
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e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(B BEHI -

6 E=ME

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

AAREIITR)

RIBEE (R BHED) £383(1) &Kk A 7

(BBEZNmER) RHIFH28

BRENEEMFBEWT :

Year ended 31 December 2017

73 1

BZ2017F12831ALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contribution payment (i) Total
Ei =411 BRI R A
EzHE REVERN WA TR ERMARAI) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%¥TR AR®TR AR®TR AR%®TR AR%T:R
Executive directors YTES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHE L 1,300 1,080 8,599 - 1,515 12,494
Ms. LI Qian Rsut 1,320 973 8,599 21 1,515 12,428
Mr. ZHU Quan KERE 435 465 258 - 1,425 2,583
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TIBEERE
(retired on 31 May 2017) (R20174F
5A31RRMA) - - - - - -
Mr. LIN Sheng MBSt - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B EHITEE
directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu P i 120 - - - - 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BRELE 120 - - - - 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin IR Z T 120 - - - - 120
3,415 2,518 17,456 21 4,455 27,865
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAIN - LAREBIITR)

6  DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 6 EZMe (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZ2016512A31B1LFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus  contribution  payment (i) Total
e 28 RIK WRR1A &
EEZHE  REWEN MIETEAL FEIET BRI st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. AN Yubao ZHELE 1,300 1,080 6,285 = 5,072 13,737
Ms. LI Qian RETT 1,320 974 6,285 19 5,072 13,670
Mr. ZHU Quan REEHE 435 587 = = 314 1,336
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. WANG Shunlong TIBEERAE - - - - - -
Mr. LIN Sheng a5t A = = = = = =
Independent non-executive B EHITEE

directors
Mr. SU Yuanfu W e 120 = = = = 120
Mr. FENG Zhongshi BRELE 120 = = = = 120
Ms. CHENG Xinxin Rz £ 120 = = = = 120
3,415 2,641 12,570 19 10,458 29,103

(i) These represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the directors under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(s)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph “Share Option
Scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23(a).

138 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEABRAA

BERRBEARABRAETERT
BEE2BRENMGEEE - ZFR
PR (B ER R AN B H AR A
ERNNAZXZNEABER (HR
1 (s)(i1)) B

ZEEVERNNFR (BEELE
BENTEGILREE) EEF
WS (EREE] —REME



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 7 REFMAL

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three hEEEHFWALRE =4 (20164 : =
(2016: three) are directors of the Company whose H) BAREIES « HHMRHE6HRE -
emoluments are disclosed in note 6. The aggregate of I A (20164F © M%) ATHFHBIE
the emoluments in respect of the other two (2016: two) EEP N

individuals are as follows:

2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT R ARETTT

Salaries and other emoluments & I H b B 1,327 1,614

Contributions to retirement scheme BRIRFTEIH R 31 31

Share-based payment VARS 7 72 EE R B 5 5K 1,021 1,213

2,379 2,858

The emoluments of the two (2016: two) individuals with M (20165 : MB) = H A B
the highest emoluments are within the following bands: B LA T E -

2017 2016

20175 20164

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AT EE AT#E

HKD1,000,000 — HKD2,000,000 1,000,000/ T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEAIN - LAREBIITR)
8 EARNINGS PER SHARE 8 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXER

BERERRBANDIBEBEFALRQ
AlEDZRERMG N ARE
396,242,0007T (20164F : A R ¥
307,526,0007T) & B 1T & MK
9 O 4 - 15 £861,067,0008% A% 15
(20164F : 959,503,000/% i 7 ) &t

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB396,242,000
(2016: RMB307,526,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of
861,067,000 shares (2016: 959,503,000 shares)

in issue during the year, calculated as follows: & EAT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TERMEFIEE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
’000 shares ‘000 shares
TR TA%
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1HBBEITE B 974,268 997,757
Effect of shares repurchased and e REERNDHFE
cancelled (note 25(c)(ii)) (fzE25(c)(ii)) (100,496) (18,325)
Effect of issuance of shares BTN E
(note 25(c)(iii)) (Bt 5E25(c)(iii)) 6,925 =
Effect of share options BITERRENTE
exercised (note 25(c)(iv)) (BtzE25(c)(iv)) 68 =
Effect of treasury shares held BRI A B 8
under the Share Award Scheme BEFRATE (19,698) (20,000)
Effect of awarded shares vested 1% 10 B2 Eh T 8118 T 22/
under the Share Award Scheme BRiDEBEHNTE - 71
Weighted average number of M12A318 LB
ordinary shares at 31 December 19 2k 861,067 959,503
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Diluted earnings per share

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

8 BREF(#E)

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share

for the year ended 31 December 2017 is based

on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB396,242,000 (2016:
RMB307,526,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 867,114,000 shares
(2016: 959,734,000 shares), calculated as

follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BREERR

HZE2017F12A31B L EFEWE
IREESERB R TIIRIBEARR A K
R FE 5 5 A A R %396,242,000
7L (20164 : A K #307,526,000
L) REE R M N EF Y H
867,114,0008% #& 17 (20164 :
959,734,000z Bz 1) 5t & - 5 &
LU

EERMEFSE (#8F)

(diluted)
2017 2016
20175 20164
’000 shares ‘000 shares
TR F A%
Weighted average number of W12 8318 @R
ordinary shares at 31 December Nt F 984 861,067 959,503
Dilutive effect of awarded shares gt ZEEhETEITE T
under the Share Award Scheme HENR DS E - 231
Dilutive effect of deemed issue of BT EIE TR
shares under the Share Option EEBITRMH
Scheme for nil consideration BEyE
(note 23(a)) (Mf5E23(a)) 6,047 -
Weighted average number of ordinary M12A31BEBER
shares (diluted) at 31 December g8 (E5E) 867,114 959,734
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=AN =
wh 9 Eji%*&%l}ﬁ.;}
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 REWMHE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost S9N
At 1 January 2016 1K201651H1H =
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FERWENBARIRE 18,890
At 31 December 2016,1 January 2017 and R2016F12A318 ~ 2017F1 A1H K
31 December 2017 2017F12H31H 18,890
Accumulated depreciation: RItiE
At 1 January 2016 720161 H18 -
Charge for the year FRHk (338)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R2016F12H318 &2017F1 818 (338)
Charge for the year F AR (676)
At 31 December 2017 201786 12A31H (1,014)
Net book value: BREFHE :
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 17,876
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12H31H 18,552

Investment properties of the Group are situated in the

PRC.

AEBENREMEMRTE -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every year to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Included in investment property, properties of
RMB13,886,000 (2016: RMB18,890,000) are held
under operating leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of investment property, and properties
of RMB5,004,000 (2016: nil) are held for a currently
undetermined future use.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

RENE (&)

AEERBEEHEHBKREDE - 15
HEBERF  RZBRIEEEN &
HEEMHEMEGRR HENKABTS
BEEM - URBHEES HEREER
ExEAHEE -

BREMERTEUAKEHERSRFTAR
BYETEE Y E AR 13,886,0007T
(20164 : A K #18,890,0007T) K [# &
T E R R A & 8 ¥ % A R %5,004,0007T
(20164 : £&) o

AEBREIABRGROELHEERKRE
W S EEE KB T

follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year 1FR 1,036 1,506
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FZE5FRN 930 1,473
After 5 years 5% 1% - 123

Investment properties of the Group were stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
carrying amounts of the investment properties were
not materially different from their fair value as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

RNEBBREYERIRE MR R RIZK
AR REHTE RORE BT - KR2017F
N&2016F 12 A31H I AW ¥ M R M (B &
HAhBEITEEAEZE -
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n‘l_\ézﬁjj-i%ﬁ‘%él}ﬁ-ﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAIN - LAREBIITR)

10 OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 HiY¥E -  BERKRE

Machinery
and Motor Office Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BT HERRHE RE WARHE ERIE st
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥TR AR%TRn ARETRT ARBTT AR®TR
Cost: B

At 1 January 2016 120161418 189,784 94,531 12,961 11,063 3,923 312,262

Addition through acquisition % BUrEEMHT B A 7l

of subsidiaries WE 77,384 23,495 1,066 1,357 71,772 175,074
Transfer from construction BEEIRER

in progress 32,213 42,235 - 66 (74,514) -
Other additions HEtiRE 124 6,568 1,472 2,040 8,912 19,116
Disposals RE - (5,379) (1,295) (338) - (7,012)
At 31 December 2016 and ~ #2016F 128318 &

1 January 2017 2017F1A1H 299,505 161,450 14,204 14,188 10,093 499,440
Transfer from construction ~ BEERIRER

in progress 15,264 18,118 - 1,254 (34,636) -

Other additions HEthiRE 429 2,379 185 1,781 38,314 43,088
Disposals RE = (5,574) (397) (851) - (6,822)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 315,198 176,373 13,992 16,372 13,771 535,706
Accumulated depreciation: Z:HifE :
At 1 January 2016 2016417 1H (41,724) (32,811) (7,606) (6,348) - (88,489)
Charge for the year ERMB (10,100) (10,673) (1,235) (2,018) = (24,026)
Written back on disposal R &R D - 4,548 1,165 244 - 5,957
At 31 December 2016 and 12016128318 %

1 January 2017 2017F1A18 (51,824) (38,936) (7,676) (8,122) - (106,558)
Charge for the year ERME (14,813) (15,332) (1,461) (2,332) = (33,938)
Written back on disposal RERERRLD = 4398 381 808 = 5,587
At 31 December 2017 R2017612A31H (66,637) (49,870) (8,756) (9,646) - (134,909)
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2017 20176 12A31H 248,561 126,503 5,236 6,726 13,771 400,797
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12A31H 247,681 122,514 6,528 6,066 10,093 392,882
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

LEASE PREPAYMENTS

(B BEHI -

11 HEFENSHE

AAREIITR)

RMB’000
ARBTIT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2016 1201651 H1H 29,808
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FERWENBARIRE 63,810
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 MR2016F12 A31H k201718 1H 93,618
At 31 December 2017 2017512 H31H 143,495
Accumulated amortisation: SEtHE
At 1 January 2016 20161 A 1H (6,234)
Charge for the year ESAE]S (1,378)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R2016F12H318 &2017%F1A81H (7,612)
Charge for the year F AR (3,106)
At 31 December 2017 20174 12A31H (10,718)
Net book value: BREFEHE :
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12H31H 132,777
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12H31H 86,006

Lease prepayments represent prepayments for land

HERMNFEEE N THEEEN L E

use rights paid to the PRC authorities. The leasehold AR ZRE - HELMURFR R - &R

lands are located in the PRC, on which the Group’s
manufacturing plants were built. The Group was granted

land use rights for a period of 50 years initially and the F33FE494F -

remaining period range from 33 to 49 years.

HIEMRAKENEERE - AEE &)
R SHS0F M T E Mg - SR N FHN
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ARE SRR Y o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAIN - LAREBIITR)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 J\BEEE
Patents Trademark Total
=R BE Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETn AR%¥Tn AR%®Tx
Cost: RN :

At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H - - -

Addition through acquisition of BBBENBRARANE

subsidiaries 248,103 256,233 504,336
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 720165124318 -

2017 and 31 December 2017 2017F1A1B X

2017412 H31H 248,103 256,233 504,336
Accumulated amortisation: ZEtEey -
At 1 January 2016 K201651H1H = = =
Charge for the year F R (14,707) - (14,707)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F12H31H &

1 January 2017 2017F1A18 (14,707) - (14,707)
Charge for the year FAHKR (29,414) = (29,414)
At 31 December 2017 MR2017F12H31H (44,121) - (44,121)
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2017 MR2017F12H31H 203,982 256,233 460,215
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 233,396 256,233 489,629

The amortization charge for the year is included in “cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEBEIN - LAREIITR)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 12 J\BEEE (&)
Trademark with the carrying amount of R2016%F & 8 I BE M B E B M & 15
RMB256,233,000, acquired through the acquisition of BRHE A A R ¥256,233,0007T K pE1Z -
Yulin Pharmaceutical Group in 2016, are assessed to EREERBREEZN DT EEEREH
have indefinite useful lives when, based on an analysis BASBEELSFHSRAGREL & LR
of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable #l - WA AEE ERERFH o HNE
limit to the period over which the asset is expected HERFEAFHRANRERBFF(EA O
to generate net cash inflows for the Group. The WEEARSEHBREMRERR - %d
recoverable amount of the trademark that has indefinite B DR AEEN EMBEEE IR G
useful life is estimated annually whether or not there is ELEBN ([REELEEMN]) -
any indication of impairment. The amount is allocated
to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) of Yulin
Pharmaceutical Group.
The recoverable amount of the trademark that has A ERERFEEAEIZA A i e 38R
indefinite useful life is determined based on value-in-use BEREEEMET  HEE: SIEE
calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the 12 E U 89 Sl B B 7808 O & L4 B
relevant CGU derived from the most recent financial H) SHMERRcELESEMNRSRER
forecast approved by the management covering a Bl o BB AFHMNIBA e REE AEETE
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period EERERENKAE EI%MIHE S HE
are extrapolated using an estimated increase rate of 3% EREEH - ReRERAIE £14.94%
in selling price and cost with no growth in sales volume. (20164 : 13.82%) #73R - FR{E AMITER
The cash flows are discounted using a discount rate EDRRATY RREFERCELESNEB
of 14.94% (2016: 13.82%). The discount rate used is RS TRE - REE2017F12H31H
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant IEFE - BERRBEEBE (20164 :
CGU. No impairment loss was recognised during the ) o
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
GOODWILL 13 HE
RMB’000
ARBET T
Cost and carrying amount BRARREE
At 1 January 2016 201651 H1H =
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries FHRWIEM B A RIRE 320,647
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 R20165F12H318 ~ 2017F1A81H
and 31 December 2017 K2017%12H31H 320,647
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nfx1g?gtﬁiggiﬁiiﬁépﬁt%3£

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
13  GOODWILL (Continued) 13 ®E (&)
Impairment tests for CGU containing goodwill BERENEESELBENNRERR
Goodwill newly acquired through business combination BREKESHMAESHNEER DI EIA
is allocated to the Group’s CGU of Yulin Pharmaceutical SENEMRBEEBHNIBSELEN -
Group.
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined BEEEBMNMAI L EETRIBEFERE
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations Bt EMET «c ZZ:TEHEAUKERE
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets BENMKELE CRERFHHE) BE%E
approved by management covering a five-year period. WIREMETRA - BRAFHNRSRE
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated FRAMGETHE BRI R LK AL R3%Mm
using an estimated growth rate of 3% in selling price HEEUWEIERSH - IRANERES
and cost with no growth in sales volume. The growth SHBRSELEBMMEEEBNTHER
rates used do not exceed the long-term average growth HiE R - IRE REFEAITE X14.94%
rates for the business in which the CGU operates. The (20164 : 13.82%) #TIR  F{FE A HTIR
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of KRR R EFERSELESENE
14.94% (2016: 13.82%). The discount rates used are AR TRE - RNEE2017F12831H
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant IEFE - HEERMERR (20165 :
CGU. No impairment loss was recognised during the ) o
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
14 OTHER INVESTMENTS 14 Hhig &
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT
Available-for-sale equity Al ERAEH
securities-unlisted —JEET 2,600 2,600

148 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREAEXSEEABRAA

Other investment of the Group represents an investment
in a domestic medicine manufacturer located in
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region of the PRC. The
Group owns a 5% equity interest in the domestic
medicine manufacturer. No quoted market price
in an active market for the investment is available.
Quoted prices in active market for similar investment
or observable market data as significant inputs for
valuation techniques are also not available. Therefore,
the unlisted other investment is stated at cost less
impairment, if any, inthe consolidated financial
statements.

AEBMEMKRERTEERENTEAR
HERRN—KEANBELER - A&H
BREZBANBELERMNSRERE - BH
BREVEEZEMIEMISRE - FRMGEER
MOBERHABBNEURERERTS
MREX A BRMSHBENEEIES -
g FEETAEMBRERGE B BHRERF
BERARERE (F) FIE
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15

(a)

List of subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had
direct or indirect interests in the following
subsidiaries, all of which are private companies,
particulars of which are set out below:

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

REBRARNRE
(a) HMEBARRE

M2017F12A31H * XA AR T
T B AR (2B ARFILAQR) ¥
EEEHEER FHEH WO
T ¢

Place of Authorised/ Attributable equity
incorporation registered and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
ERRLE e/ BER BALNIRED
NEER XA RERRA ey IERH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Brilliant Reach Group Limited BVI United States Dollars 100% - Investment holding
BESERRAA ZERLEE (“USD")50,000/USD1 RARHR
50000%7C ([%7))/
1%
Immense Value Holdings Limited BV USD50,000/USD1 100% - Investment holding
ABRLES 50,000% 7T/ 1%7T REBR
Century International Develop Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD1 = 100%  Investment holding
AR ARERAR B 10,0007 /1T REBR
Grand Reach Company Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD1,000 = 100%  Investment holding
EHERAR B 10,0007 /1,000 T RARR
Guangzhou Consun PRC RMB300,000,000/ = 100%  Production and sales of
BMNEE i RMB300,000,000 pharmaceutical products
AR 300,000,000/ EHER
AE300,000,0007C
Guangzhou Consun Medicine Company  PRC RMB3,000,000/ - 100%  Trading of pharmaceutical
Limited i RMB3,000,000 products
BMREREERAT AR#3,000,0007T,/ EREs
AE#%3,000,0007
Guangzhou Consun Pharmaceutical PRC RMB10,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
Research Company Limited i RMB10,000,000 of pharmaceutical
BNEEENTEAR AR AR10,000,0007 / products
AE#10,000,0007 &R
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EEAIN - LAREIITR)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued)

RBARINKRE (&)
(a) MBATRE (&)

Place of Authorised/ Attributable equity
incorporation registered and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
ERHALE e/ BER HAAEED
ARER EXHy RAZRA AR TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Shenzhen Qianhai Consun Investment ~ PRC USD2,000,000/ - 100%  Investment holding
and Funding Management Co., Ltd USD500,000 RERR
RTAERE RERE 2,000000%7 /
ELERARA 500,000% 7T
Inner Mongolia Consun PRC RMB25,000,000/ = 100%  Production and sales of
RELRE # RMB25,000,000 pharmaceutical products
ABR%25,000,0007C,/ EHER
AR 25,000,000
Yulin Pharmaceutical PRC RMB448,834,102/ - 72.69%  Production and sales of
FHEE i RMB448,834,102 pharmaceutical products
AR 448,834,102 / EHER
AR448,834,1027T
Yulin Capsule PRC RMB1,340,000/ - 72.69%  Production and sales of
INBE el RMB1,340,000 capsule
AR%1,340,0007 / EHBE
AR1,340,0007
Yuming Chinese Traditional Medicine ~ PRC RMB2,000,000/ = 72.69%  Trading of pharmaceutical
g el RMB2,000,000 products
AR 2,000,007,/ Zn85
ARF2,000,0007C
Yonglv Chinese Traditional Medicine PRC RMB1,000,000/ - 72.69%  Production and sales of
KGR E i RMB1,000,000 pharmaceutical products
AR1,000,0007C/ EER

ARH1,000,0007T
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 RHERARNKRE (&)
(a) List of subsidiaries (Continued) (a) MEAREE (&)
Place of Authorised/ Attributable equity
incorporation registered and fully interest held by
Name of company and business paid up capital the Company Principal activities
A LR e/ BER HAAAEED
AAER XY RAZRA FE(E A 5 TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 13
Hongsheng Trading PRC RMB500,000/ - 72.69%  Trading of pharmaceutical
EHES R RMB500,000 products
AEE500,0007,/ 58
AR 500,000
Yunxiang Real Estate PRC RMB3,000,000/ - 72.69%  Property development
EREX el RMBS3,000,000 NERR
AR%3,000,0007 /AR
#3,000,0007C
* The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The * ERNESEBAP X - B
English translation of the entity’s name is for BIBHRNEBLREMRSE -
reference only.
(b)  Capital injection in Yulin Pharmaceutical (b) HEMRELE

In January and February 2017, cash contributions
of RMB8,722,000 and RMB2,838,000 were
made by the Group and other equity interests
holders respectively. As a result, the Group’s
equity interest in Yulin Pharmaceutical Group
further increased from 72.62% to 72.69%. The
Group recognised an increase in non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) of RMB2,357,000 and an
increase in retained earnings of RMB481,000.

R2017F1H =28 - K & B £
HmREFAADNFTEARK
8,722,000t & A & 2,838,000
Lo At AEBEREMBEE
BB HE 72.62% K — S g &
72.69% ° A& B R IEIERE
H(FEERER]) BNMARKE
2,357,0007C RARE B FIE MAR
#481,0007T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 REBARMNKRE (&)

(c) The following table lists out the information (c)
relating to Yulin Pharmaceutical Group, the only
sub-group of the Group which has a material
NCI. The summarised financial information
presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

TRIMBBEEMRESE (KK
EEAEAERERaNE—T&
) WER - TXEJNHKER
ME SR EAREARRREEHE
AIEVERE °

Period from

the Acquisition

Date to

31 December

2016

BUEREZE

2016%F

2017 12H31H 1k
20175 HAfH]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT

NCI percentage at 31 December R12A31BIEERERE Dt 27.31% 27.38%
Current assets mEBEE 945,471 635,206
Non-current assets FERBEE 784,106 784,323
Current liabilities mEaE (475,549) (224,957)
Non-current liabilities EmeatE (91,473) (96,848)
Net assets BEFE 1,162,555 1,097,724
Carrying amount of NCI RS REE 317,460 300,557
Revenue of the year/period FE BB 599,725 277,348
Profit of the year/period F[EHBRER 93,666 40,433
Total comprehensive income FE /R mksass

of the year/period 93,666 40,433
Profit allocated to NCI DB T IEFE AR AE s B F B 25,578 12,131
Cash flows from operating activities & EBNIR S 7K (56,475) 118,004
Cash flows from investing activities —R&EHIE LR (44,494) (43,494)
Cash flows from financing activities @& EEIR SR 69,106 196,931

152 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEBRAA



16

17

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER PREPAYMENTS

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

16 HMEMRK

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Prepayment for purchase of other BEHMYE  BEX
property, plant and equipment RAEHTE K 13,417 -
Prepayment for loan facility fees — ERLHERNBENRK —
non-current portion (note 18(e)) FEBNEAER (D (PiFEE18(e)) 4,323 =
Prepayment for obtainment of US4 Hb{E AR T =
land use right - 40,400
17,740 40,400
INVENTORIES 17 78
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Raw materials R 89,207 70,669
Work in progress P 39,908 42,891
Finished goods 2K 70,886 27,414
200,001 140,974
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=EHERIN - UARKIITR)

17 INVENTORIES (Continued) 17 #E (&)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as EERBAX L ABRNFESEIN
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: AR
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBETIT
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFERA 430,850 310,224
Write down of inventories 7 &MU 985 2,241
431,835 312,465
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 EBEFRHMEWFIE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
Trade debtors 2 5 BRI 576,668 278,729
Bills receivable FEE TR 395,102 282,111
Less: Allowance for doubtful o FERCRBR BB
debtors (note 18(b)) (FFEE18(b)) (1,476) (3,565)
970,294 557,275
Other receivables (note 18(d)) H b e A (MFE18(d)) 15,776 9,146
Prepayments (note 18(e)) TEft5RTE (FsE18(e)) 9,015 9,899
995,085 576,320
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the
ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net
of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

18 EZRHEMEWKE (&)

(a)

BRI 2 AT

RBEHRR - BB RBRRR TR
£ (Bt AR B R E A EKIR)
AR HHAEESL MR RERE
MRRE DT

2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARETTT

Within 3 months 3MEAA 903,231 512,413
3 to 12 months 3Z=12{8 A 58,986 29,153
Over 12 months 1218 A LA £ 8,077 15,709

970,294 557,275

Trade receivables and bills receivable are due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in
note 26(a).

S RWAR R R BN RS 8 %R
B H IR ET30-9008 M EHY - A&
EEEBRNE — P BE R T
26(a) °
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

18
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 BSRkHEEWERIE (&)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills (b) EBEIZEWRIZKEKREZEENHRE
receivable
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors BHAE SRR & B EE AR
and bills receivable are recorded using an EEBLEAREBRE  BRIEREE
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied EHKEFIENE SR - BDRE
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which BB BB B 5 e AR S FE UL
case the impairment loss is written off against SHRPHEE (2BME1(m)) °
trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see
note 1(m)).
The movements in the allowance for doubtful FRREREENZEEHDT
debts during the year are as follows:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
At 1 January W1A1H 3,565 19
Addition from acquisition of i BE BT /B A B A9 3% hi
subsidiaries - 2,494
Impairment loss (reversed)/ (B@E),/ MR EEE
recognised (2,089) 1,052
At 31 December M®12A831H 1,476 3,565




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEREIN  UARETIR)
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 BEZREMGEWEIE (&)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills b) EBEZEWERRRERZENREE
receivable (Continued) (%)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade R2017F12H31H &N & B &
debtors and bills receivable of RMB11,058,000 SEWEFIREKRZE ARK
(31 December 2016: RMB7,548,000) were 11,058,0007T (2016412 A3 1
individually determined to be impaired. The H : AR¥7548,0005T) B {@R#
individually impaired receivables related to ERE © B EBRIER EWEIE S
customers that were in financial difficulties and FHBEEERVEEE  BEEL
management assessed that only a portion of S5 TEER 2 e Uk [B] 55 1 FiE U IE o
the receivables is expected to be recovered. At » DRIERREZ BRI BEEA
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful A R 1,476,000 (20164 : A
debts of RMB1,476,000 (2016: RMB3,565,000) R #3,565,0007T) °
respectively were recognised.
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) XBENEZSEVRIREREZRE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills KRR ABBENE S EWERT & IE
receivable that are not considered to be impaired WWEEMEER ST -
are as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT
Neither past due nor impaired R TN AR RE 934,598 536,868
Less than 1 month past due BHATE AT 520 909
1 to 3 months past due BEAI1 238 A 381 1,840
More than 3 months but less than BHASME A LA EE 1218 A
12 months past due 24,890 4176
Over 12 months past due wEA1218 B ek A 323 9,499
26,114 16,424
960,712 553,292
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158 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREXAESEEBRAA

AAREIITR)

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not
impaired (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Impairment of other receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s other
receivables of RMB122,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB122,000) were individually determined to be
impaired in full.

Prepayments

Loan facility fees of RMB9,266,000 (31 December
2016: nil) in connection with the three-year
term loan (note 21) were prepaid, of which
RMB4,323,000 was expected to be recognised
as expenses after more than one year and was
classified as non-current and included in other
prepayments (note 16), and the remaining
amount of RMB4,943,000 which was expected to
be recognised as expenses within one year was
included in trade and other receivables.

18

ESRHEMBWRKIER (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ABENE S BYIRRKERRE
(%)

R 780 B 71 R R ME Y B UK K IR 2
WG RBEN S EEPER

EBHERRENRKHRES RE
THEAKREER R IR HLENE
VEP - REBELR  BEEER
RBATZ S REGEHRERE
REEERWEERES B AERD
R AR 28 E o

L fth P Wi =R TR YRl B

R2017F 128318 » A"E B H b
FE U 3 IE A R #122,0007T (2016
#12A31H : A R ¥122,0007T)
BRI AETERME -

BANRE

BN =FHER (FF21) mER
EXRZHER R AR 266,000
7T (20164512 A318 : &) » H
A R #4,323,00070 76 B & A B 1B
—FRNEREERABEBRLWE Y
HAEMIER KIS (e
16) « RE#H AR 4,943,0007T
FEHERN—FARERRSER I
WEESHESREMBERFIE -
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

(b)

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

19 HRERREEHEER

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BH2RBELESEEBHBAE:
2017 2016
2017% 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEIRS 989,565 672,711
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BADEFIELEFRMSRSHEER !
generated from operations:
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETTT

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Amortisation

(Reversal of provision)/provision
recognised for doubtful debts

Interest income

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Share-based payment transactions

Write down of inventories

Share of profit of an associate

Foreign exchange gain

Changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other

iR Fl 544,982 403,452
e 34,614 24,364
s 32,520 16,085
(BE),/HERRERE

(2,089) 1,174
AWz (3,419) (3,299)
BhE A 14,754 1,509
HEME - BERRE

EEREE 307 762

AR BEFEN N R 5 21,187 22,494
FE R 985 2,241
FEGEE & A FRF - (3,865)
HNGE U 2 (23,192) =

EEES B
FE (gm),md (60,012) 25,432

B 5 N E b & YR IRIE

receivables (412,869) (128,250)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & EH b fE A ZIEE 0
payables 198,606 146,628
(Decrease)/increase in deferred EREW R GRA ),/ 188N
income (654) 2,591
Cash generated from operations K25 G 345,720 511,318
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 19 RERFELZEER (8)
(¢) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) RETHELENEBHIR:
financing activities:
Prepayment
Loans and for loan
borrowings facility fees Total
ERREX ERZHER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR ARETR
Note 21 Note 18(e)
Hizt21 HiEE18(e)
At 1 January 2017 2017461 A1H - - -
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSRERT
Proceeds of new bank loans HIERITE G RE 653,707 - 653,707
Repayments of bank loans RITERENE (59,066) - (59,066)
Finance costs paid BB A (11,052) (12,968) (24,020)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ EEHR$REEEEE 583,589 (12,968) 570,621
Exchange adjustments ERAZ (26,537) - (26,537)
Other changes: HttgH
Interest on bank loans (note 4(a)) RITEFHE
(FizE4(a)) 11,052 - 11,052
Finance charges on bank loans (note 4(a)) #RITERMBER
(FizE4(a)) - 3,702 3,702
Total other charges HEmREs 11,052 3,702 14,754
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 568,104 (9,266) 558,838

160 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/EXSEEABRAA
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BRI - UARKETITR)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ESRHMENRKIE
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Trade payables = AN 68,739 79,733
Receipts in advance TE Uk K1 4,220 10,368
Accrued expenses FEstR X 236,738 169,810
Employee benefits payable EREEEF 174,995 67,572
Other payables H fih fE A~ Fk1E 195,030 155,769
679,722 483,252

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing

analysis of trade payables (which are included in the

trade and other payables), based on the invoice date,

is as follows:

RBEMR - EZENFKE (BHAES
KEMENRIR) NEHR A B BELENR

BT ¢

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

Within 1 month 18 AR 31,129 39,085
1 to 12 months 121218 A 36,619 40,341
Over 12 months 128 A 991 307
68,739 79,733
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162 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEBRAA

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

At December 2017, loans and borrowings were
unsecured bank loans and were repayable as follows:

ERRERK

R2017F 128 « AR RIERAEERRT
B - BAER T HIREE :

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTIT

Within 1 year —&FR

—FRERXBMFEA
MERER=FA

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 year but within 3 years

193,621 -

140,431 =
234,052 =

374,483 =

568,104 =

A three-year term loan which amounted to
HKD560,000,000 (equivalent to RMB468,104,000) was
included in loans and borrowings and is interest-bearing
at 2.00% per annum over the relevant HIBOR.

As at 31 December 2017, part of the Group’s bank
loans, amounted to RMB548,104,000 (31 December
2016: nil) are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s or the subsidiaries’
financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants the drawn down loans
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 December 2017, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down loans had been breached (31 December
2016: nil).

ER R ERETE—IES 5 /560,000,000
BT (FHE R AR 468,104,0007T) A=
FHEF  EFMNXRSHABESRITRZE
¥ EMN2.00% °

R2017F 128318 » REBLHETE
KA R #548,104,0007T (2016412 A 31
H: &) SRS ARNEELEEMNE QR
ETUHBLEENNTE (ZENEERRE
BMEBNERZHEF) BEASEHER
TZENT  BRINERESEKRAR
EREE AEBETHERETZELY
EWIEMR - R2017F12A31H - A& E
TERERTMAEERDNEFEAEOOE
(20165128318 : ) »
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e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

DEFERRED INCOME 22 RIEWz
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTTT
At 1 January w1 H18 22,949 12,018
Addition from acquisition of U BE BT B A A AV 3% hI
subsidiaries - 8,340
Additions H b3 an 1,690 3,745
Credited to profit or loss (note 3) stAEE (MEE3) (2,344) (1,154)
At 31 December W12A31H 22,295 22,949
Representing: EY
Current portion RVEREB {7 1,554 1,346
Non-current portion JEENEA =R 20,741 21,603
22,295 22,949

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, deferred income
of the Group mainly includes various conditional
government grants for research and development
projects of new or existing pharmaceutical products
and subsidies relating to purchase of land use rights.

Deferred government grants relating to research and
development projects will be recognised as income
in the same periods in which the expenses for the
development project are incurred. Deferred government
grants relating to purchase of land use rights will be
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of the relevant land use rights.

R20176F 2016128318 » A& B K
BERGEFERENERN R A ERHE
HEMZIEBGHHRGHE) - AREESE
T E A A FhAL o

ERMERANEERNHMSSEESE
FMEBEAMXHERSREZ AR - A
PR E L AEANEERT MBS
MR L ERENTRET AT E B FHANE
OERHER R -
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164 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEBRAA

AAREIITR)

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

In 2014, the Company granted 60,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees at
a consideration of HKD1 for each grantee (the
‘2014 Grant’).
share options was HKD6.64 per share, and

The exercise price of these

the aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB138,095,000. The options vest
after one year to five years from the date of grant
and are then exercisable on or before 23 March
2024.

In 2016, an aggregate of 24,790,000 unvested
share options under the 2014 Grant were
cancelled (the “Cancelled Share Options”),
among which 9,200,000 and 15,590,000
unvested share options were previously granted
to directors and employees, respectively, with
remaining vesting period ranging from one year
to three years.

In 2016, the Company granted 52,000,000 share
options to certain directors and employees
(the “2016 Grant”). The exercise price of these
share options was HKD4.01 per share, and
the aggregate fair value of these share options
amounted to RMB81,168,000. The options vest
after one year to three years from the date of
grant and are then exercisable on or before 31
March 2026.

Under the 2016 Grant, 36,440,000 share options
(the “Replacing Share Options”) were identified
as the replacement for 23,650,000 of the
Cancelled Share Options (the “Replaced Share
Options”), while the remaining 15,560,000 new
share options were granted to certain employees
who previously were not grantees of the 2014
Grant.

23

DURBES R I LRG0 R ER AR

(a)

EEBERETE

R20145F - KR E AT AR A
1IBATHRERTETESRES
60,000,00017 & iz # (20145 &%
Hl) - ZEBERBETEERER
6.64BTT  ZEEREALBEEE
#Z= A R #138,095,0007T ° % = i
BEAREBHRE—EZAFHE -
SR1E B AR 202443 A 23 H 8k Z Al
116 -

20164 » 2014F R H BT A
24,790,000 R EEBH B R ED
Wi ((EXHERE])  HA
9,200,000% % 15,590,0001% &
BERELHESRR TFESRE
B - HRTHNEEEANT 2=

o

_H:[

MN20165F  ARFEIERTATESZ R
& 852,000,00017 % f% # ([2016
ERE]) - ZERRBETEEAE
Ra.018  ZEBREANES
5t A R #81,168,0007t ° #% F
BEREARRLARE—FE=F5
B - AR LAR2026F3831H 3
ZBIATE ©

R 20165 # H - 36,440,00017
EhiE((BREBRE]) DERR
R IEERERNH F 23,650,000
N ((HERBRE) OBRE -
i1 £ #415,560,00017 37 HE B HE 2 1%
FETFIE2014F B EEIRANE

B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(a)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The number and weighted average exercise

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

URESEELURGR/RERNTR
(&)

(a) EEBKRETE (Z)
BARERE RnEFAITEEN

prices of share options are as follows: T
2017
201745
Weighted

average Number of

exercise price options

IEFIGTEE BREHE

HKD ’000

BT TR

Outstanding at 1 January 2017 20171 A18 M ARITE 4.82 71,423
Exercised during the year FARTTE 4.69 (1,896)
Forfeited during the year FRE IR 4.44 (4,965)
Outstanding at 31 December 2017 MR2017512 A31 B M ARTITE 4.85 64,562
Exercisable at 31 December 2017 2017912 A31 B AI17{E 5.77 29,531

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the
year was HKD7.07 (2016: nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2017 had an exercise price of HKD6.64 or
HKD4.01 (31 December 2016: HKD6.64 or
HKD4.01) and a weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 7.6 years (31 December 2016:
8.6 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses
of RMB21,187,000 during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB21,590,000).

RENTERBEE BRINEFH
WR(ER7.078TT (201645 : &) °

MR2017F12A318 MR TTE B
REHEFTIE (B 56.6478 705k4.018 7T
(2016F12A31H : 6.64/8 7T 3k
4.0187T) - MEFHFRRELHF
Hi &7.6%F (2016%F12H31H : 8.6
F)o

E 2017128318 It & &
FEERREREZERAARK
21,187,0007T (20164 : A R ¥
21,590,0007T) °
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23

(Continued)

By &E

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(i)

The terms and conditions of the 2016

URESERELUROGR/RERNTR

(&)

(a) EEBKRESE (F)

(i)  2016F K H BIRFEZIR 20

Grant are as follows: T :
Number Contractual

Tranche of options life of

Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
EFH BREN

B8 il BREHE HES BHRFH
Options granted to employees:
BT EEMNBRIE
1 April 2016 Tranche 1 12,600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016418 EREid REBHRIF 104
1 April 2016 Tranche 2 12,600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4 A 18 Fo#t it B g5 105
1 April 2016 Tranche 3 16,800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
20164418 £33t B BHE3E 105
Options granted to directors:
ETESNERE
1 April 2016 Tranche 1 600,000 1 year after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4 A 1A 14t i BEEAE 105
1 April 2016 Tranche 2 600,000 2 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4A1H Eott Bt B g 24 105
1 April 2016 Tranche 3 800,000 3 years after the date of grant 10 years
2016F4 18 F34t & BER3F 104
27 May 2016 Tranche 4 2,400,000 1 year after the date of grant 9.8 years
20165 H27H F44t Rt BRI 9.8
27 May 2016 Tranche 5 2,400,000 2 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2016F5R27H E5it Bt B Eifg 25 9.8
27 May 2016 Tranche 6 3,200,000 3 years after the date of grant 9.8 years
2016F5R27H £oe#t & R ER3F 9.8%
Total share options granted
B BREAR 52,000,000
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(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of share options under the
2016 Grant and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in
return for the share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimated
fair value of the share options granted
is measured based on a binomial tree
model. The contractual life of the share
options is used as an input into this
model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial tree model.
Set out below are the fair value of share
options and assumptions.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

URESEELURGR/RERNTR
(&)

(a) EEBKRETE (Z)

(i) 2016F#FLEH FEREBEIL
REREBR :

P PSR BRIR H B S 4 P 2 AR
BHRARBEL2ERELE
iz AR ERE - KB
BENE AREBEIERS
XiftERG 8 - BRES L
FHELBREDBELS R
WABUR - IRAITTIER TR
EMALL = REER - TX
HIBERENAIAEBRR

Tranche number

#3%

2 3 4 5 6

Fair value at measurement TE2HALE
date (HKD) (A7) 1.87 1.98 1.71 1.85 1.97
Share price (HKD) RE (B) 3.99 3.99 3.99 4.02 4.02 4.02
Exercise price (HKD) 1B (Br) 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4.01 4,01
Expected volatility THERIE 56.71%  56.71%  56.71% 5599%  55.99%  55.99%
Expected option life BHERETS 10years 10years 10years 9.8years 9.8 years 9.8 years
105 10F 10%F 9.8% 9.8%F 9.8
Dividend yield iR 123%  123%  1.23%  123%  123%  1.23%
Risk-free rate BRI 161%  161%  161%  1.72%  172%  1.72%
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23 LURELZEYUREGESERMWA

(Continued) (%)
(a) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) EEBKRRESE (&)
(iii)  Fair value of the Replaced Share Options (iii) 2014FERHE TR EER
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions: BYAALERER -

168 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERERAEXESEBRAA

The fair value of the Replaced Share
Options and the incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options were
RMB26,422,000 and RMB30,472,000
respectively. The incremental fair value
of the Replacing Share Options was the
difference between the fair value of the
36,440,000 share options under the 2016
Grant and the fair value of the Replaced
Share Options, both at the respective date
of grant of the share options under the
2016 Grant. The fair value of the Replaced
Share Options were estimated as at the
date of replacement, using a binomial
tree model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which those options
were granted. Set out below are the fair
value of the Replaced Share Options and
assumptions.

Fair value at measurement date (HKD)
AAERAAE (GBIT)
Share price (HKD)

RE (BT)

Exercise price

1TEME

Expected volatility

T8 B R 08

Expected option life

& HRFE AR fE 4 HA
Expected dividend yield
TE AR B &

Risk-free rate

g g B

WERERENAAERE
REBIRERN Q7 EIBES A
A AR #26,422,0007T & A
R #30,472,0007C ° B IE
BRAIERY A fp B IR A20166F
% 78 T-36,440,00017 & A%
R A B RSB ARE
MARBEZHENERE AR
EHR2016F R HEET&HE
BEREEAE - RER
HE - gZEKRHEREN
R RGN E  HERBR
ERRA R ERRAZ X RER
fEEHSH o TXEIIFEER
BN DB RRE -

1.32~1.45
3.99

6.64
54.68%

8 years
8

1.23%

1.51%
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Employees’ Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(iii)  Fair value of the Replaced Share Options
under the 2014 Grant and assumptions:

(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under service
conditions and non-market performance
conditions. These conditions had not
been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services
received. There was no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

Employees’ Share Award Scheme

On 21 July 2014, the board of directors of the
Company approved the adoption of a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
under which shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (the “Selected Employees”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Share
Award Scheme and the nominal value of the
shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

URESEELURGR/RERNTR
(&)

(a) EEBKRETE (Z)

(iii) 2014FRHIIE T R ERIER
BHALERBR - (&)

T8 HA R 08 DA R SRR R (IR 1%
8 FSUHE B0 D4 S 2 R 8 A 1
APE) BEE . XREARQ
FESNEMBECRIZ R
ZAEMBEME T AHE -
BHEREAELKRE/SE
%o THRABBRINE
BRI ARBEZAFTELE

S/ 488
-7

8 PR TS 5 AR 75 AR A K I
MISRBGETRE - IF
R R EH AT RIS R
LA ARERE - B
2 X I S TS R
o

EESRMDERTE

R2014F7A218 ARG EEE
BOERM—BR O REFE ([
H BT &) - BRULARRAR (D 5
BEEnRERTREREE ([
EREE] ARAFMRMD ([EER
7 1) - IR SRENE B8 T 2 E A AR
MPEETSEBARNA R TED T
BRZAHI10% o

(b)
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23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Unless terminated earlier by the board of
directors in accordance with the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Share Award Scheme
will be valid and effective for a term of 10 years
starting on 21 July 2014. A trust has been set up
and fully funded by the Company for the purpose
of purchasing, administrating and holding the
Company’s shares for the Share Award Scheme.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all
vesting conditions, which might include service
and/or performance conditions, specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time
of making the award and become entitled to the
shares of the Company forming the subject of
the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant
Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost.
The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as
dividend derived from the unvested Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her.

The Awarded Shares granted under the Share
Award Scheme on 7 May 2015 were forfeited
or vested by the end of 31 December 2016.
Therefore, there’'s no share award expenses
recognised during the year ended 31 December
2017(2016: RMB904,000).
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e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

23 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 23 LURELZEYURGCESERNAE

(Continued) (&)
(b) Employees’ Share Award Scheme (Continued) (b) {EERMEEE (&)
Details of the Awarded Shares vested under the f&1n SBENETEITE T B 57 18 1 2R B A%
Share Award Scheme are set out below: PEIFFIBER T B
Number
of Awarded
Shares Vested
EEERB
BB
’000
TR
At 31 December 2017 and M20176F12A318 &

31 December 2016 201612 H31H 302
Details of the treasury shares held under the R AR 1D B =T 8145 A M B AR
Share Award Scheme are set out below: BT XET

Average No. of
purchase shares
price held Value of shares
Fi5 e
BEE ROHE REE
HKD 000 HKD’000 RMB’000
BT TR TET AR®TR
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12A318 &

31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 5.68 19,698 111,854 88,642
At 31 December 2017, 19,798,000 ordinary 20175 12A318 » X5t A B &
shares (2016: 20,000,000 shares) were held % 1n 22 B &t &l 5 5 19,798,0004%
by the trustee under the Share Award Scheme, @ R (20164F : 20,000,0000% A%
among which 100,000 shares in respect of the 7)) + E#100,0000% % 17 7420174
Awarded Shares vested as at 31 December 2017 12H31BE BN RN BRE
were held on behalf of certain employees (2016: Z T & 8% A& (20164 : 302,000
302,000 shares), while the remaining 19,698,000 I B 17) i H #:19,698,0008% A%
shares (2016: 19,698,000 shares) were held on AR ERARD A EHA (20164 -

behalf of the Company. 19,698,000% A% 17 )
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 24

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A IBIRR R A B FEH

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) SEEMBARRTANENEBIE :
of financial position represents:
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
At 1 January M1HA1R 62,133 27,679
Acquisition of subsidiaries g Lal=pNG] - 2,075
Provision of PRC income tax for the year & A H BEFFSH B 1E 127,354 94,010
(Over)/under-provision for PRC income  BEFERHAEH
tax in respect of prior years FriS®i (HRzaeEwE),
BETZ (554) 510
PRC income tax paid during the year FREHBRHTEFH (93,597) (62,141)
At 31 December M®12HA31H 95,336 62,133
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CRIELEHREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B ISR N R RFER B EE R
recognised in the consolidated statement of BEE/(BFE) MABKIBMDRF
financial position and the movements during the WEET
year are as follows:
Withholding
tax on future Fair value
dividend adjustment
income from  Intra group Share of
Deferred tax assets/ from PRC Unused  Provisions business  unrealised  loss of an
(liabilities) arising from: subsidiaries  tax losses’ and accruals  acquisition profits  associate Total
RETENE
RETHIZEN ARRRBE ABA BER  EHUEN SEE (ke
ELsEgE /(8R): WENRNE  HEER  EHER  AAERE REREN  A9ER szt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 #2016%1A 18 (40,850) 488 7449 (1917) 2,623 702 (31,565)
Addition through acquisition FRUENBARRE
of subsidiaries - - 1,262 (91,748) - - (90,496)
(Charged)credited to profitor loss  (40k%) /5t Al . (344) 9489 3487 (1,205) (702) 10,725
At 31 December 2016 and R2016512A318 R
1 January 2017 01751718 (40,850) 144 18,190 (90,238) 1418 - (111,336)
(Charged)/credited to profitor loss  (¥1%) /3t A (17,153) 285 16,095 5,191 (780) S 3638
At 31 December 2017 H2017E12A31H (58,003) 429 34,285 (85,047) 638 - (107,698)
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 24

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b)
(Continued)

4 Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused
tax losses of certain PRC subsidiaries of the
Group. They are now progressing to their
normal operation stage and are deriving profits.
Accordingly, it is considered probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available in the
future to utilize their unused tax losses before
they expire. As at 31 December 2017, tax losses
of RMB669,000, will expire in 2021.

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (c)
of financial position

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

mEMBRRERANAER (&)

CRIAELEHEEEREE : (&)

REFRBEEIRAEEET
AR BB B A R EY R BD AR AR IS S
BMER - ZE R A BATER
HEBEREEFEERBRILES
Al e EE  WARBRARRA
REEH B A ERT G A AT
BRI HAEARS 2 KA
i 1% &5 18 - R2017F 12831
B - BiIEEEAR669,0007T
#2021 F2IH] o

HEMBIRR KOG R
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T ARETTT

Net deferred tax assets recognised REEE AR R RIEZH
in the consolidated statement EETR I E EFE

of financial position 34,714 18,334
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  R4R & B R IERR
in the consolidated statement EERIE B EFE
of financial position (142,412) (129,670)
(107,698) (111,336)
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

AAREIITR)

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB71,687,000 (31 December
2016: RMB77,713,000) in respect of temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries amounted to RMB716,863,000
(2016: RMB777,131,000) were not recognised
as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that those profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

174 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED ERERX/ESEEABRAA

Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

24

25

mEMBRRERANAESR (&)

(d)

RERBHBELERERAE -

R2017F12A31H » I & & R
BB AR KD R RMNARE
716,863,000 T (2016412 H 31
H: AR¥77,713,0007T) A BH
THMEEENEERBEEGEAR
#71,687,0007T (2016512 A 31
B: AR#77,713,00070) © Ji M
RARBZEHZEN BRI E
PR+ I BRE R AT TE R A R R

GIRBEZFmA

X RERKRE

(a)

RS A AR AR D A 2 B

AEBGRA RS EAKRE DR
HR ) R B R 4 R 2 T ) S AR B A4
BRDEEFHR - AR AEIAER
ARLRK BB 0 I ) R 5 R 2 e B
ABER X



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EEmRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25 ¥ #EREE (&)

(a) Movement in components of equity (Continued) (a) HERARDHHEE (F)
The Company
ARR
Treasury
shares Retained
held under Other earnings/
Share Share Other Capital Share Award treasury (Accumulated
capital premium reserves reserve Scheme shares losses) Total
ERBER
FEETHE it RERA/
B BReyEE Hibfte BXGE  NEFRG EFRG  (RitER) &zt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARTRE ARETRE ARNTR ARETR ARETR ARET:®
note 25(c)  note 25(d)(i) note 25(d)(iv) note 25(d)(iii) note 22(b)(i)  note 25(c)(i)
Wizos(c)  BizE2s(d)(i) BEE25(d)(v) MiEES(d)(i)  MEEER2(b)i)  FHEE25(c)()

At 1 January 2016 #2016 1A1H 78,074 647,937 356,472 82,951 (89,997) - 8,350 1,083,787
Purchase of own shares duing ~ £REE B FKH

the year - - - - - (81,132) - (81,132)
Cancellation of shares during £/ 4RI

the year (1837)  (79.295) . - . 81,132 - .
Dividends approved and paid ~ #t &R fTERE - (114512) = - = - = (114512)
Employees’ Share Option EERRETE

Scheme - - - 21,590 - - - 21,590
Shares vested under the Share 7R {7 HEBIEHEIE T

Award Scheme SRORN = - - (1,355) 1,355 = = =
Shares granted under the Share  7ER% (7 Bzt &I T

Award Scheme S 8ilof ) - - - 904 = = - 904
Total comprehensive income for ~ FRZEREEE

the year - - - - - - (19,937) (19,937)
At 31 December 2016 and 120165 12A31R &

1 January 2017 20171818 76,237 454,130 356,472 104,090 (88,642) - (11,587) 890,700
Purchase and Cancellation of ~ RBERIHES

own shares during the year B (11,436) (454,130) (40,150) - - - - (505,716)
Dividends approved and paid ~ #t &R [THRE = = (173,231) = = = = (173,231)
Employees’ Share Option EEERETE

Scheme - - - 21,187 - - - 21,187
Shares issuance e 3,691 236,060 - - - - - 239,751
Shares issued under the Share  7EER MR #E 5+ 218 T &

Option Scheme a0 160 11,212 - (3,879) - - - 7493
Total comprehensive income for A2 EKHEE

the year . . . . . . (13995)  (13,995)
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 68,652 247272 143,091 121,398 (88,642) - (25,582) 466,189
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BB EHI -

25

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25

(b)

AAREIITR)

X RERKRE (B)

Dividends (b) KE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) FEREN KL m] R RH
of the Company attributable to the year KRE
2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Interim dividend declared and paid 25 & & 3 #)
of HKDO0.096 per ordinary share FHIRR B R E Bk
(2016: RMB0.045) 0.096% 7T (20164 :
AR¥0.0457T) 66,059 42,942
Final dividend proposed after FREBEZORBKEE
the end of the year of R EEAR0.105 7T
HKDO.10 per ordinary share (20164 : 0.05/87T)
(2016: HKDO0.05) 68,943 36,599
Special dividend proposed FREZZDFRIRE
after the end of the year (2016%F : B ERA
(2016: HKDO.10 per 0.107%7T)
ordinary share) - 73,198
135,002 152,739

Final dividend proposed after the end of
the year have not been recognised as
liabilities as at the end of the year.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)

(ii)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the
previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

25

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

EX - RERRE (2)
(b) RE (&)

(i) E—RHBFEEMNELAE
BRRBRE  REAHE

REfH
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Final dividend in respect of the FRBERZ TR E—

previous financial year, FIREERARRR B
approved and paid during the BRCE ik
year of HKD0.05 per ordinary 0.05/% 7T (20164 :
share (2016: RMB0.075) AR¥0.0757T) 36,599 74,119
Less: Dividends for treasury B ARBFTEEEER
shares held by the Company B A 2. (875) (2,549)
35,724* 71,570
Special dividend approved and FRHEAE &R BIRS
paid during the year of HKD0.10 B &R E@EAK0. 1074 7T
per ordinary share (2016: nil) (20164 : 4&) 73,198 -
Less: Dividends for treasury B ARBIFTIFEEETR
shares held by the Company HIR%E (1,750) -
71,448* =
107,172 71,570

The Company paid final dividends of
RMB35,724,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 and special dividends
of RMB71,448,000 as adjusted to
exclude the dividends for treasury
shares held under the Company’s Share
Award Scheme.

£ KARBRERZE
20164 12H31H It F
EzRERBEARYE
35,724,0007T K 5 Bl B
BN RM71,448,0007T
(BRABREFBEAR
AR S ED AT 818 T AT
BEEGFRHKRE)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEAIN - LAREBIITR)
25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 25 BEX - FERRE (£)
(c) Share capital (c) M=
(i)  Issued share capital (i) EBTRE
2017
20175
Nominal value  Nominal value
Number of of fully paid of fully paid
shares shares shares
ROBE  ARROEE ARROEE
’000 HKD’000 RMB’000
TR TER AR®TR
Ordinary shares, BRIRARZEER
issued and fully paid:
As at 1 January 2017 R2017%1H18 974,268 97,427 76,237
Repurchase and cancellation of FREEE &R (i)
shares during the year (i) (146,140) (14,614) (11,436)
Shares issuance ((iii) BRADE1T(iil) 43,586 4,359 3,601
Shares issued under the Share IREBE A AR 2
Option Scheme (iv) BATHRAA(Iv) 1,896 189 160
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 873,610 87,361 68,652
The ordinary shares of the Company have AATIEBREMELEETKR
par value of HKDO0.10 per share. 0.103& 7T ©
(ii)  Repurchase and cancellation of own shares (i)  BERZHEE SR G
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On 6 February 2017, the Company entered
into a share buy-back agreement with
First Kind International Limited pursuant to
which the Company agreed to buy back
146,140,200 shares (the “Buy-back Shares”)
at a total consideration of approximately
HKD560,740,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB495,246,000), equivalent to HKD3.837
per each Buy-back Share and the Buy-back
Shares would be cancelled in full (the “Share
Buy-back”). On 11 April 2017, the Share
Buy-back was approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. On 24 April
2017, the Buy-back Shares were repurchased
by the Group and were subsequently
cancelled in full on 2 May 2017. Transaction
costs of RMB10,470,000 which were directly
attributable to the Share Buy-back were
accounted for as deduction from equity.

R2017F2H6H © K A A
HFirst Kind International
Limited&] 32 % o #& [ #
FB ARRRERE
[61146,140,2000% B 175 ([ 48
BER#®G) BRELNAE
560,740,000/ 7T (#H & »
£ AR ¥EA495,246,0007T)
HE R EREE RK%3.837
BT BB BB 8
(TBH/EBE]) - KR2017F
AB11H @ ZEBROHBER
RABIRREERIRE LES
B o P2017F4H248 -
ZEBOROEAAEERE
O - 37 H & ®R2017F5H2
HESTHE ERGEBLOE
BELEMARE10,470,000
TR ST AR RS 7
N



25
(c)
(iii)

(iv)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Share capital (Continued)

Shares issuance

On 3 November 2017, 43,585,680
ordinary shares were issued to United
Vantage Corporation Limited at a price
of HKD6.60 (equivalent to RMB5.59) per
share. After deduction of transaction
costs, the issued share capital and share
premium of the Company were increased
by RMB3,691,000 and RMB236,060,000
respectively.

Shares issued under the Share Option
Scheme

During the year 2017, share options
were exercised to subscribe for a total of
1,896,000 ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of HKD8,896,000
(equivalent to approximately
RMB7,493,000), of which RMB160,000
and RMB7,333,000 were credited to
share capital and the share premium
account respectively. RMB3,879,000 was
transferred from the capital reserve to the
share premium account in accordance
with policy set out in note 1(s)(ii).

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBEEREIN » UAREZIR)
25 EBX-FERRE (&)
(c) RBA&(#)
(i) BB ET

(iv)

m2017%11H3H
43,585,680/% & B K B &
Fhk6.608 T (HBERAR
*5.507T) MEREITTE
HAER AR - RHIBRZ K
KNig - RREBEETRA
KBEHREED H RS mA
R #3,691,00070 & A R #
236,060,0007T °

RIFIEIRETBIRITHIR G

R20175 A - BEREETT
f# - DA X {£8,896,000/% T
(FEE R4 AR 7,493,000
) REARARLARS
$£1,896,0000% ©+ E #F A
R #¥160,0007T & A B ¥
7,333,0007T B 2 5l 5T A B&
AR EER o RIEH T
1(s)(iFTEMEBER - AR
3,879,000L 2 B & AN 1#
EEERMNRER -
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between the par value of the
shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares
of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial information
of operations with functional currency
other than RMB.

(iii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note

1(s)(ii).
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25
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(iii)
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)
(iv)

(v)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Other reserves

The other reserves of the Group represent
the difference between (a) the nominal
value of share capital of Guangzhou
Consun; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group completed on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company
represent the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company in
exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 24 December 2012.

The other reserves of the Company are
distributable. The dividend appropriation
made through other reserves in the
Company’s financial statements is
recorded as through retained earnings in
the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.

PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the articles of association
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries now
comprising the Group, appropriations to
the PRC statutory reserves were made
at a certain percentage of profit after
taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC,
until the PRC statutory reserves was equal
to 50% of the entity’s registered capital.
The percentage for this appropriation was
decided by the directors of the respective
subsidiaries. This reserve fund can be
utilised in setting off accumulated losses or
increasing capital of the subsidiaries and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BrBEEREIN » UAREZIR)
25 EBX-FERRE (&)
(d) RENEERBER (&)
(iv) EBftEE

(v)

REENEMEEZE T
ME 2 ERERE - (a)BEME
ERANMEE: Rb)AA
7] 1B % M 2012F12 824 H
FER R A S B E AT T
ERBMHIR D E(E ©

RAFRHEMEEZE T
& HRZERE : (a) BB
BARMGEEETFE &
(o) A Al R #& Ph20125F 12
A24AM AL B EAFEIT
RERBHRMHEE -

ARRMEAMFERESAED
K o AR B BEHREKRF N
HFEE LRSS IRA
RINMEAR KB A M TS5
RPNRERREL -

HEEE FE

BERNEBEREETSHE
M AR MR ZI2ME
AEBECKEBETPRSIER
KERBEOB B EFHOE
BB 2t BEE A E
ERR BEEFBRETMH
BHENEBIMELD
50% ° BB 7L BE
BB ARIMNESET - %
EESATAREENE AR
WRFTEERRIEE - R
ARDIk OBEEERIN)
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e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  PRC statutory reserves (Continued)

During 2017, Guangzhou Consun and
Yulin Pharmaceutical transferred 10%
of their net profit to the PRC statutory
reserves. The PRC statutory reserves
balances of Inner Mongolia Consun had
reached 50% of their registered capital,
and no further appropriation was made for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Other
PRC subsidiaries of the Group had made
losses during 2017 or had accumulated
losses, no appropriation was made
accordingly.

(e) Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount
of distributable reserves of the Company,
calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
RMB397,537,000 (2016: RMB814,463,000).
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25

X RERKRE (B)

(d)

(e)

RENEERAR (£)
(v) HEEERE (&)

2017 - EMEE R E
MREBLZE I H 4G T #910% 8 A
HEUEERE - AR HEER
WP BEERBAEBREER
HFMM&EAR50% + BAifmn
& £20174128318 It £
E R — PR o K
SEME AP BB A AR
2017F kB BB K BB
B B EEE R -

A 4 7 K e

R20178 128318 » NA AR IEFH
EHERNTEFENHS IRFE
4858 5 A R¥397,537,0007T (2016
& AR¥814,463,0007T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity.

During the year, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio at a
level considered reasonable by the Group’s
management from time to time with reference
to the prevailing market conditions. In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
shareholders, issue new shares or raise new debt
financing.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVE AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)
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Capital management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group presented adjusted net asset, thus net
debt-to-capital ratio was not calculated. The
Group’s adjusted net asset at 31 December 2017

25

BX - HERRE (&)

) ERER (45)
M20175% K2016F12A31H » &
SEZ7 TRAREEFE At
WESTEFEFEE AR R o RE
B R2017F12 A31TH K ARE

was as follows: EREMT ¢
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 ARET ARBTIT
Current liabilities: mENEE -
- Loans and borrowings — BERRER 21 193,621 =
Non-current liabilities: ERBELE
- Loans and borrowings — BERRER 21 374,483 =
Total debt BIETS 568,104 -
Add: Proposed dividends o ERRR A 25(b) 68,943 107,172
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : IR& MIREEEER 19 (989,565) (672,711)
Adjusted net asset IR RE B SR (R 352,518 565,539

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements, except that banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the
subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios (Note 21).
The Group will actively and regularly monitor its
compliance to such covenants.

AR A R EALME R R ZRNINE
MM EARR R TETHBARN
RITMERBTEZSHNEAREAAR
KRGO R (FE21) - AEE KIS
15 K E IS H B T % FREHMITN
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s

exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group

to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30-90 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than 12 months past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 25%
(2016: 15%) and 48% (2016: 49%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 18.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)
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AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s financial liabilities (exclude
receipts in advance), which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

26 HMEERREERVEIAMNAAE

(&)

(b)

RBE SRR

AEEABENCEERARSEL
ReEE SREESENERY
REMERERENBHERESS
2 EMEEBEE TREREK
FoRARBARRESS ZHET
EE - ARBCHRAEREE
MBETHE  BREBERRS
REETERERNAEES X
(L NEPNR Y 2 A
BREE UENREHRDEST
ko

TRIAXASEN R EE (BRE
WRIASN) MR EHARORIHRE L
B DREAORFTRASRE
(BREERAAONESR (WRFE) &
WERROBITHRAENFEA
) EAKREEEENREAHZ
5l :

2017
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
20178
EHNRABRER
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years
year or on less than but less Carrying
demand 2 years than 5 years Total amount
1ERE BB1E BiR2E
REX BAR2E  BORSE @ REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETrn AR¥TrR AR%Tn AR®TR
Loans and borrowings ERRER 208,359 150,376 236,507 595,242 568,104
Trade and other payables BHREMERFE 675,502 - - 675,502 675,502
883,861 150,376 236,507 1,270,744 1,243,606
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

MERREERMEIANAIAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELRAR (&)
2016
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
2016%
ARATRR SR
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years
year or on less than but less Carrying
demand 2years than 5 years Total amount
1ERH B@1F HiRoE
BRER  EIR2E BORSE @t REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Trade and other payables B REMERFE 472,577 307 = 472,884 472,884

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans and
related interest expense of the Group amounting
to RMB208,359,000 were due to be repaid during
2018. The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this
contractual maturity date was not significantly
changed after the reporting period.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from borrowings from banks. Borrowings issued
at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

(c)

W EXHIER - NEBAEA
R #208,359,000t KR 1T B K %
HEREF B 5 S TR 20184F (R B A i
FEE RAAGHNEHBEEENE
HRBESRRNIR S HELESE

M=E R

AEESOFEREREERGRITE
Moo HIZEHERETEMEZEHE
BROANSAEBEAZRERE
MERRRARBENERR - K&
EhREREERNONEEAHENT
(i) e
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest
rate profile at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: nil) of the Group’s

MERREERMEIANAIAE
(&)

(c) FEmk (&)
(i)  FIEER

T R 5 2017412 A 31
B AEERBREHRTE
B F E R (2016412

interest-bearing borrowings at the end of HA318 : &) -
the reporting period.
2017
20174
Effective
interest rates Amount
BRI &%
% RMB’000
% AR®T R
Fixed rate borrowings: ERMER :
Bank loans IRITER 4.35% 100,000
Variable rate borrowings: FEER:
Bank loans IRITER 3.19% 468,104
Total borrowings B 568,104
Fixed rate borrowings as a EBERIGER
percentage of total borrowings ~ #FEAE DL 18%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INSTRUMENTS

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017,
that a general increase/decrease of 100

it is estimated

basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB4,681,000 (2016: nil).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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(B BEHI -

AAREIITR)

MERREERMEIANAIAE

(c) F=EmEk (&)

(ii)
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SEEEQ A ENERRA
ZEMBIA - RAEER
REMRAFEZEAEIE
METAEEEMNRESRAE
RBmE @ AEERFIE R
FMRREBMNAZZE TR
AN EZBHFE/FE

SR AR R B o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 FE#HE 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEREPI - LARKEIITR)

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out
in the PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China
or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the
rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely by supply
and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
give rise to cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure at the end
of reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
RMB translated using the spot rate at the
period end date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

190 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EREX/ESEEABRAA
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

MERREERMEIANAIAE
(&)

(d) EEERRE)
(i) EHWEERE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies

SRR
(expressed in Renminbi)
(AARH®IIR)

2017 2016
20175 20164
Hong Kong United States Hong Kong
Dollars Dollars Dollars
BT EY BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R AR®T R ARETT

Trade and other receivables B 5 R H e IR 2,873 - -
Cash and cash equivalents Be B+ EEEE 110,830 2,720 7,948
Trade and other payables 2 5 R HAENFIE (3,187) - =
Loans and borrowings ERRER (468,104) - -
Gross and net exposure arising ERREERAE

from recognised assets and EERERESE

liabilities KR (357,588) 2,720 7,948
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AAREIITR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit

The following table

after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

26 HMEERREERVEIAMNAAE

(&)

(d) E®ERRGE)

(ii)

BBE T

T 3R FB N fin A 5= B A 3R 5 B
KA KR B A ) BE R
ZABMES  WEERMAE
HRBREEpEFTE K
EBEMBRBIREF KRB &
F A REH IR 2 BB &£ ) o

2017

20174
Effect on
Increase profit after
in foreign tax and
exchange retained
rate profit
HERBL B ET
RREHEH
ERtH VRE
Hong Kong Dollars BT 1% (3,576)
United States Dollars e 1% 27

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

EREFNDHERBEH AR
SEEBNEENERR
HEMNRBREFE A A
RRE YL 25 8 fRHR
THARNEXBRE/AR
W o



26

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
Group had no significant foreign exchange
exposure as at 31 December 2016, as
the cash and cash equivalent held by the
Group denominated in the currency other
than Renminbi was insignificant.

(e) Fair Value

(i) Financial instruments and liabilities
measured at fair value

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016, the Company has no financial
instruments accounted for using fair value
model.

(ii)  Fair value of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised
cost were not materially different from their
fair value as at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016 except for the unlisted
available-for-sale equity securities whose fair
value cannot be measured reliably.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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28

AAREIITR)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December
2017 not provided for in the consolidated financial

statements were as follows:

27 BAXEIE

R20175F 124318 L AR HE
BBHARBITERAENAT ¢

fRAa M B EwR

2017 2016

20175 2016%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARET T

Contracted for EHED) 125,239 20,989

Authorised but not contracted for BHAEERETH 260,833 4,682

Total #E 386,072 25,671
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 BEXBBIRS
Key management personnel remuneration TEEEAEME

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the

AEBTEEEABNME  ERRAARD
AEEX O FIR (T E) AR
AETR=HES AR (A FE7 AT

highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as WE) #HINAT -
follows:
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Salaries and other benefits e MEMmET 27,081 22,625
Retirement scheme of defined contribution R EFER KT 2 98 101
Equity settled share-based VARG 45 5 30 DARR (7 A
payment expenses AR SR 5,882 12,178
33,061 34,904

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

4(b)).

None of the above related party transactions falls under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing

connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
accounting judgments in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below.

(a)

(b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

Impairments

(i) In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as revenue and
operating costs.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHEEAN - LAREBIITR)

29 EETEETTRAE
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A BEREAENAXE
RAR VB H B b AT R U A A
LRRAZEIREER -
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29 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 29 € H{4stR il (&)

(Continued)
(b) Impairments (Continued) (b) RE (&)
(i)  Impairment losses for doubtful debts (i) REFREBBRESTEHAR

are assessed and provided based on SR ERER DT R Al K EI R E
the directors’ regular review of ageing ST R R ETIR B
analysis and evaluation of collectability. EZETGHESENEEMNE
A considerable level of judgment is FREEAR N B 1 W AR 50 SR AR 1
exercised by the directors when assessing K= HIET -

the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above LR B B 18 B AT 3G
impairment losses would affect the net C 5 2R IRFE R 4D F e F
profit or loss in future years. 18 o
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(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30 AR EEBBERRE
POSITION
2017 2016
20174 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RSB R R E 15 342,444 342,444
Total non-current assets FREBEEHE 342,444 342,444
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWGRIE 411,124 521,326
Cash and cash equivalents B MR EMEER 199,694 39,812
Total current assets RBEEHLE 610,818 561,138
Current liabilities REBEE
Loans and borrowings ERRER 21 93,621 5
Other payables H b fEN B 18,969 12,882
Total current liabilities RBAGHEE 112,590 12,882
Net current assets REBEEFE 498,228 548,256
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERASHEE 840,672 890,700
Non-current liabilities ERBER
Loans and borrowings ERMERK 21 374,483 -
Net Assets EEFE 466,189 890,700
Capital and reserves EARREE 25(a)
Share capital &7 68,652 76,237
Reserves & 397,537 814,463
Total equity EREE 466,189 890,700
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31 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 31 &EH&GFHREZEE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors RBEMRCEEZEZTRAARE -
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed E—THBEHERKE25(D) °

in note 25(b).

32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 32 #Z2017F12A31HLFEEEME

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED o ARERNIEET » HERRZREHNE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ExE

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HETZRZEYBEHRERBE B8
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and ANEERMHREBE2017F12H318 L F
new standards which are not yet effective for the year EHARERARRZEVHEREIRANZ
ended 31 December 2017 and which have not been TRIERT R AT LR o ZFER] R R BIE
adopted in these financial statements. These include AlpEEAAREEEEA T &SIE o

the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT5 B #sE
RS T BRI EXR
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BEMBHMELRNEW  2HTA 2018F1H1H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BERUBMELERNEL - KHHEEFZTLZ & AIHIHKA 2018F1A1H
Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and 1 January 2018
measurement of share-based payment transactions
BEAMBREENERIETTAR - URGBEEAITH - LR BEEHITH 2018F1A1H
ZHHEREE
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
ERGTHERIFEA0H (BRIR) - REYF - BEREYF 2018F1H1H
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
58 (BRMBRERBEREG) — B225% - JMEXZRAENAE 2018F1H1H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
EEMBRELERE165 - HE 20191 A1H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15,
the actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the
standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified before
the standards are initially applied in the Group’s interim
financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2018.
The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement of financial assets, including the
measurement of impairment for financial assets
and hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS
9 incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis.
The Group plans to use the exemption from restating
comparative information and will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the
Group’s financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

o The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the asset. If a debt instrument is classified
as FVTOCI then interest revenue, impairment
and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
security is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security
is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be
recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses
and impairments on that security will be
recognised in other comprehensive income
without recycling.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost and FVTPL
will continue with their respective classification
and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

200 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHNESEEFRAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS
9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive income
(without reclassification to profit or loss). The
Group currently does not have any financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore this
new requirement will not have any impact on the
Group on adoption of HKFRS 9.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces
the model in HKAS 39 with
an “expected credit loss” model. Under the

“incurred loss”

expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity
is required to recognise and measure either
a 12-month expected credit loss or a lifetime
expected credit loss, depending on the asset
and the facts and circumstances. The Group
expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition
of credit losses.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=AEHERIN - UARKIITR)
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specifies the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to
be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 1(v). Currently, revenue arising
from the sale of goods is generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15,
the customer obtains control of the promised
HKFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the

revenue is recognised when

good or service in the contract.

promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) ~ When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to
the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue
standard is not likely to have significant impact
on how it recognises revenue from the sale of
goods.

e ISR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant financing
component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in
advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such a
policy when payments are significantly deferred,
which is currently not common in the Group’s
arrangements with its customers. Currently,
the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

Advance payments are not common in the
Group’s arrangement with its customers. The
Group has assessed that this component in the
Group’s advance payment schemes is not likely
to be significant to the contract.

204 CONSUN PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LIMITED EEHMESEAFRAF]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(c)

Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to
return the Group’s products, the Group estimates
the level of expected returns and makes an
adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group has assessed that the adoption of
HKFRS 15 will not materially affect how the Group
recognises revenue and cost of sales when
the customers have a right of return. However,
the new requirement to recognise separately
a return asset for the products expected to
be returned will impact the presentation in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
the Group currently adjusts the carrying amounts
of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative
effect transition method for the adoption of
HKFRS 15 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group plans to
apply the new requirements only to contracts that
are not completed before 1 January 2018. Since
the number of “open” contracts for sales of the
products at 31 December 2017 is limited, the
Group expects that the transition adjustment to
be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 15
will not be material.

ARE SRR EE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(l), currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the
lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16
is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability,
the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on
the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can
elect not to apply this accounting model to short-term
leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less)
and to leases of low-value assets, in which case the
rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model
is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the lease. As at 31 December 2017
the Group’s future minimum lease payments are
insignificant.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different
transition options and practical expedients, including
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or
contain, leases. If this practical expedient is chosen, the
Group will apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS
16 only to contracts that are entered into on or after the
date of initial application. If the practical expedient is
not chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of its
decisions about which existing contracts are, or contain,
leases, using the new definition. Depending on whether
the Group elects to adopt the standard retrospectively
or follow a modified retrospective method of recognising
a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance
of equity at the date of initial application, the Group
may or may not need to restate comparative information
for any changes in accounting resulting from the
reassessment.

The Group has not decided whether it will choose to
take advantage of this period expedient, and which
transition approach to be taken.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hEMBRE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20164 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR%®Tr ARKETT ARETR
Revenue WA 1,660,230 1,223,488 831,108 730,683 571,765
Gross Profit EF 1,228,395 911,023 670,566 571,767 452 234
Profit before taxation A 544,982 403,452 314,782 264,159 210,462
Income tax PriSH 123,162 83,795 65,093 52,959 57,580
Profit for the year F SR F 421,820 319,657 249,689 211,200 152,882
Profit for the year attributable  ZR/7A Bl 25 IR B e {5
to equity shareholders of F N A
the Company 396,242 307,526 249,689 211,200 152,882
Earnings per share FRREF
(expressed in RMB Yuan (ABRARETT
per share) HR)
— basic — ®EAK 0.46 0.32 0.25 0.21 0.20
— diluted — 0.46 0.32 0.25 0.21 0.20
Assets and liabilities EERARE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,387,366 1,369,050 957,703 266,412 264,256
Current assets MENEE 2,184,651 1,390,005 960,188 1,396,529 1,192,689
Current liabilities mEaE 970,233 546,731 229,350 178,247 150,115
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 537,636 151,273 51,786 51,508 49,466
Net assets BEFE 2,064,148 2,061,051 1,636,755 1,433,186 1,257,364
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share Capital AR 68,652 76,237 78,074 78,250 78,250
Reserves 1 1,678,036 1684257 1,558,681 1354936 1,179,114
Total equity attributable to ARAIERRR
equity shareholders of fEh i B
the Company 1,746,688 1,760,494 1,636,755  1433,186 1,257,364
Non-controlling interests Pl e 317,460 300,557 = = =
Total equity g 2,064,148 2061051 1,636,755 1,433,186 1,257,364

The summary above does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

A ERES TMEREEXRE PIERR AV AR R

,f/'\ °
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